
Please Note: The agenda is subject to revisions. 
Anyone needing assistance to attend or participate should contact Sun Valley City Hall prior to the meeting at 622-4438. 

Council packets are available online at www.sunvalley.govoffice.com. 

AGENDA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 81 ELKHORN ROAD 
CITY OF SUN VALLEY, IDAHO 

November 5, 2015 – 4:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT - The Mayor and Council welcome comments from the public on any subject.  Please 
state your name and address for the record. Public comments may be limited to three (3) minutes.  
Please note this is the only time during this meeting that public comment time will be provided.   
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENT (5 min.) 
 
COUNCIL COMMENT (5 min.) 
 
MAYOR COMMENT (5 min.) 

- Proclamation for Small Business Saturday, November 28, 2015; ................................................... 1 

 
QUESTIONS FROM THE PRESS (3 min.) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA (5 min.)  All items listed under the Consent Agenda will be approved in one motion 
without discussion unless any Council Member requests that the item be removed for individual 
discussion and possible action.  
1. Approval of Council Minutes of October 5 and October 16, 2015;  ................................................... 2 
2. Receive and File Financials: ................................................................................................................. 23  

a. October, 2015 Paid Invoice Report  
b. Preliminary September, 2015 Financial Report 
c. Local Option Tax Report 

3. Authorize payment of bills and payroll (recurring per Resolution 2015-09) for November, 2015, 
when due; (no documents) 

4. Authorize payment of bills (non-recurring) on-hand due after October 28, 2015 and recommended 
for approval by the Finance Committee;  ...................................................................................... 66 

5. Authorize payment of the first quarterly installment to Mountain Rides contingent upon approval of 
the FY 2016 Contract; (no documents) 

 
PUBLIC HEARING (25 min.) 
6. Diamond Back Townhomes: Amendments to Master Plan, Planned Unit Development, and Revision 

to Approved Preliminary Plat (15 min.); ............................................................................................... 71 
a. Master Plan Development #MPD2015-01: Application by Sun Valley Company to amend the 

White Clouds (Gun Club) Land Use Planning Area Master Plan Application No. MPD 2006-03-
017, as amended by MPD 2014-02, as it applies to Parcel A Amended, White Clouds, 
Corrected: Parcels A, B & J Amended, whereby the density for Parcel A Amended is changed 
to allow a range of 26 – 36 units (5 min.);  

http://www.sunvalley.govoffice.com/


Please Note: The agenda is subject to revisions. 
Anyone needing assistance to attend or participate should contact Sun Valley City Hall prior to the meeting at 622-4438. 

Council packets are available online at www.sunvalley.govoffice.com. 

b. Conditional Use Permit #CUP2015-01: Application by Sun Valley Company to amend 
Conditional Use Permit for Gun Club LUPA PUD Application No. CUP2007-05 whereby the 
White Clouds Subdivision may include single family dwellings in a townhouse form of 
ownership with common area (5 min.);  

c. Plat Amendment #SUBPA2015-04: Application to amend the preliminary plat (SUBPP 2014-
03, approved May 24, 2014) for Parcel A Amended within the plat of White Clouds Corrected, 
Parcels A, B & J Amended reducing the total number of townhouse units from 36 to 31. 
Applicant: Benchmark Associates, P.A. for Sun Valley Company. Location: Parcel A Amended, 
White Clouds, Corrected: Parcels A, B, & J Amended; 101 Diamond Back Road (5 min.);  

7. Diamond Back Townhomes: Final Plat Applications (10 min.);  ............................................................ 86 
a. Final Plat Application #SUBFP2015-07 by Benchmark Associates, P.A. on behalf of Sun Valley 

Company for Sublots 13-14, 17-18, and Tract D of Diamond Back Townhomes, Parcel A 
Amended, within the plat of White Clouds, Corrected, Parcels A, B, & J Amended (5 min.);  

b. Final Plat Application #SUBFP2015-08 by Benchmark Associates, P.A. on behalf of Sun Valley 
Company for Sublot 19 and Tract E of Diamond Back Townhomes, Parcel A Amended, within 
the plat of White Clouds, Corrected, Parcels A, B, & J Amended (5 min.);  

 
BREAK (5 min.) 

ACTION/DISCUSSION (65 min.) 

8. Discussion regarding status of AT&T's Sage Creek Wireless Facility (#CUP2007-04)(40 min.);  ............. 138 
a. City staff presentation;  
b. AT&T Wireless attorney presentation; 
c. Ned Williamson, representing the Sentilles, presentation; 
d. City Attorney and AT&T attorney response; 

9. Discussion and action on Resolution 2015-30 Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a FY16 Contract for 
Services with the Mountain Rides in the amount of $265,000 (5 min.); ............................................... 240  

10. Discussion of City computer usage and action on FY16 contract for information technology services 
(10 min.);  ........................................................................................................................................... 250 
a) Presentation by Todd Mandeville of Ketchum Computers regarding City computer usage;  
b) Discussion and action on Resolution 2015-31 Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a FY16 Contract 

for Services with Ketchum Computers;  
11. Discussion and possible action on the City’s current Health Reimbursement Account (HRA)(5 min.);... 255     
12. First Reading of Ordinance No. 478 An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance No. 475 (5 min.); ................... 299 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – Pursuant to Idaho Code 74-206 sections (d) and (f). 

ADJOURNMENT - Meeting will conclude after the completion of agenda items or at the latest 9:00 p.m. 
Any item under discussion or consideration at 9:00 p.m. will be completed. Any remaining items on the 
agenda will be scheduled for another meeting. 
 

http://www.sunvalley.govoffice.com/


1



Page 1 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

COUNCIL MEETING  
OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  

IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS - 81 ELKHORN ROAD  
CITY OF SUN VALLEY, IDAHO  

OCTOBER 5, 2015 AT 4:00 P.M. 
 
The Mayor and the City Council of Sun Valley, Blaine County, State of Idaho, met in a Council Meeting in 
the Sun Valley City Hall Council Chambers on October 5, 2015 at 4:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 4:01 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: Mayor Dewayne Briscoe, Council President Keith Saks, Council Member 

Michelle Griffith, Council Member Peter Hendricks, and Council Member Jane 
Conard. 

ABSENT: None 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The pledge was led by Ned Williamson. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
Caleb Baukol, with Big Wood Ski, LLC, made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Caleb Baukol responded.  
Ned Williamson, attorney for the Sentilleses, Sun Valley property owners, made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Marline Rennels, Sun Valley property owner, made a comment. 
Noel Ellman, Sun Valley property owner, made a comment. 
David Barovetto, Sun Valley resident, made a public comment. 
Jake Provonsha, Sun Valley resident, made a public comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Per the Mayor’s request, City Administrator Susan Robertson read a letter from Jim Bronson, Sun Valley 
resident, into the public record. 
The Mayor closed public comment. 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENT 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Ned Williamson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
Ned Williamson responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Ned Williamson made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 

2

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64746
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64747
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64748
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64750
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64751
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64752
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64753
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64754
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64755
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64756
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64757
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64758
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64759
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64760
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64761
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64762
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64763
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64763
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64764
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64765
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64766
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64767
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64768
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64769
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64770
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64771
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64772
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64773
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64774
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64775
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64776


Page 2 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

Ned Williamson responded. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENT 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
 
MAYOR COMMENT  
- Recognition of Sun Valley wildland firefighters deployed to out-of-area fires 

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco introduced the Sun Valley firefighters that were deployed to out-of-area fires. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
 
- Idaho APA honorable mention for Blaine County Community Bike-Ped Plan  

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
 
Mayor began his general comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
David Wilson, Sun Valley resident, made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
 
QUESTIONS FROM THE PRESS 
None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  
1. Approval of Council Minutes of September 10 and 16, 2015; 
2. Receive and File Financials: 
 a.   September, 2015 Paid Invoice Report 
 b.   August, 2015 Financial Report 
 c.    Local Option Tax Report 
3. Authorize payment of bills and payroll (recurring per Resolution 2015-09) for October, 2015, 

when due; (no documents) 
4. Authorize payment of bills (non-recurring) on-hand due after September 23, 2015 and 

recommended for approval by the Finance Committee; 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe asked a question. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 

3

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64777
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64778
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64779
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64780
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64781
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64781
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64782
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64783
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64784
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64785
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64786
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64787
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64787
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64788
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64789
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64790
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64791
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64792
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64793
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64794
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64795
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64796
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64797
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64798
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64799
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64800
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64801
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64802
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64803
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64804
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64805
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64806
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64807
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64808
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64809


Page 3 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Jane Conard moved to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Council Member 
Michelle Griffith. A roll call vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Michelle Griffith, Council 

Member Peter Hendricks, and Council Member Jane Conard. 
NAYS: None 
The Mayor declared the motion approved. 

PRESENTATIONS  
5. Letter of Commendation presented to Fire Department Captains Reid Black and Taan Robrahn;  

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Assistant Fire Chief Charlie Butterfield presented Captains Reid Black and Taan Robrahn. 
Dr. Deborah Robertson, St. Luke’s Wood River Emergency Department Medical Director, made a 
comment. 
Assistant Fire Chief Charlie Butterfield read and presented the letters of commendation. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe asked a question and made a comment.  
 
Council Member Michelle Griffith stated she needed to leave the meeting, but would return, and exited 
Council Chambers. 
 
6. Sun Valley Marketing Alliance Semi-Annual Report, Arlene Schieven;  

Arlene Schieven, Executive Director of the Sun Valley Marketing Alliance, made a presentation. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded.  
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded and continued her presentation. 

4

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64810
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64811
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64812
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64813
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64814
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64815
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64816
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64817
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64818
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64819
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64820
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64821
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64832
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64833
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64833
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64834
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64835
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64836
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64836
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64837
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64838
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64839
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64839
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64840
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64840
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64841
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64842
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64843
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64844
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64845
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64846
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64847
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64848
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64849
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64850
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64851
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64852
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64853


Page 4 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Arlene Schieven responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Arlene Schieven responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
 
7. Sun Valley Economic Development Semi-Annual Report, Harry Griffith; 

Harry Griffith, Executive Director of Sun Valley Economic Development, made a presentation. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe asked a question. 
Harry Griffith responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe asked a question. 
Harry Griffith responded. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
8. Public hearing and action on Final Plat Application by Sun Valley Company for Sublots 15, 16, 

and Tract B of Diamond Back Townhomes, Parcel A Amended, within the plat of White Clouds, 
Corrected, Parcels A, B, & J Amended (SUBFP 2015-05);  

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe asked the Council for any disclosures on the agenda item. There were none.  
Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
Wally Huffman, representing the Sun Valley Company, made a comment.  
Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe opened the public hearing.  
Seeing no public comment, Mayor Dewayne Briscoe closed the public hearing.  
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill responded. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Jane Conard moved to approve the final plat application SUBFP 2015-05 by finding first 
the submitted final plat is consistent with the approved preliminary plat, and second that all applicable 
conditions of approval required prior to City action for the subdivision have been satisfied by the 
applicant, seconded by Council President Keith Saks. A roll call vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Peter Hendricks, and Council 

Member Jane Conard. 

5

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64854
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64855
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64856
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64857
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64858
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64859
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64860
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64861
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64862
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64863
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64864
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64865
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64866
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64867
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64867
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64868
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64869
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64870
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64871
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64872
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64873
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64874
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64875
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64875
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64875
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64875
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64875
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64876
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64878
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64880
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64881
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64882
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64883
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64884
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64885
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64886
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64887
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64888
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64889


Page 5 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

NAYS: None 
ABSENT Council Member Michelle Griffith. 
The Mayor declared the motion approved. 

9. Public hearing and action on Final Plat Application by Sun Valley Company for Sublots 5 through 
8 and Tract C of Diamond Back Townhomes, Parcel A Amended, within the plat of White 
Clouds, Corrected, Parcels A, B, & J Amended (SUBFP 2015-06);  

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
The Mayor requested the Council make disclosures on the agenda item. There were none.  
Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe opened the public hearing. 
Seeing  none, Mayor Dewayne Briscoe closed the public hearing.  
Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Jane Conard moved to approve final plat SUBFP 2015-06 by finding first the submitted 
final plat is consistent with the approved preliminary plat, and second that all applicable conditions of 
approval required prior to City action have been satisfied by the applicant, seconded by Council 
President Keith Saks. A roll call vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Peter Hendricks, and Council 

Member Jane Conard. 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT:  Council Member Michelle Griffith.  
The Mayor declared the motion approved. 

Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe advised the Council he would not be participating in Agenda Items 10 and 11 
and left the Council Chambers. 
 
BREAK 
A break was taken at 6:02 p.m. 
The break ended at 6:16 p.m. 
 
Council President Keith Saks took over as chair for the meeting and requested the Council rearrange the 
agenda to accommodate the presenter for Agenda Items 12 and 13.   
Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  
 
ACTION/DISCUSSION  
12.  Continued discussion and possible action regarding city-owned Elkhorn Springs condominiums, 

including Blaine County Housing Authority City-Owned Housing Units Management Proposal; 

Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
David Patrie, Executive Director of the Blaine County Housing Authority, presented the issue.  
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 

6

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64893
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64893
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64893
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64894
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64895
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64896
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64897
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64898
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64899
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64900
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64901
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64905
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64906
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64906
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64909
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64909
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64911
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64912
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64914
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64915
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64915
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64915
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64916
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64917
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64918


Page 6 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

David Patrie responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
David Patrie responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Police Chief Walt Femling responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Assistant Fire Chief Charlie Butterfield drew a diagram of the units and described their configuration. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Assistant Fire Chief Charlie Butterfield responded.  
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
City Treasurer Angela Orr made a comment. 
Assistant Fire Chief Charlie Butterfield made a comment.  
Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Assistant Fire Chief Charlie Butterfield made a comment.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
David Patrie responded.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
David Patrie made a comment.  
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Council President Keith Saks responded and asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  
David Patrie made a comment.  
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Jane Conard moved to table the issue for a date certain of December 3, 2015 to have a 
report and proposal, if appropriate, regarding services the BCHA could provide to the City with regard to 
the Elkhorn Springs units, seconded by Council Member Peter Hendricks. A voice vote was taken.  
 

7

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64919
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64920
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64921
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64922
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64923
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64924
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64925
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64926
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64927
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64928
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64929
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64930
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64931
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64932
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64933
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64934
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64935
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64936
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64937
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64938
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64939
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64940
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64941
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64942
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64943
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64944
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64945
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64946
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64947
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64948
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64949
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64950
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64951
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64952
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64953
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64954
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64955
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64956
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64957
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64958
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64959
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64960


Page 7 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Peter Hendricks, and Council 
Member Jane Conard. 

NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Council Member Michelle Griffith. 
Council President Keith Saks declared the motion approved. 

13.  Discussion and action on Resolution 2015-26 Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a FY16 Contract 
for Services with the Blaine County Housing Authority in the amount of $15,000;  

David Patrie made a comment.  
 
MOTION 
Council Member Jane Conard moved to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with the Blaine 
County Housing Authority and pass Resolution 2015-26, seconded by Council Member Peter Hendricks. 
A roll call vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Peter Hendricks, and Council 

Member Jane Conard. 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Council Member Michelle Griffith. 
Council President Keith Saks declared the motion approved. 

Council President Keith Saks suggested an additional rearrangement of the agenda to hear Item 17. 
 
17.  Discussion and action on purchase of Fire Department vehicle for Fiscal Year 2016;  

Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Assistant Fire Chief Charlie Butterfield made a comment.  
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
City Treasurer Angela Orr made a comment.  
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Assistant Fire Chief Charlie Butterfield made a comment.  
 
MOTION 
Council Member Peter Hendricks moved to authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement to order the 
new truck, seconded by Council Member Jane Conard. A roll call vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Peter Hendricks, and Council 

Member Jane Conard. 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT:  Council Member Michelle Griffith.  
Council President Keith Saks declared the motion approved. 

18.  Discussion and action on Resolution 2015-27 authorizing the Mayor to Execute a FY16 Interlocal 
Agreement (Sun Valley/Blaine County) for GIS Services;  

Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 

8

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64964
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64964
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64964
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64965
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64969
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64970
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64970
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64971
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64972
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64973
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64974
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64975
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64976
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64977
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64978
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64979
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64983
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64983
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64983
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64984
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64985


Page 8 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Jane Conard moved to approve Resolution 2015-27 authorizing the Mayor to Execute a 
FY16 Interlocal Agreement (Sun Valley/Blaine County) for GIS Services, seconded by Council Member 
Peter Hendricks. A roll call vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Peter Hendricks, and Council 

Member Jane Conard. 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Council Member Michelle Griffith.  
Council President Keith Saks declared the motion approved. 

Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
 
15.  Discussion and action on scheduling two Special City Council meetings related to the Elkhorn 

Fire Station sleeping quarters for October 9th and October 21st, 2015 at 4:00 p.m.;  

City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment and asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
The Council agreed on a meeting for October 16, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
The Council agreed on a meeting for October 29, 2015 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Peter Hendricks moved to approve the scheduling of two Special City Council meetings 
related to the Elkhorn Fire Station sleeping quarters for October 16, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. and October 29, 
2015 at 2:00 p.m., seconded by Council Member Jane Conard. A voice vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Peter Hendricks, and Council 

Member Jane Conard. 

9

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64986
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64987
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64988
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64992
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64995
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64995
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64995
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64996
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64997
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64998
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=64999
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65000
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65001
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65002
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65003
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65004
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65005
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65006
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65007
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65008
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65009
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65010
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65011
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65012
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65013
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65014
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65015
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65016


Page 9 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Council Member Michelle Griffith.  
 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
 
14.  Authorization for staff to enter into contract negotiations with an architectural firm to provide 

architectural/engineering services for the remodeling of the Elkhorn Fire Station to provide 
sleeping quarters; 

City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment.  
Council Member Michelle Griffith returned to the meeting and took her seat at the dias.  
Council Member Jane Conard requested to have the previous agenda item be revisited with Council 
Member Michelle Griffith in the room. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment and returned to the current agenda item. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  

10

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65020
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65021
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65021
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65021
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65021
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65022
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65023
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65024
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65025
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65025
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65026
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65027
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65028
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65029
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65030
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65031
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65032
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65033
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65034
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65035
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65036
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65037
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65038
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65039
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65040
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65041
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65042
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65043
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65044
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65045
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65046
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65047
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65048
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65049
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65050
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65051
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65052
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65053
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65054
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65055
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65056
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65057
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65058
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65059
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65060


Page 10 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Peter Hendricks moved to authorize staff to enter into contract negotiations with an 
architectural firm to provide architectural/engineering services for the remodeling of the Elkhorn Fire 
Station to provide sleeping quarters, seconded by Council Member Jane Conard. A voice vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Michelle Griffith, Council 

Member Peter Hendricks, and Council Member Jane Conard. 
NAYS: None 
Council President Keith Saks declared the motion approved. 

Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
 
BREAK 
A break was taken at 7:32 p.m. 
The break ended at 7:37 p.m. 
 
10.  Discussion and action on Ordinance 475 and the Blue Shield contract following recent Hall 

Render and Idaho Attorney General legal opinions;  

Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 

11

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65061
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65062
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65063
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65064
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65065
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65066
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65067
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65068
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65069
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65073
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65074
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65074
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65077
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65077
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65077
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65077
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65078
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65079
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65080
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65081
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65082
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65083
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65084
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65085
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65086
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65087
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65088
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65089
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65090
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65091
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65092
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65093
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65094
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65095
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65096
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65097


Page 11 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded.  
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
City Attorney Adam King responded.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  
Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
The Council elected to suspend the discussion and return to Agenda Items 10 and 11 after Item 16.   
 
16.  Continued discussion and action on staff recommendations regarding landscaping 

encroachments on City streets and rights of way; 

Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
City Treasurer Angela Orr responded. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill responded. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill responded. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 

12

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65098
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65099
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65100
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65101
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65102
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65103
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65104
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65105
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65106
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65107
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65108
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65109
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65110
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65111
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65112
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65113
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65114
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65115
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65116
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65117
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65118
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65119
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65120
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65121
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65122
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65123
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65124
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65125
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65126
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65127
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65128
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65129
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65131
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65131
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65131
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65132
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65133
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65134
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65135
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65136
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65137
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65138
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65139
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65140
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65141
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65142
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65143
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65144


Page 12 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill responded. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Community Development Director Jae Hill made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Police Chief Walt Femling asked a question. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Police Chief Walt Femling made a comment.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Attorney Adam King made a comment.  
 
MOTION 
Council Member Michelle Griffith moved to authorize the Mayor to instruct staff to move forward on 
the recommendations regarding landscaping encroachments on City rights of way and bring forward one 
or more ordinances on that topic for approval by Council, seconded by Council Member Jane Conard. A 
voice vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Michelle Griffith, Council 

Member Peter Hendricks, and Council Member Jane Conard. 
NAYS: None 
Council President Keith Saks declared the motion approved. 

10.  Discussion and action on Ordinance 475 and the Blue Shield contract following recent Hall 
Render and Idaho Attorney General legal opinions;  

 
MOTION 
Council Member Michelle Griffith moved to enter Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code 74-206 
Section (d) to consider records that are exempt from disclosure as provided in Chapter 1, Title 74 of the 
Idaho Code as relates to City health care issue, seconded by Council Member Peter Hendricks.  A roll call 
vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Michelle Griffith, Council 

Member Peter Hendricks, and Council Member Jane Conard. 
NAYS: None 
Council President Keith Saks declared the motion approved. 

The City Council entered Executive Session at 8:17 p.m. 
 

13

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65145
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65146
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65147
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65148
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65149
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65150
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65151
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65152
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65153
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65154
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65155
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65156
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65157
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65158
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65159
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65160
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65161
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65162
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65163
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65167
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65167
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65167
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65173


Page 13 of 13 
October 5, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

City Administrator Susan Robertson asked which staff members should remain in City Hall pending the 
conclusion of Executive Session. The recording of the meeting was turned off. After a brief conversation 
about staffing requirements, the Council requested staff turn on the meeting recording.  
 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment.  
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Jane Conard moved to clarify or supplement, if it is not already contained in the 
retainer letter with Hall Render in terms of their representation of the City with regard to the health 
insurance matter, to instruct outside counsel to contact legal counsel of Regence to discuss the issues 
regarding cure under the notice that was received on September 29, 2015 from Tim Anderson, Sales 
Associate, so that the City will know what that statement means and what it means to cure, in an 
amount  not to exceed an additional $1,000 beyond previously authorized amount (or a total of $4,000), 
seconded by Council Member Michelle Griffith. A roll call vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Michelle Griffith, Council 

Member Peter Hendricks, and Council Member Jane Conard. 
NAYS: None 
Council President Keith Saks declared the motion approved. 

Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
The Council exited Executive Session at 9:23 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Council President Keith Saks moved to adjourn, seconded by Council Member Michelle Griffith. A roll 
call vote was taken.  

 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Michelle Griffith, Council 

Member Peter Hendricks, and Council Member Jane Conard. 
NAYS: None 
Council President Keith Saks declared the motion approved. 

The meeting adjourned at 9:24 p.m. 

****** 

  _________________________________________  
Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 

 
 
 
_________________________________________  
Alissa Weber, City Clerk 

  

 

14

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65176
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65177
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65178
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65179
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65180
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=732&meta_id=65184


                                                     
                       October 16, 2015 Special City Council Meeting                             Page 1 of 8 

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING  
OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  

IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS - 81 ELKHORN ROAD  
CITY OF SUN VALLEY, IDAHO  

OCTOBER 16, 2015 AT 4:00 P.M. 
 
The Mayor and the City Council of Sun Valley, Blaine County, State of Idaho, met in a Special Council 
Meeting in the Sun Valley City Hall Council Chambers on October 16, 2015 at 04:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 4:02 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: 

Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Michelle Griffith, Council 
Member Peter Hendricks, Council Member Jane Conard, and Mayor Dewayne 
Briscoe.  

ABSENT: None 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Pledge led by Dave Barovetto. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
Jim Bronson made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENT 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Jim Bronson made another comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENT 
None. 
 
MAYOR COMMENT 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
 
QUESTIONS FROM THE PRESS 

15

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65294
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65294
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65294
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65294
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65294
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65295
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65296
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65297
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65298
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65300
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65301
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65302
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65303
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65304
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65305
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65306
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65307
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65308
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65309
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65310
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65311
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65312
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65313
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65314
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65316
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65317


                                                     
                       October 16, 2015 Special City Council Meeting                             Page 2 of 8 

None. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
 
ACTION/DISCUSSION 
1. Discussion and action on Resolution 2015-28 Accepting the Proposal from Cole Architects/TCA 

and Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into a Contract with Cole Architects/TCA for Architectural 
and Engineering Services  

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment. 
City Attorney Adam King commented. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
City Administrator Susan Roberts responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 

16

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65317
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65318
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65319
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65322
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65322
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65322
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65321
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65323
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65324
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65325
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65326
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65327
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65328
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65329
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65330
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65331
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65332
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65333
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65334
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65335
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65336
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65337
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65338
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65339
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65340
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65341
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65342
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65343
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65344
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65345
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65346
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65347
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65348
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65349
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65350
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65351
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65352
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65353
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65354
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65355
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65356
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65357
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65358
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65359
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65360
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65361


                                                     
                       October 16, 2015 Special City Council Meeting                             Page 3 of 8 

City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks asked a question. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 

17

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65362
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65363
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65364
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65365
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65366
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65367
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65368
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65369
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65370
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65371
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65372
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65373
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65374
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65375
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65376
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65377
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65378
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65379
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65381
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65382
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65383
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65384
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65385
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65386
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65387
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65388
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65389
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65390
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65391
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65392
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65393
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65394
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65395
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65396
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65397
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65398
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65399
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65400
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65401
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65402
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65403
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65404
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65405
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65406
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65407
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65408
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65409


                                                     
                       October 16, 2015 Special City Council Meeting                             Page 4 of 8 

Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco commented. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Fire Chief Franco commented. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco commented. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
City Attorney Adam King commented. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 

18

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65410
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65411
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65412
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65413
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65414
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65415
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65416
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65417
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65418
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65419
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65420
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65421
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65422
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65423
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65424
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65425
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65426
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65427
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65428
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65429
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65430
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65431
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65432
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65433
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65434
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65435
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65436
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65437
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65438
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65439
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65440
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65441
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65442
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65443
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65444
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65445
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65446
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65447
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65448
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65449
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65450
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65451
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65452
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65453
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65454
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65455
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65456
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65457


                                                     
                       October 16, 2015 Special City Council Meeting                             Page 5 of 8 

Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Fire Chief Ray Franco responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Fire Chief Franco commented. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
City Administrator Susan Robertson responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
 
2. Recognition of violation of Idaho Open Meeting Laws with regards to action taken in Executive 

Session during the October 5, 2015 Regular City Council meeting and action to cure under Idaho 
Code 74-208(7);  

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard asked a question. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Jane Conard moved that City Council declare, based on the potential violation of the 
open public meeting act, that the motion to amend the Hall Render contract be declared null and void in 
order to cure any potential violation as prescribed by Idaho Statute, seconded by Council Member 
Michelle Griffith. A roll call vote was taken. 
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Michelle Griffith, Council 

Member Jane Conard, and Council Member Peter Hendricks. 
NAYS: None 
Council President Keith Saks declared the motion approved. 

19

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65458
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65459
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65460
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65461
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65462
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65463
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65464
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65465
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65466
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65467
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65468
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65469
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65470
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65471
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65472
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65473
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65474
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65475
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65476
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65477
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65477
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65477
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65478
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65479
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65480
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65481
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65482
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65483
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65484
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65485
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65486
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65487
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65488
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65489
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65490


                                                     
                       October 16, 2015 Special City Council Meeting                             Page 6 of 8 

3. Discussion and action on Resolution 2015-29 Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Amended 
Agreement for Legal Services with Hall Render;  

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard responded. 
Council President Keith Saks made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard responded. 
 
Motion 
Council Member Jane Conard moved to authorize Resolution 2015-29, with the amendment of the 
contract amount not to exceed $5,000, which is the total obligation, not an additional obligation, 
seconded by Council Member Peter Hendricks. A voice vote was taken. 
 
AYES: Mayor Dewayne Briscoe, Council President Keith Saks, Council Member 

Michelle Griffith, Council Member Jane Conard, and Council Member Peter 
Hendricks.  

NAYS: None 
The Mayor declared the motion approved. 
 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
 
4. First Reading of Ordinance No. 478 An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance No. 475  

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 

20

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65493
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65493
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65494
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65495
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65496
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65497
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65498
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65499
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65500
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65501
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65502
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65503
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65504
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65505
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65506
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65507
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65508
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65509
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65510
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65511
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65512
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65513
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65514
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65515
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65516
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65517
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65518
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65519
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65521
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65522
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65523
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65524
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65525
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65526
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65527


                                                     
                       October 16, 2015 Special City Council Meeting                             Page 7 of 8 

Council President Keith Saks responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe made a comment. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
City Attorney Adam King responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Peter Hendricks responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard responded. 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Jane Conard moved to request the City Treasurer send a letter to Associate General 

21

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65528
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65529
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65530
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65531
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65532
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65533
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65534
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65535
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65536
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65537
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65538
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65539
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65540
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65541
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65542
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65543
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65544
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65545
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65546
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65547
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65548
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65549
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65550
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65551
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65552
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65553
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65554
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65555
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65556
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65557
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65558
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65559
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65560
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65561
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65562
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65563
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65564
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65565
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65566
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65567
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65568
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65569
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65570
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65571
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65572


                                                     
                       October 16, 2015 Special City Council Meeting                             Page 8 of 8 

Counsel Jennifer Yeh stating that based on the facts that Sun Valley is no longer, nor will be in the 
future, paying the Council members cash in lieu of coverage and that the amounts of reimbursement 
have ceased and will not be made so long as this current contract of insurance is in effect, there is no 
need to terminate and, in respect to HIPAA and rights of privacy, the City is not going to identify 
amounts of the reimbursement, seconded by Council Member Michelle Griffith. A voice vote was taken. 
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Michelle Griffith, Council 

Member Jane Conard, and Council Member Peter Hendricks. 
NAYS: None 
The Mayor declared the motion approved. 

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Council President Keith Saks responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
Council Member Jane Conard made a comment. 
Council Member Michelle Griffith responded. 
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe responded. 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION 
Council Member Jane Conard moved to adjourn, seconded by Council Member Peter Hendricks. A roll 
call vote was taken.  
 
AYES: Council President Keith Saks, Council Member Michelle Griffith, Council 

Member Jane Conard, and Council Member Peter Hendricks. 
NAYS: None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 

 
****** 

 
  _________________________________________  

Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 
 
 
 
_________________________________________  
Nancy Flannigan, Assistant City Clerk 

  

 

22

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65575
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65576
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65577
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65578
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65579
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65580
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65581
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65582
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=734&meta_id=65582


CITY OF SUN VALLEY Paid Invoice Report - Detail Report Page:     1
Payment due dates: 10/1/2015 - 10/31/2015 Oct 30, 2015  10:43AM

Report Criteria:
Detail report type printed

Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Discount Check Check Check
Number Name Number Description Seq Date Amount Amount Amount Number Issue Date

1080 ALLINGTON, FREDRICK  091815 SEMI-ANNUAL PROSECU 1 09/18/2015 11,950.50 .00 11,950.50 50867 10/06/2015

Total 1080: 11,950.50 .00 11,950.50

1345 BOISE MOBILE EQUIPME 16119 New batteries for radios an 1 08/31/2015 602.21 .00 602.21 50806 09/30/2015

Total 1345: 602.21 .00 602.21

1405 BUSINESS AS USUAL 127612 Notary stamp for Nancy Fla 1 08/31/2015 36.95 .00 36.95 50807 09/30/2015

Total 1405: 36.95 .00 36.95

1419 CALIFORNIA CONTRACT T1189 Flash lights and tool bag fo 1 09/14/2015 144.60 .00 144.60 50809 09/30/2015

Total 1419: 144.60 .00 144.60

1430 CASELLE, INC 67543 Contract Support & Mainte 1 09/01/2015 553.67 .00 553.67 50778 09/14/2015

Total 1430: 553.67 .00 553.67

1460 CHATEAU DRUG 081915 light bulb/batteries 1 08/19/2015 49.95 .00 49.95 50810 09/30/2015
081915 Elkhorn Springs #3 shower  2 08/19/2015 3.99 .00 3.99 50810 09/30/2015

Total 1460: 53.94 .00 53.94

1535 COX COMMUNICATIONS 7601.0915 Internet Service 81 Elkhorn  1 09/01/2015 91.13 .00 91.13 50780 09/14/2015

Total 1535: 91.13 .00 91.13

1560 L. N.  CURTIS & SON 3160537-00 1/2 split with Ketchum Tita 1 06/01/2015 210.00 .00 210.00 50835 09/30/2015

Total 1560: 210.00 .00 210.00

1675 E C POWER SYSTEMS O 237614 City Hall Generator Service 1 08/31/2015 371.74 .00 371.74 50812 09/30/2015

Total 1675: 371.74 .00 371.74

1681 EAGLE ENGRAVING, INC 2015-1641 collar insignia Lieutenant  c 1 06/22/2015 40.95 .00 40.95 50813 09/30/2015

Total 1681: 40.95 .00 40.95

1780 FIRE ENGINEERING 14519 Fire extinguisher service fo 1 09/16/2015 329.00 .00 329.00 50814 09/30/2015

Total 1780: 329.00 .00 329.00

1793 FIRE SERVICES OF IDAH 14520 Fire extinguisher service fo 1 09/16/2015 134.00 .00 134.00 50815 09/30/2015
14521 Fire extinguisher service fo 1 09/16/2015 163.00 .00 163.00 50815 09/30/2015
14523 Fire extinguisher service fo 1 09/16/2015 396.00 .00 396.00 50815 09/30/2015

Total 1793: 693.00 .00 693.00

1810 FLOYD LILLY COMPANY 214090 Mag chloride Pump rebuild 1 09/10/2015 28.24 .00 28.24 50816 09/30/2015

23



CITY OF SUN VALLEY Paid Invoice Report - Detail Report Page:     2
Payment due dates: 10/1/2015 - 10/31/2015 Oct 30, 2015  10:43AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Discount Check Check Check
Number Name Number Description Seq Date Amount Amount Amount Number Issue Date

Total 1810: 28.24 .00 28.24

1840 GEM STATE PAPER 970903-00 Tissues, bath tissue, knive 1 09/02/2015 300.63 .00 300.63 50819 09/30/2015

Total 1840: 300.63 .00 300.63

1880 GYM OUTFITTERS 5591 Clean and service all gym  1 09/11/2015 80.00 .00 80.00 50821 09/30/2015

Total 1880: 80.00 .00 80.00

1950 AC HOUSTON LUMBER C 014-503313 Sheetrock mud for wall at  1 08/28/2015 24.59 .00 24.59 50802 09/30/2015
014-503313 Training - material for roof t 2 08/28/2015 62.34 .00 62.34 50802 09/30/2015
014-503313 Trim for radio shelf 3 08/28/2015 3.85 .00 3.85 50802 09/30/2015

Total 1950: 90.78 .00 90.78

1990 ICRMP 100115.0930 Member Contribution 1 09/01/2015 45,311.00 .00 45,311.00 50824 09/30/2015

Total 1990: 45,311.00 .00 45,311.00

2025 IDAHO DEPT OF LABOR 072015 Unemployment insurance -  1 07/31/2015 242.03 .00 242.03 50825 09/30/2015

Total 2025: 242.03 .00 242.03

2055 IDAHO POWER 2202070641. Juniper/Elkhorn Rd Light 1 09/03/2015 4.55 .00 4.55 50782 09/14/2015
2221231000. 115 Angani Way 3 /Sun Va 1 08/24/2015 14.70 .00 14.70 50782 09/14/2015
2221231000. 100 Arrowleaf cell / Sun VA 2 08/24/2015 916.45 .00 916.45 50782 09/14/2015
2221231000. 104 Grey Eagle 3 08/24/2015 9.53 .00 9.53 50782 09/14/2015

Total 2055: 945.23 .00 945.23

2125 INTERMOUNTAIN GAS C 1467123000 81 Elkhorn 1 08/25/2015 12.38 .00 12.38 50783 09/14/2015

Total 2125: 12.38 .00 12.38

2215 JOE'S BACKHOE SERVIC 19045 Installed valley gutter near  1 06/25/2015 7,100.00 .00 7,100.00 50832 09/30/2015
19478 Grader/Water tank for chip  1 09/03/2015 525.00 .00 525.00 50832 09/30/2015

Total 2215: 7,625.00 .00 7,625.00

2370 INTEGRATED TECHNOL 30268 Contract base rate and cop 1 08/25/2015 55.00 .00 55.00 50828 09/30/2015
30831 Copier ink 1 08/31/2015 70.00 .00 70.00 50828 09/30/2015
30937 Contract base rate and cop 1 08/31/2015 105.03 .00 105.03 50828 09/30/2015
30941 Contract base rate and cop 1 08/31/2015 28.00 .00 28.00 50828 09/30/2015
31893 3 different color cartridges f 1 09/14/2015 354.00 .00 354.00 50828 09/30/2015

Total 2370: 612.03 .00 612.03

2405 LEXISNEXIS MATTHEW B 74548727 (2) 2015 crime and traffic b 1 09/01/2015 134.48 .00 134.48 50836 09/30/2015

Total 2405: 134.48 .00 134.48

2495 MOORE MEDICAL GROU 17454276 EMS gloves (M, L, XL), syri 1 06/29/2015 421.82 .00 421.82 50838 09/30/2015
98705494I Epinephrine 1 mg vial, glov 1 06/29/2015 239.35 .00 239.35 50838 09/30/2015

987444481 Epinephrine 1 mg vial for E 1 07/31/2015 65.45 .00 65.45 50838 09/30/2015

24



CITY OF SUN VALLEY Paid Invoice Report - Detail Report Page:     3
Payment due dates: 10/1/2015 - 10/31/2015 Oct 30, 2015  10:43AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Discount Check Check Check
Number Name Number Description Seq Date Amount Amount Amount Number Issue Date

Total 2495: 726.62 .00 726.62

2535 NAPA AUTO PARTS 826386 Heater/AC parts for 2006 F 1 09/01/2015 45.95 .00 45.95 50839 09/30/2015
826719 Heater/AC parts for 2006 F 1 09/03/2015 62.29 .00 62.29 50839 09/30/2015
827045 Oshkosh plow truck LED h 1 09/08/2015 889.60 .00 889.60 50839 09/30/2015

Total 2535: 997.84 .00 997.84

2570 NORCO 16716153 Oxygen Cylinder Rental for  1 08/31/2015 119.04 .00 119.04 50840 09/30/2015

Total 2570: 119.04 .00 119.04

2600 OHIO GULCH TRANSFER  010662/0112 Wood Waste disposal/asph 1 08/27/2015 8.40 .00 8.40 50842 09/30/2015
010662/0112 Wood Waste disposal 2 08/27/2015 3.00 .00 3.00 50842 09/30/2015

012452 Clean Wood Waste for the  1 09/14/2015 1.70 .00 1.70 50842 09/30/2015
012452 Clean Wood Waste for the  2 09/14/2015 2.70 .00 2.70 50842 09/30/2015

Total 2600: 15.80 .00 15.80

2635 OVERHEAD DOOR CO 334836 Replace rollers on fire bay  1 09/11/2015 192.50 .00 192.50 50843 09/30/2015

Total 2635: 192.50 .00 192.50

2690 PIPECO,INC. S2238252.00 Plumbing parts for Mag Clo 1 09/18/2015 18.76 .00 18.76 50844 09/30/2015

Total 2690: 18.76 .00 18.76

2845 RIVER RUN AUTO 112855 sweeper dust control parts 1 08/22/2015 31.07 .00 31.07 50845 09/30/2015
112855 Auto fuses 2 08/22/2015 19.96 .00 19.96 50845 09/30/2015
113978 Small equipment carbureto 1 09/10/2015 35.85 .00 35.85 50845 09/30/2015

Total 2845: 86.88 .00 86.88

2861 ROAD WORK AHEAD CO TS-1298 Chip seal traffic control and  1 08/26/2015 7,384.25 .00 7,384.25 50846 09/30/2015
TS-1330 Chip seal traffic control and  1 08/31/2015 687.50 .00 687.50 50846 09/30/2015
TS-1371 Traffic control and sign rent 1 09/09/2015 1,044.25 .00 1,044.25 50846 09/30/2015

Total 2861: 9,116.00 .00 9,116.00

2955 SENTINEL FIRE & SECUR R4099 Annual Monitoring Fee for  1 06/24/2015 360.00 .00 360.00 50848 09/30/2015

Total 2955: 360.00 .00 360.00

2980 SIRCHIE FINGERPRINT L 0222900 Fingerprint supplies:  latent  1 09/11/2015 361.00 .00 361.00 50851 09/30/2015
0222900 Fingerprint supplies:  Micro 2 09/11/2015 22.50 .00 22.50 50851 09/30/2015

Total 2980: 383.50 .00 383.50

3045 STATE TAX COMMISSIO 083115 August state tax 1 08/31/2015 8,226.00 .00 8,226.00 50785 09/14/2015

Total 3045: 8,226.00 .00 8,226.00

3075 SUN VALLEY CLEANERS,  082515 Dry cleaning Police 1 08/27/2005 368.45 .00 368.45 50853 09/30/2015

Total 3075: 368.45 .00 368.45

25



CITY OF SUN VALLEY Paid Invoice Report - Detail Report Page:     4
Payment due dates: 10/1/2015 - 10/31/2015 Oct 30, 2015  10:43AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Discount Check Check Check
Number Name Number Description Seq Date Amount Amount Amount Number Issue Date

3085 SUN VALLEY GARDEN C RCPT-84530 104 Grey Eagle grass mow 1 08/31/2015 720.00 .00 720.00 50854 09/30/2015

Total 3085: 720.00 .00 720.00

3100 SUN VALLEY WATER & S 104 GREY E Water and sewer charges f 1 09/03/2015 817.32 .00 817.32 50786 09/14/2015
15.01/9/10/1 Bike Path - North 1 09/01/2015 806.35 .00 806.35 50786 09/14/2015
16.01/9/10/1 SV Road - Horseman Ctr 1 09/01/2015 1,937.20 .00 1,937.20 50786 09/14/2015
2201/9/10/11 Elkhorn Fire Station 1 09/01/2015 412.86 .00 412.86 50786 09/14/2015
ARTS CENT Arts Center Parcel 1 09/01/2015 1,447.90 .00 1,447.90 50786 09/14/2015
SV CITY HA SV City Hall 1 09/01/2015 459.27 .00 459.27 50786 09/14/2015

Total 3100: 5,880.90 .00 5,880.90

3110 SUNRISE ENVIRO SCIEN 53177 Grime fighter turn out clean 1 08/10/2015 144.10 .00 144.10 50856 09/30/2015

Total 3110: 144.10 .00 144.10

3112 SUNSEAL ASPHALT MAI 8417 Painting arrows, path cross 1 09/10/2015 674.00 .00 674.00 50857 09/30/2015

Total 3112: 674.00 .00 674.00

3253 UNITED OIL 806299 Fuel for Police Department  1 08/31/2015 626.48 .00 626.48 50787 09/14/2015
806300 Fuel for all fire department  1 08/31/2015 797.18 .00 797.18 50861 09/30/2015
806301 Fuel for street dept. 8/18/1 1 08/31/2015 418.43 .00 418.43 50787 09/14/2015
807545 Fuel for Police Department  1 09/15/2015 547.91 .00 547.91 50861 09/30/2015
807547 Fuel for street dept. 9/04/1 1 09/15/2015 225.99 .00 225.99 50861 09/30/2015

Total 3253: 2,615.99 .00 2,615.99

3290 VALLEY MAINTENANCE 3684-003 Work force housing deep cl 1 09/02/2015 785.00 .00 785.00 50862 09/30/2015

Total 3290: 785.00 .00 785.00

3355 WELLS FARGO BANK, N. 0052.080115 Century Link - T1 line 1 08/01/2015 391.71 .00 391.71 50872 10/09/2015
015875 Rock Creek Fire registratio 1 09/15/2015 160.00 .00 160.00 50872 10/09/2015
082615 Westage LV- deposit for ro 1 08/26/2015 77.28 .00 77.28 50872 10/09/2015
090115 TransUnion Subscription 1 09/01/2015 3.75 .00 3.75 50872 10/09/2015
091015 Bigwood - City Council me 1 09/10/2015 104.06 .00 104.06 50872 10/09/2015

09115 Atkinsons-City Council me 1 09/01/2015 167.56 .00 167.56 50872 10/09/2015
24992 Conference fee for training  1 09/04/2015 475.00 .00 475.00 50872 10/09/2015

3401.081315 CenturyLink-City Hall Fax.3 1 08/13/2015 163.28 .00 163.28 50872 10/09/2015
4438.081315 CenturyLink-City Hall.4438. 1 08/13/2015 515.21 .00 515.21 50872 10/09/2015

64237 Active 911 yearly 1 08/19/2015 329.00 .00 329.00 50872 10/09/2015
64237 Uniform cap for asst. chief 2 08/19/2015 84.10 .00 84.10 50872 10/09/2015
64237 Paypal-Fire instructor 2 cla 3 08/19/2015 450.00 .00 450.00 50872 10/09/2015

68634597 Northern Tool-grease gun f 1 08/31/2015 250.23 .00 250.23 50872 10/09/2015
7605.081315 CenturyLink-Police Fax.76 1 08/13/2015 178.83 .00 178.83 50872 10/09/2015

76144 Lowes/ Light shades for cit 1 09/10/2015 27.75 .00 27.75 50872 10/09/2015
834622544 Sears-refund for return of 4  1 08/18/2015 164.11- .00 164.11- 50872 10/09/2015

91515 Blood work (evidence) for  1 09/15/2015 6.59 .00 6.59 50872 10/09/2015
9750654332 Verizon-CDD 1 08/13/2015 66.00 .00 66.00 50872 10/09/2015
9750654332 Verizon-FD 2 08/13/2015 334.57 .00 334.57 50872 10/09/2015
9750654332 Verizon-AD 3 08/13/2015 140.98 .00 140.98 50872 10/09/2015
9750654332 Verizon-SD 4 08/13/2015 137.18 .00 137.18 50872 10/09/2015
9750654332 Verizon-PD 5 08/13/2015 377.17 .00 377.17 50872 10/09/2015

LBOI129846 Alsco-mats for Streets 1 08/10/2015 26.10 .00 26.10 50872 10/09/2015
LBOI129846 Alsco-mats for City Hall 1 08/10/2015 23.64 .00 23.64 50872 10/09/2015

26



CITY OF SUN VALLEY Paid Invoice Report - Detail Report Page:     5
Payment due dates: 10/1/2015 - 10/31/2015 Oct 30, 2015  10:43AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Discount Check Check Check
Number Name Number Description Seq Date Amount Amount Amount Number Issue Date

LBOI129846 Alsco-mats for City Hall 1 08/10/2015 38.60 .00 38.60 50872 10/09/2015
LBOI129846 Alsco-mats for Fire Dept. 1 08/10/2015 38.81 .00 38.81 50872 10/09/2015
LBOI130304 Alsco-mats for Streets 1 08/24/2015 26.10 .00 26.10 50872 10/09/2015
LBOI130305 Alsco mats for PD 1 08/24/2015 23.64 .00 23.64 50872 10/09/2015
LBOI130305 Alsco-mats for City Hall 1 08/24/2015 38.60 .00 38.60 50872 10/09/2015
LBOI130305 Alsco-mats for Fire Dept. 1 08/24/2015 33.95 .00 33.95 50872 10/09/2015

Total 3355: 4,525.58 .00 4,525.58

3403 WIRTH COMPANY, THE 35756 Plow damage repair for 20 1 09/15/2015 121.71 .00 121.71 50865 09/30/2015

Total 3403: 121.71 .00 121.71

3958 BISNETT INSURANCE IN 14987 Notary Bond / Errors & Omi 1 09/08/2015 60.00 .00 60.00 50805 09/30/2015

Total 3958: 60.00 .00 60.00

3986 SIDWELL COMMUNICATI 1146 Phone line repair 1 08/31/2015 130.00 .00 130.00 50850 09/30/2015

Total 3986: 130.00 .00 130.00

4080 OFFICEBRIGHT, INC 3989 Office cleaning per propos 1 09/21/2015 1,170.00 .00 1,170.00 50841 09/30/2015

Total 4080: 1,170.00 .00 1,170.00

4133 COPY & PRINT 66295 Toner Cartridge (black) Pol 1 07/02/2015 83.99 .00 83.99 50811 09/30/2015
67273 1 case of 81/2 x11 paper fo 1 08/17/2015 50.37 .00 50.37 50811 09/30/2015
67542 Business cards for Angela  1 09/15/2015 54.99 .00 54.99 50811 09/30/2015
67753 1 case of 81/2 x11 paper fo 1 09/11/2015 37.99 .00 37.99 50811 09/30/2015
67862 Hand wipes for fingerprintin 1 09/22/2015 15.18 .00 15.18 50811 09/30/2015

Total 4133: 242.52 .00 242.52

4135 NATIONAL BENEFITS AD CP112117 Payment for HRA claims 1 08/31/2015 1,722.80 .00 1,722.80 50784 09/14/2015
CP112117 Payment for HRA claims 2 08/31/2015 293.67 .00 293.67 50784 09/14/2015
CP112117 Payment for HRA claims 3 08/31/2015 12.43 .00 12.43 50784 09/14/2015
CP112117 Payment for HRA claims 4 08/31/2015 18.00 .00 18.00 50784 09/14/2015

Total 4135: 2,046.90 .00 2,046.90

4241 FRANCO, RAY 082815 Reimbursement to Ray Fra 1 08/28/2015 225.33 .00 225.33 50817 09/30/2015

Total 4241: 225.33 .00 225.33

4243 KETCHUM COMPUTERS 11966 Computer Support - 8/15/1 1 09/01/2015 437.50 .00 437.50 50833 09/30/2015
12011 Computer Support - 9/1/15- 1 09/17/2015 281.25 .00 281.25 50833 09/30/2015

Total 4243: 718.75 .00 718.75

4293 KING, ADAM  ATTORNEY  92484 Legal Services - Confidenti 1 09/24/2015 647.50 .00 647.50 50834 09/30/2015
92485 Legal Services - Confidenti 1 09/24/2015 2,467.50 .00 2,467.50 50834 09/30/2015
92486 Legal Services - Public Mat 1 09/24/2015 560.00 .00 560.00 50834 09/30/2015

Total 4293: 3,675.00 .00 3,675.00

4364 AK PEST MANAGEMENT 3037 Weed abatement 1 08/27/2015 3,875.00 .00 3,875.00 50803 09/30/2015

27



CITY OF SUN VALLEY Paid Invoice Report - Detail Report Page:     6
Payment due dates: 10/1/2015 - 10/31/2015 Oct 30, 2015  10:43AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Discount Check Check Check
Number Name Number Description Seq Date Amount Amount Amount Number Issue Date

Total 4364: 3,875.00 .00 3,875.00

4386 ROBRAHN, TAAN 99395020 Reimbursement for parts o 1 08/26/2015 192.19 .00 192.19 50847 09/30/2015

Total 4386: 192.19 .00 192.19

4403 GREAT AMERICA FINAN 17487381 Copier lease 1 08/31/2015 251.00 .00 251.00 50781 09/14/2015
17487382 Copier lease - Police 1 08/31/2015 141.00 .00 141.00 50781 09/14/2015

Total 4403: 392.00 .00 392.00

4458 FREIGHTLINER OF IDAH 176014 Oshkosh air comp. parts 1 08/31/2015 29.92 .00 29.92 50818 09/30/2015
177076 Oshkosh transfer case oil 1 09/22/2015 86.45 .00 86.45 50818 09/30/2015

Total 4458: 116.37 .00 116.37

4467 SUN VALLEY MARKETIN JUL July 2015 - per contract 20 1 07/31/2015 68,001.04 .00 68,001.04 50855 09/30/2015

Total 4467: 68,001.04 .00 68,001.04

4503 CENTURYLINK 9919-0815 Frame Relay / Police Dept.  1 08/11/2015 261.19 .00 261.19 50779 09/14/2015

Total 4503: 261.19 .00 261.19

4536 MOFFATT THOMAS 205102 Legal Services and Costs t 1 09/21/2015 660.00 .00 660.00 50837 09/30/2015

Total 4536: 660.00 .00 660.00

4569 SHERWIN WILLIAMS 1405-9 Paint for fire hydrants 1 09/01/2015 30.33 .00 30.33 50849 09/30/2015

Total 4569: 30.33 .00 30.33

4572 WHITE CLOUD COMMUNI 82328 Narrow band radios for stre 1 08/17/2015 80.00 .00 80.00 50864 09/30/2015

Total 4572: 80.00 .00 80.00

4576 WALLS, ANGELA 101215 Travel advance for Caselle  1 10/09/2015 479.78 .00 479.78 50871 10/09/2015

Total 4576: 479.78 .00 479.78

4598 TREASURE VALLEY COF 2160:041938 Coffee for all departments 1 09/15/2015 12.05 .00 12.05 50859 09/30/2015
2160:041938 Coffee for all departments 2 09/15/2015 12.05 .00 12.05 50859 09/30/2015
2160:041938 Coffee for all departments 3 09/15/2015 12.05 .00 12.05 50859 09/30/2015
2160:041938 Coffee for all departments 4 09/15/2015 12.05 .00 12.05 50859 09/30/2015
2160:041938 Coffee for all departments 5 09/15/2015 12.05 .00 12.05 50859 09/30/2015

Total 4598: 60.25 .00 60.25

4611 TEAM EAGLE 15693 Oshkosh air valves and sol 1 09/01/2015 766.11 .00 766.11 50858 09/30/2015

Total 4611: 766.11 .00 766.11

4631 INREACH DL08552408 Monthly dues 1 09/07/2015 91.80 .00 91.80 50827 09/30/2015

Total 4631: 91.80 .00 91.80

28



CITY OF SUN VALLEY Paid Invoice Report - Detail Report Page:     7
Payment due dates: 10/1/2015 - 10/31/2015 Oct 30, 2015  10:43AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Discount Check Check Check
Number Name Number Description Seq Date Amount Amount Amount Number Issue Date

4679 SUN VALLEY AIR SERVIC JULY 2015 Direct cost deduction 1 09/14/2015 512.69- .00 512.69- 50790 09/14/2015
JULY 2015 July 2015 1% Air Service L 2 09/14/2015 96,435.96 .00 96,435.96 50790 09/14/2015

Total 4679: 95,923.27 .00 95,923.27

4680 BUTTERFIELD, CHARLES 091615 Per Diem Reimbursement   1 09/16/2015 266.25 .00 266.25 50774 09/11/2015
091615 Reimbursement cab fare a 2 09/16/2015 59.18 .00 59.18 50808 09/30/2015

Total 4680: 325.43 .00 325.43

4683 JEROME PETERBILT 146408 3 fire filters for wildland truc 1 06/22/2015 43.02 .00 43.02 50830 09/30/2015

Total 4683: 43.02 .00 43.02

4700 UL LLC 7202008865 Ladder truck inspection an 1 06/17/2015 2,098.66 .00 2,098.66 50860 09/30/2015

Total 4700: 2,098.66 .00 2,098.66

4721 JIM FREEMAN LANDSCA 090215 Irrigation repair/shoulder w 1 09/02/2015 101.00 .00 101.00 50831 09/30/2015

Total 4721: 101.00 .00 101.00

4742 WEBER, ALISSA 091515 Payment for travel to AIC C 1 09/15/2015 304.11 .00 304.11 50788 09/14/2015

Total 4742: 304.11 .00 304.11

4746 HILL, JEFFREY 082915 Airport Parking 8/29 to 9/4 1 08/29/2015 80.50 .00 80.50 50823 09/30/2015

Total 4746: 80.50 .00 80.50

4766 Wayt, Rachel 090215 NIBRS training 1 day class 1 09/02/2015 107.86 .00 107.86 50777 09/11/2015

Total 4766: 107.86 .00 107.86

4767 Wood River Land Trust 2015 2015 Trout Friendly Partne 1 09/01/2015 200.00 .00 200.00 50866 09/30/2015

Total 4767: 200.00 .00 200.00

4769 Weidner Fire 109544 Gear bags for turn outs fire  1 08/25/2015 489.70 .00 489.70 50863 09/30/2015
109656 1 1inch ball valve nozzle a 1 09/04/2015 933.00 .00 933.00 50863 09/30/2015

Total 4769: 1,422.70 .00 1,422.70

4770 Sun Valley Center for the A CITYOFSV Sponsorship of the 2015 S 1 08/31/2015 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 50852 09/30/2015

Total 4770: 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00

4771 Hall Render Killian Heath &  318720 Evaluating confidential lega 1 09/18/2015 930.00 .00 930.00 50822 09/30/2015

Total 4771: 930.00 .00 930.00

Grand Totals: 293,349.27 .00 293,349.27

29



CITY OF SUN VALLEY Paid Invoice Report - Detail Report Page:     8
Payment due dates: 10/1/2015 - 10/31/2015 Oct 30, 2015  10:43AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Discount Check Check Check
Number Name Number Description Seq Date Amount Amount Amount Number Issue Date

Report Criteria:
Detail report type printed

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Increase/ 
Decrease of 
FY15 as 
Compared 
to FY14

Retail 108,495 97,834 122,555 93,909 120,942 104,284 -14%
Lodging 84,923 76,779 93,537 70,471 85,723 80,047 -7%
Liquor 11,057 11,499 13,164 4,336 14,946 14,745 -1%
Totals 204,474 186,112 229,256 168,716 221,612 199,076 -10%

Detail Summary of Comparative YTD Receipts for the 
months of October - September.

2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Increase/ 
Decrease of 
FY15 as 
Compared 
to FY14

October 69,432 75,542 49,847 56,260 58,531 54,565 -7%
November 50,477 34,116 46,298 41,355 42,734 37,762 -12%
December 97,420 106,190 114,930 126,671 130,540 112,858 -14%
January 96,559 89,043 82,380 95,770 87,247 89,162 2%
February 101,944 115,014 101,797 113,281 112,073 86,860 -22%
March 91,122 110,729 90,809 113,200 99,304 79,737 -20%
April 46,747 37,056 42,642 38,852 34,842 44,844 29%
May 40,743 47,475 52,181 44,172 37,150 47,019 27%
June 94,222 92,378 101,367 98,969 107,341 122,567 14%
July 196,552 229,127 215,845 228,946 234,419 275,874 18%
August 204,474 192,799 229,256 168,716 221,612 199,076 -10%
September 106,162 117,748 95,516 122,331 91,906 -100%
Fiscal Year Total 1,195,854 1,247,217 1,222,868 1,248,522 1,257,699 1,150,324  

Year-To-Date Receipts 1,089,692 1,129,469 1,127,352 1,126,191 1,165,794 1,150,324 -1%
        Comparison (October - September)

Local Option Tax receipts for the month of August 2015 totaled $199,076 representing an
10% decrease in receipts in August 2014. 

Monthly LOT Comparison for August 2015 Receipts

10/30/201510:41 AM
57



CITY OF SUN VALLEY

LOT Retail Receipts Figures

Monthly LOT Comparison for August 2015 Receipts2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Increase/ 
Decrease of 
FY15 as 
Compared 
to FY14

October 40,952 46,790 26,180 30,436 31,543 35,839 14%
November 21,218 22,367 29,001 25,537 26,945 23,400 -13%
December 56,371 62,823 65,920 71,156 68,666 66,925 -3%
January 46,260 47,097 41,884 47,746 43,385 51,580 19%
February 46,369 57,260 50,924 51,566 58,014 50,521 -13%
March 40,818 51,052 41,019 53,430 49,015 42,977 -12%
April 28,670 21,899 26,465 27,301 23,605 32,233 37%
May 29,790 39,678 37,816 31,877 28,025 36,001 28%
June 58,265 56,498 62,166 57,884 68,192 68,606 1%
July 106,899 121,472 112,979 121,980 127,521 145,354 14%
August 108,495 97,834 122,555 93,909 120,942 104,284 -14%
September 61,140 61,763 57,049 74,778 55,549 -100%
Fiscal Year Total 645,246 686,532 673,960 687,600 701,403 657,720

Year-To-Date Receipts 584,107 624,769 616,911 612,822 645,853 657,720 2%
Comparison- (October - September)

10:41 AM10/30/2015
58



CITY OF SUN VALLEY

LOT Lodging Receipts Figures

Monthly LOT Comparison for August 2015 Receipts2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Increase/ 
Decrease 
of FY15 as 
Compared 
to FY14

October 23,982 24,627 19,946 21,712 22,585 15,550 -31%
November 7,134 9,462 14,358 13,014 13,567 12,187 -10%
December 34,593 36,247 40,756 46,347 53,815 39,496 -27%
January 43,833 35,394 34,636 41,194 37,577 32,835 -13%
February 48,303 50,052 43,826 54,235 48,420 31,724 -34%
March 44,285 55,640 43,588 52,824 43,513 32,698 -25%
April 15,948 12,695 13,948 9,715 9,601 11,217 17%
May 8,728 6,205 12,456 9,152 6,943 9,313 34%
June 32,176 31,711 34,758 36,811 34,598 47,142 36%
July 82,858 95,637 92,511 96,446 95,933 116,446 21%
August 84,923 76,779 93,537 70,471 85,723 80,047 -7%
September 39,534 44,818 32,872 45,171 31,453 -100%
Fiscal Year Total 466,296 479,267 477,191 497,094 483,727 428,657

Year-To-Date Receipts 426,762 434,449 444,320 451,923 452,274 428,657 -5%
Comparison (October - September)

10/30/201510:41 AM
59



CITY OF SUN VALLEY

LOT Liquor Receipts Figures

Monthly LOT Comparison for August 2015 Receipts2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Increase/ 
Decrease of 
FY15 as 
Compared 
to FY14

October 4,499 4,126 3,721 4,112 4,403 3,176 -28%
November 22,125 2,287 2,939 2,804 2,222 2,174 -2%
December 6,456 7,120 8,254 9,167 8,059 6,437 -20%
January 6,466 6,552 5,860 6,830 6,285 4,747 -24%
February 7,272 7,702 7,046 7,479 5,640 4,614 -18%
March 6,019 4,036 6,202 6,946 6,777 4,063 -40%
April 2,129 2,462 2,229 1,837 1,636 1,394 -15%
May 2,224 1,592 1,909 3,142 2,181 1,705 -22%
June 3,781 4,170 4,443 4,273 4,552 6,819 50%
July 6,795 12,019 10,355 10,520 10,965 14,074 28%
August 11,057 11,499 13,164 4,336 14,946 14,745 -1%
September 5,488 17,854 5,595 2,381 4,904 -100%
Fiscal Year Total 84,312 81,418 71,717 63,828 72,570 63,947

Year-To-Date Receipts 78,823 63,564 66,122 61,447 67,666 63,947 -5%
Comparison (October - September)

10:41 AM10/30/2015
60



2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Increase/ 
Decrease of 
FY15 as 
Compared 
to FY14

Retail 108,495 97,834 122,555 93,909 120,942 104,284 -14%
Lodging 84,923 76,779 93,537 70,471 85,723 80,047 -7%
Liquor 11,057 11,499 13,164 4,336 14,946 14,745 -1%
Totals 204,474 186,112 229,256 168,716 221,612 199,076 -10%

Detail Summary of Comparative YTD Receipts for the 
months of October - September.

2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Increase/ 
Decrease of 
FY15 as 
Compared 
to FY14

October 69,432 75,542 49,847 56,260 58,531 54,565 -7%
November 50,477 34,116 46,298 41,355 42,734 37,762 -12%
December 97,420 106,190 114,930 126,671 130,540 112,858 -14%
January 96,559 89,043 82,380 95,770 87,247 89,162 2%
February 101,944 115,014 101,797 113,281 112,073 86,860 -22%
March 91,122 110,729 90,809 113,200 99,304 79,737 -20%
April 46,747 37,056 42,642 38,852 34,842 44,844 29%
May 40,743 47,475 52,181 44,172 37,150 47,019 27%
June 94,222 92,378 101,367 98,969 107,341 122,567 14%
July 196,552 229,127 215,845 228,946 234,419 275,874 18%
August 204,474 192,799 229,256 168,716 221,612 199,076 -10%
September 106,162 117,748 95,516 122,331 91,906 -100%
Fiscal Year Total 1,195,854 1,247,217 1,222,868 1,248,522 1,257,699 1,150,324  

Year-To-Date Receipts 1,089,692 1,129,469 1,127,352 1,126,191 1,165,794 1,150,324 -1%
        Comparison (October - September)

Local Option Tax receipts for the month of August 2015 totaled $199,076 representing an
10% decrease in receipts in August 2014. 

Monthly LOT Comparison for August 2015 Receipts

10/30/201510:41 AM
61



CITY OF SUN VALLEY

LOT Retail Receipts Figures

Monthly LOT Comparison for August 2015 Receipts2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Increase/ 
Decrease of 
FY15 as 
Compared 
to FY14

October 40,952 46,790 26,180 30,436 31,543 35,839 14%
November 21,218 22,367 29,001 25,537 26,945 23,400 -13%
December 56,371 62,823 65,920 71,156 68,666 66,925 -3%
January 46,260 47,097 41,884 47,746 43,385 51,580 19%
February 46,369 57,260 50,924 51,566 58,014 50,521 -13%
March 40,818 51,052 41,019 53,430 49,015 42,977 -12%
April 28,670 21,899 26,465 27,301 23,605 32,233 37%
May 29,790 39,678 37,816 31,877 28,025 36,001 28%
June 58,265 56,498 62,166 57,884 68,192 68,606 1%
July 106,899 121,472 112,979 121,980 127,521 145,354 14%
August 108,495 97,834 122,555 93,909 120,942 104,284 -14%
September 61,140 61,763 57,049 74,778 55,549 -100%
Fiscal Year Total 645,246 686,532 673,960 687,600 701,403 657,720

Year-To-Date Receipts 584,107 624,769 616,911 612,822 645,853 657,720 2%
Comparison- (October - September)

10:41 AM10/30/2015
62



CITY OF SUN VALLEY

LOT Lodging Receipts Figures

Monthly LOT Comparison for August 2015 Receipts2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Increase/ 
Decrease 
of FY15 as 
Compared 
to FY14

October 23,982 24,627 19,946 21,712 22,585 15,550 -31%
November 7,134 9,462 14,358 13,014 13,567 12,187 -10%
December 34,593 36,247 40,756 46,347 53,815 39,496 -27%
January 43,833 35,394 34,636 41,194 37,577 32,835 -13%
February 48,303 50,052 43,826 54,235 48,420 31,724 -34%
March 44,285 55,640 43,588 52,824 43,513 32,698 -25%
April 15,948 12,695 13,948 9,715 9,601 11,217 17%
May 8,728 6,205 12,456 9,152 6,943 9,313 34%
June 32,176 31,711 34,758 36,811 34,598 47,142 36%
July 82,858 95,637 92,511 96,446 95,933 116,446 21%
August 84,923 76,779 93,537 70,471 85,723 80,047 -7%
September 39,534 44,818 32,872 45,171 31,453 -100%
Fiscal Year Total 466,296 479,267 477,191 497,094 483,727 428,657

Year-To-Date Receipts 426,762 434,449 444,320 451,923 452,274 428,657 -5%
Comparison (October - September)

10/30/201510:41 AM
63



CITY OF SUN VALLEY

LOT Liquor Receipts Figures

Monthly LOT Comparison for August 2015 Receipts2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Increase/ 
Decrease of 
FY15 as 
Compared 
to FY14

October 4,499 4,126 3,721 4,112 4,403 3,176 -28%
November 22,125 2,287 2,939 2,804 2,222 2,174 -2%
December 6,456 7,120 8,254 9,167 8,059 6,437 -20%
January 6,466 6,552 5,860 6,830 6,285 4,747 -24%
February 7,272 7,702 7,046 7,479 5,640 4,614 -18%
March 6,019 4,036 6,202 6,946 6,777 4,063 -40%
April 2,129 2,462 2,229 1,837 1,636 1,394 -15%
May 2,224 1,592 1,909 3,142 2,181 1,705 -22%
June 3,781 4,170 4,443 4,273 4,552 6,819 50%
July 6,795 12,019 10,355 10,520 10,965 14,074 28%
August 11,057 11,499 13,164 4,336 14,946 14,745 -1%
September 5,488 17,854 5,595 2,381 4,904 -100%
Fiscal Year Total 84,312 81,418 71,717 63,828 72,570 63,947

Year-To-Date Receipts 78,823 63,564 66,122 61,447 67,666 63,947 -5%
Comparison (October - September)

10:41 AM10/30/2015
64



1
2

3
4
5

6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19
20
21
22
23

24

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q R S T U V W

 

 FY 05 
 % of total 

year   FY 06 
 % of total 

year   FY 07 
 % of total 

year   FY 08 
 % of total 

year   FY 09 
 % of 

total year   FY 10 
 % of total 

year   FY 11 
 % of total 

year   FY 12 
 % of total 

year   FY 13 
 % of total 

year   FY 14 
 % of total 

year   FY 15 
 % of total 

year  
October 66,271             4.76% 71,261            4.87% 97,457            6.75% 65,124               4.62% 70,188            5.87% 69,432 5.57% 75,542 6.18% 49,847 3.99% 56,260 4.47% 58,531 4.65% 54,565 4.34%
November 24,749             1.78% 34,870            2.38% 40,890            2.83% 44,878               3.19% 40,074            3.35% 50,477 4.05% 34,116 2.79% 46,298 3.71% 41,355 3.29% 42,734 3.40% 37,762 3.00%
December 106,430           7.64% 120,900          8.26% 128,179          8.88% 129,017             9.16% 101,371          8.48% 97,420 7.81% 106,190 8.68% 114,930 9.21% 126,671 10.07% 130,540 10.38% 112,858 8.97%
January 87,855             6.31% 108,662          7.43% 103,326          7.16% 124,990             8.88% 103,326          8.64% 96,559 7.74% 89,043 7.28% 82,380 6.60% 95,770 7.61% 87,247 6.94% 89,162 7.09%
February 114,087           8.19% 134,863          9.22% 123,362          8.55% 139,063             9.88% 123,362          10.32% 101,944 8.17% 115,014 9.41% 101,797 8.15% 113,281 9.01% 112,073 8.91% 86,860 6.91%
March 119,743           8.59% 119,921          8.20% 131,973          9.14% 136,338             9.68% 131,973          11.04% 91,122 7.31% 110,729 9.05% 90,809 7.27% 113,200 9.00% 99,304 7.90% 79,737 6.34%
April 44,687             3.21% 46,438            3.17% 49,232            3.41% 41,147               2.92% 49,232            4.12% 46,747 3.75% 37,056 3.03% 42,642 3.42% 38,852 3.09% 34,842 2.77% 44,844 3.57%
May 55,333             3.97% 53,666            3.67% 57,533            3.99% 60,097               4.27% 57,533            4.81% 40,743 3.27% 47,475 3.88% 52,181 4.18% 44,172 3.51% 37,150 2.95% 47,019 3.74%
June 107,598           7.72% 136,014          9.30% 152,008          10.53% 129,805             9.22% 152,008          12.71% 94,222 7.55% 92,378 7.55% 101,367 8.12% 98,969 7.87% 107,341 8.53% 122,567 9.75%
July 224,142           16.09% 250,806          17.14% 228,032          15.80% 240,035             17.05% 228,032          19.07% 196,552 15.76% 229,127 18.74% 215,845 17.29% 228,946 18.20% 234,419 18.64% 275,874 21.93%
August 194,817           13.98% 214,275          14.65% 204,206          14.15% 218,739             15.53% 204,206          17.08% 204,474 16.39% 192,799 15.77% 229,256 18.36% 168,716 13.41% 221,612 17.62% 199,076 15.83%
September 128,424           9.22% 101,702          6.95% 146,815          10.17% 114,029             8.10% 146,815          12.28% 106,162 8.51% 117,748 9.63% 95,516 7.65% 122,331 9.73% 91,906 7.31% 0.00%

TOTAL: 1,274,136        91.44% 1,393,378      95.24% 1,463,013      101.37% 1,443,263         102.50% 1,408,120      117.75% 1,195,854      95.88% 1,247,217 101.99% 1,222,868 97.95% 1,248,522 99.27% 1,257,699 100.00% 1,150,324 91.46%

October 5.17% 63,482            54,565            (8,917)                
November 3.08% 37,745            37,762            17                      
December 8.86% 108,680          112,858          4,178                 
January 7.46% 91,512            89,162            (2,350)                
February 8.98% 110,179          86,860            (23,319)              
March 8.72% 106,974          79,737            (27,236)              
April 3.29%  40,350            44,844            4,495                 
May 3.85%  47,238            47,019            (219)                   
June 8.91%  109,341          122,567          13,226               
July 17.38%  213,217          275,874          62,658               
August 15.69% 192,571          199,076          6,504                 
September 8.95% 109,867          -                      
TOTAL: 100.34%  1,227,000       1,150,324       29,037                

Local Option Tax Receipts (combined)  FY 05 to FY 15

10 yr Average 
% collected by 

month 

FY 2015 
Budgeted 

LOT Revenue 
by month 

(under)/over 
historical % 
collected by 

month

Does not include one time payment of $244,000 collect in 
September 2005

Actual LOT 
Revenue 

Collected by 
month to date

65



66



67



68



69



70



Page 1 of 2 
 

CITY OF SUN VALLEY 

CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

 

From:   Jae Hill, AICP, CFM, Community Development Director 

Meeting Date:  5 November 2015 

DIAMOND BACK TOWNHOMES: MULTIPLE APPROVALS, ONE PROJECT 

The Sun Valley Company, through their applicants RLB Architectura and Benchmark Associates, is requesting 
a variety of changes to the Diamond Back Townhomes development in the White Clouds Subdivision, 
formerly the Gun Club LUPA.   

The original 2006 White Clouds Master Plan called for 365 multi-family units in the subdivision, which was 
lowered to 48 in their previous amendment; 36 of those were to be located at the Diamond Back 
development.  The applicants are now proposing a further reduction in the number of units/sublots from 36 
to 31; this requires a Plat Amendment (SUBPA2015-04) to revise the approved Preliminary Plat, which will 
reduce and reconfigure the number of lots.  This also requires a Master Plan Amendment (MPD205-01) to the 
previously approved - and previously amended - Master Plan to change the allowable density and allocation 
of dwelling units.  The Master Plan, as amended, will include a range of permissible dwelling units, so that 
any future adjustment doesn't require re-review of that item. 

The applicants are further proposing the addition of single-family "townhome-style" homes in the 
development, which was previously approved for only duplex and four-plex townhomes.  This requires 
amending both the Master Plan and the Planned Unit Development (via CUP2015-01) to allow for new uses 
which are not permitted in the RM-1 zoning district. 

At the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting of October 8, 2015, the Commission conducted a duly-
noticed site visit and public hearing. 

The Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval, to the City Council, of the aforementioned 
applications SUBPA2015-04, MPD205-01, CUP2015-01.  Staff also recommends approval. 

Finally, the applicant has proposed alternate layouts and designs of duplex units, in addition to the 
aforementioned new single-family units which will have townhome-style means of ownership and common 
area maintenance.  One of these single-family units, Building G, on Sublot 19 of the White Clouds, has already 
been constructed without having received design review approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission; 
approval of the design review application (DR2015-33) will retroactively permit the structure. 

The Planning Commission unanimously approved application DR2015-33. 

  

71



Page 2 of 2 
 

RELEVANT DEFINTIONS 

DWELLING UNIT, TOWNHOUSE: Dwelling units erected generally in a row, each unit being separated 

from the adjoining unit or units by a party wall or walls, extending from the basement floor to the roof 

along the dividing townhouse sublot line, each unit having its own access to the outside, and no unit 

located over another unit in part or in whole. 

TOWNHOUSE DEVELOPMENT: A project of two (2) or more townhouse units that may be constructed as: 

a) single building(s) and/or b) single buildings containing single townhouse units. 

TOWNHOUSE SUBLOTS: The lot resulting from platting a townhouse development. 

TOWNHOUSE UNIT: See definition of Dwelling Unit, Townhouse. 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: A use or combination of uses for a tract of land no smaller than four (4) 

acres in size to be developed as a unit under single ownership or control, pursuant to a conditional use 

permit. 

PLAT AMENDMENT:  
 A. A change or modification of the boundary lines between existing lots or tracts of land or 
between dwelling units which does not reduce the area, frontage, width, depth, or building setback lines 
of each lot below the minimum zoning requirements and which does not create additional lots or 
dwelling units; or 
 B. Other minor changes to subdivision, condominium or townhouse plats such as, but not 
limited to, notation changes, boundary shifts, and removal of lot line(s), each of which does not reduce 
the area, frontage, width, depth, or building setback lines of each lot below the minimum zoning 
requirements nor create additional lots or dwelling units; or 
 C. Modification or relocation of the building envelope. 

NONCONFORMING USE: The use of a structure or premises, lawfully existing at the effective date 

hereof, for any purpose not permitted by the provisions of this title, and the use of a structure or 

premises lawfully existing at the effective date of any amendment to this title, for any purpose not 

permitted by said amendment. 

72



Page 1 of 2 
 

CITY OF SUN VALLEY 

CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

 

From:   Jae Hill, AICP, CFM, Community Development Director 

Meeting Date:  5 November 2015 

MASTER PLAN DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT (MPD2015-01) 

APPLICANT:  Benchmark Associates for Sun Valley Company 

LOCATION:    White Clouds Subdivision 

ZONING DISTRICTS: Multi-Family Residential (RM-1) Zoning District 

REQUEST:  To amend the previously approved 2006 Master Plan for the White Clouds (formerly Gun Club 
LUPA) to provide a range of permitted dwelling units (26 to 36) and to permit the addition of single-family 
dwellings as a use in the multi-family zoned parcels. 

ANALYSIS:  The original 2006 approval of the Master Plan for the White Clouds (formerly Gun Club LUPA) 
Area specified a precise number of 365 multi-family units to be constructed.  Densities were presumed at 8-
12 dwelling units per acre.  In the 2014 Amendment, the applicants reduced that number to a specific 48 
multi-family units with no mention in the approval for a range of densities.  Twelve of those units were 
constructed in the White Clouds Townhomes, with 36 approved for the Diamond Back Townhomes 
development.  This application provides a range of units that may be constructed, with a maximum of 36 and 
a minimum of 26; the current proposals are for 31 units, as opposed to the previously approved and platted 
36.  The range of units allowable ensures that future changes - responding to market conditions - don't 
require as strict a level of review as a Master Plan Amendment. 

This project is subject to review by the Commission and City Council due to language in the City's Municipal 
Code stating: 

6. Major And Minor Amendments: An approved MPD may be amended at any time using the process set 
out herein, and may be amended simultaneously with the processing of a development application. The 
director shall decide whether a proposed amendment is a "major" or "minor" amendment. In order to 
initiate an amendment, the applicant shall submit to the director an application on those items that 
would change if the proposed amendment were approved. Review of applications for amendments shall 
be governed by those criteria set forth in subsection E of this section. Approved amendments shall be 
recorded as set forth in subsection D7 of this section. 

a. Major Amendments: Changes of the following types shall define an amendment as major: 

(1) Changes which would modify or reallocate the allowable building height, mix of uses, or density of 
a development;  

The subject application proposes to alter the permissible density by reducing it from the previously approved 
5.5 units per acre to as low as 4 units per acre.  The subject application also proposes to allow single-family 

73



Page 2 of 2 
 

units, with a townhome style of ownership, to be allowed in the development despite the RM-1 Multi-family 
Zoning District prohibiting such uses. 

The request to allow for single-family homes in the Multi-family Zoning District, and the reduction in density, 
result in a multi-family zoned parcel which has lower densities than even the RS-2 (Cluster Single Family) 
zone.  The original intent of the high number of dwelling units in the Gun Club LUPA was to provide for a 
large number of dense, more affordable homes; the recent applications and amendments have reduced the 
number of permitted multi-family units to as low as 10% of the original Master Plan approval.  The processes 
outlined in SVMC § 9-5B-6 [Master Plan Development] allow for alteration of the original Master Plan 
provided the project conforms to the intent and guidelines of the Comprehensive Plan; this project now 
meets the minimum prescribed by that document in density and form. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of Master Plan Development (Amendment) Application 
MPD2015-01. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  "I move to approve Master Plan Development Application MPD2015-01, 
amending the previously approved 2006 Master Plan for the Gun Club LUPA, pursuant to the Findings of 
Fact." 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS:  Recommend denial of the application and draft findings supporting denial.   

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Findings of Fact 
2. Application Materials 

74



Page 1 of 3 

SUN VALLEY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT  ) FINDINGS OF FACT/CONCLUSIONS 
PARCEL A     ) OF LAW, DECISION 
WHITE CLOUDS CORRECTED PUD SUB ) AND CONDITIONS 
APPLICATION NO. MPD2015-01  ) 
 
 
This subject amendment to the previously approved 2006 Master Plan Development was presented 
to the Sun Valley City Council for consideration on November 5, 2015 as a duly noticed public 
hearing. The Council considered a request to eliminate a specific number of permissible 
development units and replace that precise number with a range of units between 26 and 36, as well 
as to allow single-family structures on the existing Parcel A Amended of the White Clouds Corrected 
PUD Subdivision Plat.  This Master Plan Development Amendment MPD 2015-01 has been 
submitted concurrently with Conditional Use Permit Application CUP2014-01 to amend the Planned 
Unit Development, and Design Review DR 2015-33.   
 
The City Council conducted a properly noticed public hearing, reviewed the Agenda Report and 
heard the comments of City staff, the applicant's representatives and the public.  Additionally, the 
Council reviewed the approval recommendation document and suggested Findings of Fact, 
Conclusions of Law, and Conditions of Approval recommended by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  Based on the evidence presented, the City Council hereby approves the plat 
amendment with the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and subject to specific 
conditions of approval.   
 

FINDINGS OF FACT/CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

1. The applicant is Benchmark Associates, P.A. for Sun Valley Company.  The subject property 
consists of existing Parcel A of the White Clouds Corrected PUD Subdivision Plat.  This 
Master Plan Development Amendment application was submitted in conjunction with 
Conditional Use Permit Application CUP2015-01 to amend the Planned Unit Development, 
Plat Amendment SUBPA2015-04 to reduce and reconfigure sublots within Parcel A, and 
Design Review DR 2015-33 to approve the building designs.  The applications were 
submitted to reorganize the subject area for construction of thirty-one (31) new residential 
townhome units on Amended Parcel A, including single-family townhome-style units. 

2. The MPD is consistent with the city comprehensive plan, as amended, including the future 
land use map and the land use planning area guidelines and land use designations, if 
applicable;  the request allows for flexibility in applying a variety of single-family and 
multi-family housing types in a variety of zoning districts, while keeping the permitted 
densities above the minimum required 4 units per acre in the "Medium Density 
Residential" land use designation. 

3. The MPD complies with each applicable element of the purpose SVMC § 9-5B-6;; 

a. Implement the goals and objectives of the city's comprehensive plan, as amended, 
including the future land use map, the land use designations and the land use 
planning area guidelines, if applicable; the request allows for flexibility in applying 
a variety of single-family and multi-family housing types in a variety of zoning 
districts, while keeping the permitted densities above the minimum required 4 
units per acre in the "Medium Density Residential" land use designation. 

75



Page 2 of 3 

b. Contribute to the social, economic and environmental sustainability of the city;  this 
application provides housing units which will bring in residents and visitors to 
the area, providing further economic vibrancy. 

c. Strengthen the resort character of the city;  the applicant is proposing the density 
reduction to provide market-rate dwelling units for second-home owners and 
visitors, adjacent to the golf course and near the resort core. 

d. Develop in a manner that is highly respectful of the natural setting, that is at a human 
scale and ensures neighborhood compatibility; the reduction in the number of units 
will increase the amount of open space in the development, enhancing views to 
natural features. 

e. Provide for an integrated transportation system which prioritizes a pedestrian 
environment and mass transit and reduces vehicular trips;  the project contains 
sidewalks and is adjacent to community bike paths. 

f. Result in a contribution of amenities to the community, including maintaining public 
access to recreational facilities;  previous approvals ensured public access to the 
White Clouds Golf Course and adjacent trails. 

g. Designate and protect open site area in perpetuity;  previous approvals ensured 
the protection of open space and natural views. 

h. Provide for a mix of housing types for visitors and year round and seasonal residents;  
the proposal will allow for a mix of single-family and multi-family dwellings. 

i. Provide for the housing needs of the work force through a variety of dispersed units 
within the city, or an alternative area as approved by the city council;  previous 
approvals addressed the need for workforce housing, and this approval 
reduces the demand for such housing. 

j. If necessary, plan for the coordinated and phased construction of infrastructure, 
including public facilities and transportation system components; this is not 
applicable, as the infrastructure is already installed.  

4. The MPD meets the minimum requirements of this chapter;  the amendment meets the 
intent and requirements of the chapter as indicated in the other requisite findings. 

5. The MPD promotes the orderly planning and development of land, as set forth in the purpose 
for this process, subsection A of this section;  the amendment meets the purpose as 
outlined in required finding #2. 

6. The MPD has been properly noticed and public hearing held in accordance with this code; 
notice was provided in the Idaho Mountain Express legal ads on September 23rd, 
September 30th, and October 7th, and a display ad on October 7th; in five locations 
throughout the city; and by direct mail to the owners. A public hearing was conducted 
by the Planning and Zoning Commission on October 8th. 

7. The MPD complies with all city zoning regulations and codes in effect at the time of the MPD 
application. (Ord. 386, 4-19-2007).  The amendment, pursuant to other related 

76



Page 3 of 3 

applications and approvals, will meet all regulations associated with the RM-1 zoning 
district. 

 
DECISION 

 
Therefore, based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact/Conclusions of Law, the Sun Valley City 
Council hereby approves the amendment to the 2006 Master Plan Development for the White 
Clouds Subdivision, according to the plans and documents submitted as part of the development 
application, subject to the following specific conditions of approval. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

1. Prior to any new construction activity, the applicant shall receive City approvals specific to each 
of the phases and elements in the Master Plan, as may be applicable, including design review, 
grading permits, building permits, construction management plans, etc. 

 
2. The Master Plan Development Amendment approval shall be recorded with the Office of the 

County Recorder, Blaine County, Idaho as per the requirements of Municipal Code Section 9-5B-
6.  All approved MPDs, and all approved amendments to such MPDs, specifying the land within 
its boundaries, shall be recorded in the Blaine County recorder's office with a notation that all 
land within such boundaries shall be subject to the provisions of such MPD or amendment 
unless or until amended. Such recording shall be a "memorandum of MPD" stating generally that 
the site has been approved as an MPD (MPD Amendment) on file with the city. 

 
 
 
Dated this 5th day of November, 2015 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 
City of Sun Valley 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Date Findings of Fact signed 
 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 
Alissa Weber, City Clerk 
City of Sun Valley 

77



Page 1 of 1 
 

CITY OF SUN VALLEY 

CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

 

From:   Jae Hill, AICP, CFM, Community Development Director 

Meeting Date:  5 November 2015 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (CUP2015-01) 

APPLICANT:  Benchmark Associates for Sun Valley Company 

LOCATION:    White Clouds Subdivision 

ZONING DISTRICTS: Multi-Family Residential (RM-1) Zoning District 

REQUEST:  Amend CUP2007-05 (Gun Club LUPA PUD) to allow single-family homes in the RM-1 Zoning 
Districts within the White Clouds Subdivision. 

ANALYSIS:  The applicant proposes to add single family homes to the RM-1 Multi-family Zoning District.  
Single-family dwellings are not a permitted use in the RM-1, but non-permitted uses can be added to a zoning 
district subject to approval of a Planned Unit Development.  Since the area is already a PUD, the existing PUD 
must be amended.  Planned Unit Developments are approved via the Conditional Use Permit approval 
process, and using the CUP's required findings, subject to the qualifications detailed in SVMC § 9-5B-7. 

1. A planned unit development may include any use allowed either as a permitted or conditional use in 
any of the zoning districts of the city.  Single-family homes are permitted in other zones, including the 
RA, RS-1, and RS-2 districts. 

2. Minimum size of a planned unit development shall be at least four (4) acres.  The entirety of the White 
Clouds PUD is 324.8 acres. 

There are already four single family "townhomes" approved in the White Clouds Townhomes, the 
development immediately across from the Sun Valley Golf Club, and one constructed in the Diamond Back 
Townhomes.  This approval brings their existence into legal compliance with our code. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of CUP2015-01 amending the Planned Unit Development  
(CUP2007-05) for the White Clouds Subdivision. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  "I move to approve Conditional Use Permit CUP2015-01, amending the 
previously approved 2007 Gun Club LUPA PUD Application, pursuant to the Findings of Fact." 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS:  Move denial of the application and draft findings supporting denial.   

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Findings of Fact 
2. Application Materials 

78



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

File No: CUP2015-01 

Signature Date: November 5, 2015   

 

Draft 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

CITY OF SUN VALLEY 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT 

 

 

Project Name: Planned Unit Development Amendment CUP2015-01  
 

Applicant:  Benchmark Associates for Sun Valley Company 
 

Location:    White Clouds Subdivision, Parcels A, B, E, & J 
 

Zoning Districts: Multi-Family Residential (RM-1) Zoning District 

 

Project Description:  Amend the previously approved Planned Unit Development for the White 

   Clouds (formerly Gun Club LUPA) to permit the addition of single-family 

   dwellings as a use in multi-family zoned parcels. 

 

Required Findings:  In order to approve a design review application and based on the standards 

set forth in Sun Valley Municipal Code, Title 9, Chapter 5B-7 (PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT), the Planning and Zoning Commission shall make the following findings: 

1. The use is appropriate to the location, the lot, and the neighborhood, and is 
compatible with the uses permitted in the applicable zoning district; single-family 

homes are not substantially less dense or more impactful than the duplex and 
four-plex homes already permitted in such zoning districts where the multi-
family uses are permitted. 

2. The use will be supported by adequate public facilities or services to the surrounding 

area, or conditions can be established to mitigate adverse impacts; all public services 
exist to serve the proposed uses or are currently in construction. 

3. The use will not unreasonably diminish either the health, safety or welfare of the 

community; single-family homes are similar to other residential uses in the 
same zoning district. 

4. The use is not in conflict with the comprehensive plan or other adopted plans, 

policies, or ordinances of the city.  The Planned Unit Development process was 
specifically created to allow flexibility in implementing the zoning code while 
achieving the financial and pragmatic goals of the applicants. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
1. Prior to any new construction activity, the applicant shall receive City approvals specific to each 

of the phases and elements in the Planned Unit Development, as may be applicable, including 
design review, grading permits, building permits, construction management plans, etc. 

 
 

79



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 
The Sun Valley City Council concludes that the White Clouds Planned Unit Development 
Amendment meets the standards for approval under Title 9, Chapter 5, City of Sun Valley Municipal 
Code provided the above conditions of approval are met. 
 
 

DECISION 
 
Therefore, the Sun Valley City Council approves the subject Master Plan Development Amendment 
Application No. CUP 2015-01 for the White Clouds Development subject to the Conditions of 
Approval above. 
 

 

Dated this 5th day of November, 2015. 

 

 

___________________________________ 
Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 
City of Sun Valley 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Date Findings of Fact signed 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 
Alissa Weber, City Clerk 
City of Sun Valley 
 

80



Page 1 of 2 
 

CITY OF SUN VALLEY 

CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

 

From:   Jae Hill, AICP, CFM, Community Development Director 

Meeting Date:  5 November 2015 

PLAT AMENDMENT (SUBPA2015-04) 

APPLICANT:  Benchmark Associates for Sun Valley Company 

LOCATION:    White Clouds Subdivision 

ZONING DISTRICTS: Multi-Family Residential (RM-1) Zoning District 

REQUEST:  Amend the preliminary plat (SUBPP2014-03) for Parcel A Amended within the plat of White 
Clouds Corrected, Parcels A, B, & J, Amended  to reduce the number of sublots from 36 to 31 and 
reconfigure/renumber the sublots. 

ANALYSIS:  The applicant is reducing the number of sublots (dwelling units) in the Diamond Back 
Townhomes from 36 to 31 with this Amendment to the previously approved plat of White Clouds 
Corrected, Parcels A, B, & J, Amended.  The proposed decrease and corresponding reconfiguration of the 
number of sublots/dwellings is the result of the applicant responding to market conditions. Originally 
the White Clouds area was originally scheduled for 365 multi-family units, but that number has been 
reduced, as of this application to 43 luxury units across two multifamily-zoned parcels. 

The most notable change to the preliminary approved plat is the reconfiguration of the unit types. 
Originally, there were 36 units in four four-plexes and ten duplexes; the revision now shows 31 units in 
three four-plexes, five "smaller" duplexes, three "larger" duplexes, and three single-family units. 

Applications for plat amendments are subject to the following standards, or they must be reviewed as a 
new application. 

E. Standards: 

1. A plat amendment shall not lower the dimensions of the lot below the minimum dimensional 
standards prescribed by this title; 

2. A plat amendment shall not increase the original number of properties, and may decrease the 
original number of properties; and 

3. A plat amendment shall not change or move any public streets or publicly dedicated areas in any 
manner. 

None of the three aforementioned standards have been exceeded, thereby allowing the reconfiguration 
as a Plat Amendment as opposed to a new Preliminary Plat. 

81



Page 2 of 2 
 

A reduction in the number of units decreases the demand for water, sewer, and other public utilities as 
well as other public services including fire and police response. The City Engineer has reviewed the 
applications and recommended approval as well. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of PA2015-04 amending the previously approved plat 
of White Clouds Corrected, Parcels A, B, & J, Amended. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  "I move to approve Plat Amendment PA2015-04, amending the previously 
approved plat of White Clouds Corrected, Parcels A, B & J Amended, pursuant to the Conditions of 
Approval and Findings of Fact." 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS:  Move denial of the application and draft findings supporting denial.   

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Findings of Fact 
2. Application Materials 

82



83



 

M E M O R A N D U M   
 
Diamondback Townhomes Preliminary Plat Review 
TO: Jae Hill/City of Sun Valley 

COPIES: Abby Rivin/City of Sun Valley 

Cinda Lewis, Benchmark Associates 

FROM: Betsy Roberts  

DATE: October 5, 2015 

 
We received the Preliminary Plat for the Diamondback Townhomes and have conducted 
our review.  While there are still several outstanding pieces of information, those are 
typically presented with the final plat. At this time, we find the Preliminary Plat to be 
acceptable.  

 

  1 
COPYRIGHT 2015 BY CH2M HILL, INC. • COMPANY CONFIDENTIAL 

84



PRELIMINARY PLAT CHECK LIST 

1 Subdivision Name: Diamond Back Townhomes 

2 Reviewer: Betsy Roberts 

3 Date: October 5, 2015 

4 Sheet Title and Preamble: Diamond Back Townhomes 

Located within: Sections 6&7, Township 4 North, Range 18 
East, B.M., City of Sun Valley, Blaine County, Idaho 

A Townhouse Subdivision of Parcel A Amended, within 
the plat of “White Clouds Corrected:  Parcels A, B, & J 
Amended”, creating sublots 1-31.  August 2015 

5 Basis of Bearing: OK.  Basis of Bearing per original Plat referred to in Note 
#1.  Original Basis of Bearing shown in Plat of White 
Clouds Corrected PUD (Inst. No. 571308)  

6 North Arrow: OK 

7 Scale and Legend: Checking legend around sublots 1 - 12 

8 Plat Closure: Closure report to come with final plat; check Line 1 and 
Line 3 (dimension was incorrect in previous sublot plats) 

9 Total Area: Not Shown, sublot areas shown 

10 Monuments: OK 

11 Land Corners: OK 

12 Initial Point: Not Shown.  Referred to in White Clouds Corrected Plat. 

13 Street Names & Width: OK – agreed names would be removed since they are 
private streets. Width 22’ described in easement. 

14 Easements: Identified but not defined. 

15 Lot & Block Numbers: OK 

16 Lot Dimensions: Not shown 

17 Curve & Line Tables: Provided.  Check L1 and L3 to confirm they check with 
Closure when done.   

18 Certifications:  Not Shown 

19 Certificate of Owner: None 

20 Certificate of Surveyor: None 

21 Sanitary Restriction: None 

22 Agency Approvals: None 

23 Public Dedication: None  

24 Common Areas: OK 

P:\SUNVALLEYIDCITYOF\350794\P&Z\WHITE CLOUDS TOWNHOMES\WHITE CLOUDS DIAMONDBACK TOWNHOMES\DIAMONDBACK SEPTEMBER 2015 
REVIEW\DIAMONDBACK PRELIMINARY PLAT\DIAMONDBACKTOWNHOMES_PREPLAT_100515.DOC 

85



 
 

CITY OF SUN VALLEY 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 
 
 
To:   Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:   Jae Hill, AICP, CFM, Community Development Director 
 
Meeting Date: November 5, 2015 
 
Agenda Item:  Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18 and Tract D 
   Final Plat Application No. SUBFP 2015-07 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:   Public hearing for a final plat application for Sublots 13&14, 17&18 and Tract D of 
a multi-family residential development consisting of sublots for four constructed units of a thirty-
six unit townhome subdivision.   
 Applicant:  Benchmark Associates, P.A. for Sun Valley Company.  
 Application Filing Date: October 5, 2015.   
 Location: Parcel A Amended of White Clouds Corrected Subdivision. 
 
BACKGROUND:   The Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18 and Tract D Final 
Plat application consists of a proposed final plat exhibit (Exhibit CC-5) showing the surveyed 
location, lot and townhome sublot boundaries, common areas, private driveways, land uses, 
zoning, notes and related easements for the two constructed townhomes. The final plat 
application requires a public hearing with the City Council prior to finalization and recordation of 
the Final Plat with the Blaine County Recorder.  The project area consists of an existing 6.48 
acre parcel within the Multi-Family Residential (RM-1) Zoning District of the White Clouds 
Subdivision. The proposed final plat is directly associated with Plat Amendment Application 
SUBPA 2014-03, Preliminary Plat Application SUBPP 2014-04, and Design Review Application 
No. DR 2014-05 for the construction of thirty-six townhome units with associated site 
improvements. Many of the thirty-six townhome units and related infrastructure improvements 
have been constructed. The four completed townhome units comprise two duplexes. The 
remaining townhome units are in various stages of construction/completion, as are the related 
site improvements, and final plats will be submitted for these remaining sublots once they are 
complete. 
 
The subject parcel, Parcel A, was created for multi-family residential development as part of the 
White Clouds Subdivision through the City’s approval of the project’s Master Plan, Zoning Map 
Amendment, Planned Unit Development (PUD), Preliminary Plat, and Final Plat.  Parcel A is 
one of five (5) multi-family parcels created by the White Clouds Corrected Subdivision. The RM-
1 Zoning District provides for medium density residential apartment, condominium, and/or 
townhouse dwellings as well as incidental uses.  Multiple-family residential townhouse units are 
permitted by right within the RM-1 zone. The 6.48 acre parcel has a maximum density permitted 
by the Preliminary Plat of 14 townhome units per gross acre. The project’s proposed thirty-six 
townhome units complies with the maximum density of 90 dwelling units for the parcel allowed 
within the RM-1 Zoning District. 
 

 

1 
 

86



 
 
 
 
The property owner filed a preliminary plat application on January 7, 2014 to subdivide Parcel A 
into thirty-six townhome sublots with associated site improvements. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval of the preliminary plat to the City Council on April 17, 2014 
and the City Council approved the preliminary plat application on May 15, 2014. The City 
Council's signed approval document, including findings of fact, conclusions of law and 
conditions of approval, for the preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit CC-3.  Subsequently, 
improvement and utility plans were reviewed and approved by the City and various building 
permits were issued for the project. Construction commenced and now two of the duplexes are 
complete, each receiving a Certificate of Occupancy (Exhibit CC-2) from the Building Official. 
The significant infrastructure for the entire project has been completed and the driveway access 
to and behind the two units is in place. 
 
ANALYSIS:   As per Municipal Code Section 9-4A-7B, Director’s Review, the Diamond Back 
Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18 and Tract D Final Plat was reviewed by the Community 
Development Director for compliance with the approved preliminary plat design and all 
applicable conditions of approval. As permitted by the Development Code, the Director 
determined that the final plat did not significantly differ from the approved preliminary plat and 
did not require that the final plat be submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission for its 
evaluation and decision in the same manner as required in the preliminary plat process. 
Additionally, the final plat and application materials have been found to comply with all 
applicable standards and requirements of the City Code. 
 
CONDITION OF APPROVAL COMPLIANCE: The White Clouds Development, Parcel A, Multi-
Family Townhomes Preliminary Plat approval contains eleven (11) specific conditions of 
approval, listed as follows: 
 

1. The Preliminary Plat and all aspects of the subdivision design shall conform to the 
project drawings stamped received by the City of Sun Valley on March 10, 2014 and 
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission on March 20, 2014.  Construction 
of improvements, facilities, private streets, driveways and public utility improvements 
shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City. 

 
2. The applicant shall comply with all conditions and comments contained in the 

February 11, 2014 review and comment letter from the Sun Valley Fire Department.  
No changes shall be allowed to the Plat without prior approval of the Fire Chief and 
the Community Development Director. 

  
3. To the satisfaction of the Community Development Director, in order to insure 

compliance with Title 7 of the City Code, the Developer shall provide, pay for, and 
install, or cause to be installed to City standards the following (as applicable) so as to 
insure that the City can provide necessary Municipal services and facilities: 

 
a. Water distribution systems and appurtenances including fire hydrants, fire alarms 

and other fire control devices. 
b. Sewer lines, pumps and appurtenant sewage collection and disposal devices, 

together with devices for the removal of materials and water from sewage not 
amenable to or capable of treatment or reduction by the sewer district's sewage 
treatment processes or prohibited by State or Federal laws or regulations. 

c. Streets, curbs and gutters, street base coarse material, wearing coarse material, 
bridges, sidewalks, bicycle pathways, street signs, traffic control devices, 

2 
 

87



 
 

intersection signals, vehicle turning and deceleration lanes (if applicable). 
d. Storm drainage structures, lines and appurtenances, including culverts or other 

devices to enclose open ditches and to inhibit access to them by children, 
together with drainage easements sufficient to accommodate expected runoffs as 
determined according to generally accepted drainage accommodation principles. 

e. Electrical distribution facilities, transformers and appurtenances, underground 
wiring, underground communication systems, wiring and underground cable 
television system and wiring. 

f. Gas distribution systems and appurtenances. 
g. Preservation or replacement of trees, shrubs, ground cover and other vegetation, 

install soil stabilization improvements to prevent erosion or degradation of 
surface water quality and inhibit vegetative growth in impounded waters or 
streams. 

h. Public easements shall be dedicated for all required utilities and improvements. 
 

4. The drawing submitted for final plat application and the drawings submitted to the City 
for infrastructure improvements shall be reviewed by the City’s engineer and all 
proposed private street, grading, driveway, utility and drainage improvements shall 
conform to applicable standards.  The drainage improvements shall be designed and 
constructed to be consistent with and compatible with the existing drainage 
improvements along Diamond Back Road and Trail Creek Road as well as any 
improvements and conditions on the adjacent Sun Valley Golf Course property and the 
adjacent residential subdivision.  The applicant shall comply and/or clarify as needed all 
applicable comments and conditions contained in the review letter dated March 7, 2014 
from the City’s Engineer, CH2MHill. 

 
5. The private street improvements and all related project grading, driveway, utility and 

drainage improvements shall be designed and constructed to City standards to the 
satisfaction of the City’s engineer, the Streets Department and the Community 
Development Director. No construction shall take place for the street improvements prior 
to City review and approval of a design and infrastructure plan. 

 
6. The construction management plan submitted for the thirty-six townhouse sublot 

subdivision that addresses construction parking, material storage, storm water runoff, 
site security, noise, hours of activity, and nuisance control (noise, music, animals, dust, 
site watering, trash, construction fencing, safety, and street cleaning) shall be complied 
with to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director and Chief Building 
Official throughout the entire construction process/phases. 

 
7. The applicant shall submit copies of draft party wall agreements for the duplex and four-

plex units to the Community Development Department prior to issuance of any grading 
or building permits for the project as per Development Code requirements.  Final party 
wall agreements shall be recorded and copies submitted to the Community Development 
Department prior to final plat approval. 

 
8. Prior to final plat approval by the City, the applicant shall submit final copies of 

agreements and documents creating an association of owners of the proposed 
townhouse sublots, which shall adequately provide for the control and maintenance of all 
commonly held facilities, garages, landscaping, parking and/or open site areas. 

 
9. This Preliminary Plat is specific to and contingent upon City approval of associated 

applications including Master Plan Development Amendment No. MPD 2014-02, Zoning 

3 
 

88



 
 

Map Amendment No. ZMA 2014-01 (Ordinance No. 468), Plat Amendment No. SUBPA 
2014-03, Preliminary Plat No. SUBPP 2014-02, and Design Review No. 2014-05.  The 
applicant shall satisfy all applicable conditions and requirements of these associated 
application approvals in addition to the conditions contained herein. 

 
10. A final plat shall not be approved by the City Council until all townhouse units have 

received an approved final inspection and certificate of occupancy from the City Building 
Inspector or the Council has approved a financial guarantee of performance for 
completion of improvements pursuant to Code Section 9-4A-8. 

 
11. This preliminary plat approval shall expire three hundred sixty five (365) days from the 

date of approval unless extended pursuant to Code Section 9-5A-9. 
 
 
In satisfaction of Conditions of Approval No. 1, 2, 3 and 5 of the preliminary plat approval, the 
Community Development Director reviewed the submitted final plat drawing and find that it 
conforms to the approved preliminary plat drawings (attached as Exhibit CC-4), reviewed and 
approved by the City Council on May 15, 2014. The overall thirty-six unit project's infrastructure 
improvements have been constructed to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director and the Building Official. 
 
Although ten units and all the required public safety improvements and infrastructure are in 
place and available, approximately twenty-six approved townhome units remain under 
construction. The applicant has requested that a final plat be approved for these fourcompleted 
dwelling units so pending sales can be finalized. The draft City Council Findings of Fact, 
Conclusions of Law, Decision and Conditions of Approval for the Diamond Back Townhomes: 
Sublots 13&14, 17&18 and Tract D  (Exhibit CC-1) includes a condition of approval as follows 
for consideration by the City Council prior to action on the final plat: 
 
As required by Condition No. 4 of the preliminary plat the applicant has complied and/or clarified 
as needed all applicable comments and conditions contained in the CH2MHill preliminary plat 
review comment letter dated March 7, 2014.   
 
Pursuant to Condition No. 6, to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director and 
Building Official, a construction management plan was satisfactorily submitted to the City for 
review and was approved.  Significant grading and construction has occurred on the site with no 
significant negative public impact or complaint.   
 
To satisfy Conditions 7 and 8, the applicant has submitted copies of draft party wall agreements 
for the duplex units and draft Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of White 
Clouds Townhomes. Proposed condition of approval No. 2 in the attached City Council Findings 
will reliably satisfy these two preliminary plat requirements. 
 
In regard to Condition No. 9 of the preliminary plat approval, the constructed townhome units 
and all related site improvements have been completed in conformance with the City's design 
review approvals and building permits.  As specified above, the townhome units have received 
final inspection and a certificate of occupancy from the Building Official, which satisfies 
Condition No. 10.   
 
Lastly, in regard to Condition No. 11, the preliminary plat was approved by the City Council on 
May 15, 2014, grading and building permit applications were soon thereafter reviewed and 
issued by the City, then substantially acted upon by the applicant. The Community Development 

4 
 

89



 
 
Director extended the preliminary plat approval pursuant to Code Section 9-5A-9. The final plat 
application was submitted to the City on September 1, 2015.  Thus, Condition No. 11 above is 
also satisfied.   
 
Therefore, it can be found by the City Council that the submitted final plat conforms with the 
approved preliminary plat design and all applicable conditions of approval required prior to City 
action on a final plat have been completely satisfied by the applicant.  Draft City Council Findings 
of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Decision, and Conditions of Approval for the Diamond Back 
Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18 and Tract D, Application No. SUBFP 2015-07, are attached 
as Exhibit CC-1. 
 
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS:   The alternatives available to the City Council for action on the final 
plat application include: 
 
(1) Close the public hearing, make the required findings and adopt the attached draft 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, as may be modified or specifically conditioned 
by the Council, approving the final plat application; or 

 
(2) Close the public hearing, discuss the findings, vote to deny the application and direct 

staff to return on a date certain with a resolution of denial reflecting the comments and 
findings of the Council; or 

 
(3)  Continue the hearing date certain for further information and review prior to an action on 

the requested final plat or to direct staff to bring the final plat to the review of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission for a recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Before public comment is received, the City Council should disclose all 
information and contacts received outside the hearing on this item upon which the decision will be 
based, receive public testimony, and consider the facts and findings necessary to make a decision 
on the application.  The City Council formally approved the preliminary plat application for the 
White Clouds Development, Parcel A Amended, Multi-Family Townhomes on May 15, 2014. 
 
The Community Development Director recommends that the City Council make and adopt a 
motion to approve the final plat application by finding the submitted final plat is consistent 
with the approved preliminary plat and finding that all applicable conditions of approval 
required prior to City action on a final plat for the subdivision have been satisfied by the 
applicant. 
 
 
LIST OF ATTACHED EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit CC-1 Draft City Council Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Decision and 

Conditions of Approval for the Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 
13&14, 17&18 and Tract D, Application No. SUBFP 2015-07. 

 
Exhibit CC-2 Certificate of Occupancy for Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13, 14, 

17, and 18. 
 
Exhibit CC-3 Approved City Council Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Decision 

and Conditions of Approval for the White Clouds Development, Parcel A 

5 
 

90



 
 

Amended, Multi-Family Townhomes Preliminary Plat, Application No. 
SUBPP 2014-04. 

 
Exhibit CC-4 White Clouds Development, Parcel A, Multi-Family Townhomes 

Preliminary Plat drawings consisting of four 11” by 17” sheets reviewed 
and approved by the City Council on May 15, 2014. 

 
Exhibit CC-5 Reduced Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18 and Tract 

D, Application No. SUBFP 2015-07 Final Plat Exhibit, consisting of three 
11” by 17” sheets received by the City of Sun Valley on October 5, 2015. 

 
Exhibit CC-6 Final Plat Review: Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13-14. 17-18, and 

Tract D, letter and plat checklist from Betsy Roberts of CH2MHill, dated 
October 13, 2015. 

 
 
 
**The entire administrative record for the final plat application is available for review in the 
Community Development Department at City Hall. 

6 
 

91



DRAFT 
SUN VALLEY CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
LAND SUBDIVISION   )  FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS 
WHITE CLOUDS TOWNHOMES  )  OF LAW, DECISION AND 
SUBLOTS 13&14, 17&18, AND TRACT D )  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
OF PARCEL A AMENDED OF  ) 
WHITE CLOUDS CORRECTED  ) 
PARCELS A, B, & J AMENDED                ) 
FINAL PLAT     ) 
APPLICATION NO. SUBFP 2015-07 ) 
 
 
This final plat application for four townhome sublots of a thirty-six unit townhome subdivision came 
before the Sun Valley City Council for consideration on November 5, 2015.  The City Council reviewed 
the Community Development Director’s Agenda Report and recommendation, conducted a properly 
noticed public hearing, and heard testimony from the public, the applicant, and the applicant’s 
representatives.  Based on the evidence presented, the City Council makes the following Findings of 
Fact/Conclusions of Law and Decision. 
 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT / CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 
1. The applicant for the Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D is 

Benchmark Associates, P.A. for Sun Valley Company.  The project area consists of an existing 
6.48 acre parcel within the Multi-Family Residential (RM-1) Zoning District of the White Clouds 
Subdivision. The final plat is directly associated with Plat Amendment Application SUBPA 2014-
03, Preliminary Plat Application SUBPP 2014-04, and Design Review Application No. DR 2014-
05 for the construction of thirty-six townhome units with associated site improvements. Several 
of the units and the base subdivision infrastructure have been constructed. Construction 
continues on the remaining units, and final plats will be submitted for those remaining sublots 
once completed.    

 
2. The subject parcel was created for multi-family residential development as part of the White 

Clouds Subdivision through the City’s approval of the project’s Master Plan, Zoning Map 
Amendment, Planned Unit Development (PUD), Preliminary Plat, and Final Plat. Parcel A is one 
of five (5) multi-family parcels created by the White Clouds Subdivision. 

 
3. The final plat for Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D (Application 

No. SUBFP 2015-07) creates four new multi-family townhome sublots in two duplex buildings. 
The project’s remaining townhome units and related site improvements will be completed and 
recorded as separate final plat approvals. The RM-1 Zoning District provides for medium density 
residential apartment, condominium, and/or townhouse dwellings as well as incidental uses. 
Multiple-family residential townhouse units are permitted by right within the RM-1 zone. The 
6.48 acre parcel has a maximum density permitted by the Preliminary Plat of 14 dwelling units 
per gross acres (90 units maximum). The project’s proposed total of thirty-six townhome units 
complies with the maximum density of 90 dwelling units for the parcel allowed within the RM-1 
Zoning District. 
 

4. The property owner filed a preliminary plat application on January 7, 2014 to subdivide Parcel A 

CC-2

92



into thirty-six townhome sublots with associated site improvements. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval of the preliminary plat to the City Council on April 17, 2014 
and the City Council approved the preliminary plat application on May 15, 2014.  Improvement 
and utility plans were reviewed and approved by the City and various building permits were 
issued for the project. Construction commenced and these two townhome units are complete, 
each receiving a Certificate of Occupancy. The significant infrastructure for the entire project 
has been completed and the driveway access specific to the two units is in place. 
 

5. As per Municipal Code Section 9-4A-7B, Director’s Review, the Diamond Back Townhomes: 
Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D Final Plat was reviewed by the Community Development 
Director for compliance with the approved preliminary plat design and all applicable conditions 
of approval.  As permitted by the Development Code, the Director determined that the final plat 
did not significantly differ from the approved preliminary plat and, based on the review and 
comments from the City’s Contract Engineer (CH2MHill), did not require that the final plat be 
submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission for its evaluation and decision in the same 
manner as required in the preliminary plat process. 
 

6. The required criteria for City Council review of a proposed final plat are contained in City Code 
Section 9-4A-7C and are fully discussed below. Additionally, City Code Section 9-4B-3, 
Townhomes, sets forth provisions to provide for public health, safety, and welfare of purchasers 
and residents of townhome developments.  Section 9-4B-3D-2 requires that a final plat shall not 
be approved by the City Council until all townhouse units have received an approved final 
inspection and certificate of occupancy from the City Building Inspector or the Council has 
approved a financial guarantee of performance for completion of improvements pursuant to 
Section 9-4A-8, Surety Agreements. The two townhome units associated with this Final Plat are 
complete and have received certificates of occupancy. All significant infrastructure for the thirty-
six unit townhome development is complete and the construction of the remaining townhome 
units continues.  

 
7. The subdivision includes extensive open common area and a private street/driveway system to 

access each of the two newly constructed townhome sublots from the Diamond Back Road 
right-of-way. Snow storage, utility, and drainage easements exist on the property along 
Diamond Back Road and Clos Du Val Road.  The Diamond Back Road public street right-of-way 
and path will be plowed clear of snow by the City and Trail Creek Road is currently plowed by 
Idaho Transportation Department. No avalanche or run-out areas exist on the project site. 

 
8. The SVW&SD issued a will-serve letter for the overall White Clouds Subdivision as part of the 

Preliminary Plat review and action.  A submitted and approved Water and Sewer Plan detailed 
nearby existing utility infrastructure and on-site improvements. These water and sewer 
improvements are now constructed and available.  The project can be fully served by the 
constructed water and sewer utilities.  All other applicable services and utilities were extended 
to the site as part of the overall White Clouds infrastructure implementation and are adequate to 
fully serve the two townhomes as well as the remaining townhome units under construction. 
 

9. Considering and in accordance with the deviations and public benefits contained in the PUD 
approval for the overall White Clouds Development, the project design is consistent with 
Development Code Sections 9-4A-5, Design, and 9-3H-4, Regulated Structures. The significant 
slopes, ridges, knolls, summits and hilltops of the White Clouds Land Use Planning Area were 
preserved and subdivided into open space and recreational zoned parcels. The remaining more 
developable portions of the area were subdivided into lots with single- and multi-family 

CC-2

93



residential uses. No significant historical, natural, ecological, architectural, archeological, or 
scenic special sites lie on site or directly adjacent to Parcel A. No significant streams, lakes, or 
other natural bodies of water lie on or adjacent to the site. The significant slopes and hillsides lie 
off-site adjacent to the northwest in open space and recreation zoned parcels. Pursuant to the 
deviations allowed in regard to steep slopes by the PUD approved for the overall White Clouds 
project, the subdivision design is appropriate for multi-family development. No significant view or 
hillside scaring will occur to the larger prominent surrounding hillsides and no significant natural 
features or hilltops will be disturbed. In the RM-1 Zoning District, buildings on natural 
topography greater than fifteen percent (15%) are required to be designed in a manner to 
reduce visibility by using stepped building forms, natural color and materials, sloped roofs, and 
landscaping. This townhome project utilizes attached townhome units with pitched roof designs, 
placing the larger units at the less visible rear portion of the dug into existing grade. The 
project’s use of natural stone and wood materials and mature screening landscaping further 
ensure compliance with hillside regulations.  None of the thirty-six townhome units skyline 
above adjacent hillsides or knolls. The townhome project complies with all applicable 
regulations and design criteria contained in the Development Code and is consistent with the 
intent and purpose of the Hillside Ordinance, the White Clouds Master Plan, and the White 
Clouds PUD. 

 
 
Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact, the City Council makes the following Conclusions 
of Law: 
 
1. Subject to appropriate conditions below, the subdivision conforms with all applicable 

requirements of Title 9, Development Code, and all other applicable ordinances and provisions 
of the City of Sun Valley City Code because the design of the townhome sublots with associated 
improvements complies with all applicable density, design, lot size, width, depth, shape, 
orientation, and use requirements. The Final Plat complies with all applicable regulations in 
effect for the proposed sublots within the applicable zoning district. The site is suitable for the 
proposed multi-family residential land use and is allowed by right within the RM-1 Zoning 
District. The applicant’s thirty-six unit design represents development of the site with 
approximately one-third the development density allowed by Code. The proposed overall 
subdivision of the property to form thirty-six total townhome sublots and common area is in 
accordance with the uses and densities permitted within the RM-1 Zoning District.   

 
2. The Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D Final Plat is in accordance 

with the City of Sun Valley 2005 Comprehensive Plan Update which designates the area as 
Medium Density Residential.  The subject property is currently designated as Medium Density 
Residential (up to 14 du/acre max.) by the Future Land Use Map of the 2005 Comprehensive 
Plan Update.  The RM-1 Zoning District implements the Medium Density Residential 
designation of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

3. Essential public facilities and services, including but not limited to emergency services, transit, 
public street maintenance, housing, and schools, are available to support the proposed uses 
and density or intensity without creating additional requirements at public costs for such public 
facilities and services. 
 

4. The proposed subdivision will be accessed from the existing Diamond Back public roadway 
improvements. As required by the Fire Department and proposed by the applicant, the 
constructed driveway and access roadway improvements meet all minimum standards for such 

CC-2

94



improvements as specified by Title 7 of the City Code.  The existing Diamond Back Road and 
Trail Creek Road improvements provide direct access to the subdivision without the need for 
further construction of public streets or any additional right-of-way. Existing water and sewer 
infrastructure lies in close proximity and has been extended onto the site to adequately serve 
the new development. Proper Will Serve letters have been obtained for the project from the Sun 
Valley Water and Sewer District, Idaho Power, and Intermountain Gas Company. Snow plowing 
and clearing on the private driveway system will be provided by the property owners. No offsite 
improvements are needed to connect the subdivision with existing public services and utilities.  
Fire and police service are provided by the City. The development will have no significant 
impact on the financial capability of the City to provide municipal services.   
 

5. It is determined that the proposed subdivision design complies with the specific design and 
improvement standards specified in Chapters 3 (Design and Development Regulations) and 4 
(Subdivision Regulations) of Title 9 (Development Code) and with Title 7 (Engineering 
Standards and Design Practices) of the City Code.  No significant historical, natural, ecological, 
architectural, or scenic special sites lie on or adjacent to the project site.  No significant streams, 
lakes, or other natural bodies of water lie on site or directly adjacent.  A site specific slope 
analysis was submitted as part of the project application and areas of any significant slope have 
been identified and quantified for the area on and adjacent to the proposed sublots. The 
significant slopes and hillsides lie off-site adjacent to the northwest in open space and 
recreation zoned parcels. Pursuant to the deviations allowed in regard to steep slopes by the 
PUD approved for the overall White Clouds project, the subdivision design is appropriate for 
multi-family development. No view or hillside scaring will occur to the larger prominent 
surrounding hillsides and no significant natural features or hilltops will be disturbed. No natural 
tree masses or unique rock or geological formations exist on the site and the area is not within 
an identified view corridor or skyline. 

 
6. The Community Development Department and the City's contract engineer, CH2M Hill, have 

completed a comprehensive review of the final plat application and have determined that all 
required application materials have been satisfactorily submitted as per Development Code 
requirements.  The proposed townhome subdivision is consistent with the 2005 Comprehensive 
Plan Update for the Gun Club (now referred to as the White Clouds) Land Use Planning Area.  
All aspects of the subdivision are consistent with the approved White Clouds Master Plan and 
the White Clouds PUD. The individual townhome sublots and surrounding site improvements 
are congruent with the size, nature, and character of existing and future development in the 
area. No significant negative impacts to the area, City, or natural environment have been 
identified due to the thirty-six lot townhome subdivision, including but not limited to, water 
quality, air quality, noise, vegetation, riparian corridors, hillsides, and other natural features. The 
final plat design minimizes impact on sensitive prominent hillsides and places development on 
the flatter, less visible areas of the site to minimize visual impacts on surrounding land uses. 
The townhomes placed higher on the site will be dug into grade. The subdivision is not 
materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare, and any significant impacts have 
been mitigated satisfactorily as a result of the project design as determined by the City Council.  
No significant negative impacts to the area or City due to the two (2) townhome sublot 
subdivision have been identified by staff nor have any comments or questions been received by 
the City during the noticed review and comment period for the City Council public hearing on the 
final plat application. 

 
 

 
 

CC-2

95



 
 

DECISION 
 
Therefore, based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact/Conclusions of Law, the Sun Valley City Council 
hereby conditionally approves the final plat for the Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, 
and Tract D based upon submitted application review documents, plat drawings, supporting exhibits, 
and testimony on the record at the public hearing, all considered by the City Council and subject to the 
following conditions of approval. 
 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
1. The final plat for the Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D shall be 

recorded by the applicant at the Office of the County Recorder and a copy of the recorded final 
plat document shall be submitted to the Community Development Department.  No lots within 
the proposed subdivision shall be sold until the plat has been recorded in the Office of the 
County Recorder. 

 
2. Prior to or concurrent with recordation of the Final Plat, the applicant shall record a final copy of 

the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of Diamond Back Townhomes, which 
shall adequately provide for the control and maintenance of all commonly held facilities, 
garages, landscaping, parking, and/or open site areas for the two newly completed townhomes.  
A copy of the recorded Declaration shall be submitted to the Community Development Director. 
 
 

Dated this 5th day of November, 2015. 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 
City of Sun Valley 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Date Findings of Fact signed 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Alissa Weber, City Clerk 
City of Sun Valley 

CC-2

96



CC-2 
Page Reserved for 

Certificates of 
Occupancy                      

for  
Diamond Back 

Townhomes Sublots 12 
& 14 and 17 &18 

97



CC-3

22098



CC-3

22199



CC-3

222100



CC-3

223101



CC-3

224102



CC-3

225103



CC-3

226104



CC-4

227105



CC-4

228106



CC-4

229107



CC-4

230108



CC-5

109



CC-5

110



PLAT CHECK LIST 

1 Subdivision Name: Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13-14, 17-18, and Tract D 

2 Reviewer: Betsy Roberts 

3 Date: October 13, 2015 

4 Sheet Title and Preamble: Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13-14, 17-18, and Tract D 

Located within: Sections 6&7, Township 4 North, Range 18 East, 
B.M., City of Sun Valley, Blaine County, Idaho 

A Townhouse Subdivision of Tract C within the Plat of “Diamond 
Back Townhomes: Sublots 5-8 and Tract C”, Creating Sublots 13-14, 
17-18, and Tract D. 

5 Basis of Bearing: OK.  Basis of Bearing per original Plat referred to in Note #1.  
Original Basis of Bearing shown in Plat of White Clouds Corrected:  
Parcels A, B & J Amended”, recorded as Inst. No. 620423.   

6 North Arrow: OK 

7 Scale and Legend: OK 

8 Plat Closure: OK 

9 Total Area: OK.  Tract D and Sublot Area shown  

10 Monuments: OK 

11 Land Corners: OK 

12 Initial Point: Not Shown.  Referred to in White Clouds Corrected Plat. 

13 Street Names & Width: OK – agreed names would be removed since they are private streets. 
Width 22’ described in easement. 

14 Easements: OK 

15 Lot & Block Numbers: OK 

16 Lot Dimensions: OK 

17 Curve & Line Tables: OK  

18 Certifications:  Shown 

19 Certificate of Owner: None 

20 Certificate of Surveyor: None 

21 Sanitary Restriction: None 

22 Agency Approvals: None 

23 Public Dedication: None (Standard public easement for utilities)  

24 Common Areas: OK 

 
P:\SUNVALLEYIDCITYOF\350794\P&Z\WHITE CLOUDS TOWNHOMES\WHITE CLOUDS DIAMONDBACK TOWNHOMES\DIAMONDBACK OCTOBER 2015 REVIEW\SUBLOTS 13 THRU 
14\DIAMONDBACKTOWNHOMES_PLATREV_SUBLOT 13 14 AND 17 18 OCT 13 2015.DOC 

CC-6

111



 
 

CITY OF SUN VALLEY 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 
 
 
To:   Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:   Jae Hill, AICP, CFM, Community Development Director 
 
Meeting Date: October 5, 2015 
 
Agenda Item:  Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublot 19 and Tract E 
   Final Plat Application No. SUBFP 2015-08 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:   Public hearing for a final plat application for Sublot 19 and Tract E of a multi-family 
residential development consisting of a sublot for one constructed unit of a thirty-one unit 
townhome subdivision.   
 Applicant:  Benchmark Associates, P.A. for Sun Valley Company.  
 Application Filing Date: October 5, 2015.   
 Location: Parcel A Amended of White Clouds Corrected Subdivision. 
 
BACKGROUND:   The Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublot 19 and Tract E Final Plat application 
consists of a proposed final plat exhibit (Exhibit CC-5) showing the surveyed location, lot and 
townhome sublot boundaries, common areas, private driveways, land uses, zoning, notes and 
related easements for the constructed townhome. The final plat application requires a public 
hearing with the City Council prior to finalization and recordation of the Final Plat with the Blaine 
County Recorder. The project area consists of an existing 6.48 acre parcel within the Multi-
Family Residential (RM-1) Zoning District of the White Clouds Subdivision. The proposed final 
plat is directly associated with Plat Amendment Application SUBPA 2014-03, Preliminary Plat 
Application SUBPP 2014-04, and Design Review Application No. DR 2014-05 for the 
construction of thirty-one townhome units with associated site improvements. Many of the thirty-
one townhome units and related infrastructure improvements have been constructed. The single 
completed townhome unit is a standalone building - unattached to other townhome units. The 
remaining townhome units are in various stages of construction/completion, as are the related 
site improvements, and final plats will be submitted for these remaining sublots once they are 
complete. 
 
The subject parcel, Parcel A, was created for multi-family residential development as part of the 
White Clouds Subdivision through the City’s approval of the project’s Master Plan, Zoning Map 
Amendment, Planned Unit Development (PUD), Preliminary Plat, and Final Plat. Parcel A is one 
of five (5) multi-family parcels created by the White Clouds Corrected Subdivision. The RM-1 
Zoning District provides for medium density residential apartment, condominium, and/or 
townhouse dwellings as well as incidental uses. Single-family residential townhouse-style units 
are permitted through amendments to the PUD and the Master Plan within the RM-1 zone in the 
White Clouds area. The 6.48 acre parcel has a maximum density permitted by the Preliminary 
Plat of 14 townhome units per gross acre. The project’s proposed thirty-one townhome units 
complies with the maximum density of 90 dwelling units for the parcel allowed within the RM-1 
Zoning District. 

 

1 
 

112



 
 
 
 
 
The property owner filed a preliminary plat application on January 7, 2014 to subdivide Parcel A 
into thirty-six townhome sublots with associated site improvements. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval of the preliminary plat to the City Council on April 17, 2014 
and the City Council approved the preliminary plat application on May 15, 2014. The City 
Council's signed approval document, including findings of fact, conclusions of law and 
conditions of approval, for the preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit CC-3.  Subsequently, 
improvement and utility plans were reviewed and approved by the City and various building 
permits were issued for the project. Construction commenced and now the townhome unit is 
complete, receiving a Certificate of Occupancy (Exhibit CC-2) from the Building Official. The 
significant infrastructure for the entire project has been completed and the driveway access to 
and behind the unit is in place. 
 
ANALYSIS:   As per Municipal Code Section 9-4A-7B, Director’s Review, the Diamond Back 
Townhomes: Sublot 19 and Tract E Final Plat was reviewed by the Community Development 
Director for compliance with the approved preliminary plat design and all applicable conditions 
of approval. As permitted by the Development Code, the Director determined that the final plat 
did not significantly differ from the approved preliminary plat and did not require that the final 
plat be submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission for its evaluation and decision in the 
same manner as required in the preliminary plat process. Additionally, the final plat and 
application materials have been found to comply with all applicable standards and requirements 
of the City Code. 
 
CONDITION OF APPROVAL COMPLIANCE: The White Clouds Development, Parcel A, Multi-
Family Townhomes Preliminary Plat approval contains eleven (11) specific conditions of 
approval, listed as follows: 
 

1. The Preliminary Plat and all aspects of the subdivision design shall conform to the 
project drawings stamped received by the City of Sun Valley on March 10, 2014 and 
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission on March 20, 2014.  Construction 
of improvements, facilities, private streets, driveways and public utility improvements 
shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City. 

 
2. The applicant shall comply with all conditions and comments contained in the 

February 11, 2014 review and comment letter from the Sun Valley Fire Department.  
No changes shall be allowed to the Plat without prior approval of the Fire Chief and 
the Community Development Director. 

  
3. To the satisfaction of the Community Development Director, in order to insure 

compliance with Title 7 of the City Code, the Developer shall provide, pay for, and 
install, or cause to be installed to City standards the following (as applicable) so as to 
insure that the City can provide necessary Municipal services and facilities: 

 
a. Water distribution systems and appurtenances including fire hydrants, fire alarms 

and other fire control devices. 
b. Sewer lines, pumps and appurtenant sewage collection and disposal devices, 

together with devices for the removal of materials and water from sewage not 
amenable to or capable of treatment or reduction by the sewer district's sewage 
treatment processes or prohibited by State or Federal laws or regulations. 

c. Streets, curbs and gutters, street base coarse material, wearing coarse material, 

2 
 

113



 
 

bridges, sidewalks, bicycle pathways, street signs, traffic control devices, 
intersection signals, vehicle turning and deceleration lanes (if applicable). 

d. Storm drainage structures, lines and appurtenances, including culverts or other 
devices to enclose open ditches and to inhibit access to them by children, 
together with drainage easements sufficient to accommodate expected runoffs as 
determined according to generally accepted drainage accommodation principles. 

e. Electrical distribution facilities, transformers and appurtenances, underground 
wiring, underground communication systems, wiring and underground cable 
television system and wiring. 

f. Gas distribution systems and appurtenances. 
g. Preservation or replacement of trees, shrubs, ground cover and other vegetation, 

install soil stabilization improvements to prevent erosion or degradation of 
surface water quality and inhibit vegetative growth in impounded waters or 
streams. 

h. Public easements shall be dedicated for all required utilities and improvements. 
 

4. The drawing submitted for final plat application and the drawings submitted to the City 
for infrastructure improvements shall be reviewed by the City’s engineer and all 
proposed private street, grading, driveway, utility and drainage improvements shall 
conform to applicable standards.  The drainage improvements shall be designed and 
constructed to be consistent with and compatible with the existing drainage 
improvements along Diamond Back Road and Trail Creek Road as well as any 
improvements and conditions on the adjacent Sun Valley Golf Course property and the 
adjacent residential subdivision.  The applicant shall comply and/or clarify as needed all 
applicable comments and conditions contained in the review letter dated March 7, 2014 
from the City’s Engineer, CH2MHill. 

 
5. The private street improvements and all related project grading, driveway, utility and 

drainage improvements shall be designed and constructed to City standards to the 
satisfaction of the City’s engineer, the Streets Department and the Community 
Development Director. No construction shall take place for the street improvements prior 
to City review and approval of a design and infrastructure plan. 

 
6. The construction management plan submitted for the thirty-one townhouse sublot 

subdivision that addresses construction parking, material storage, storm water runoff, 
site security, noise, hours of activity, and nuisance control (noise, music, animals, dust, 
site watering, trash, construction fencing, safety, and street cleaning) shall be complied 
with to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director and Chief Building 
Official throughout the entire construction process/phases. 

 
7. The applicant shall submit copies of draft party wall agreements for the duplex and four-

plex units to the Community Development Department prior to issuance of any grading 
or building permits for the project as per Development Code requirements.  Final party 
wall agreements shall be recorded and copies submitted to the Community Development 
Department prior to final plat approval. 

 
8. Prior to final plat approval by the City, the applicant shall submit final copies of 

agreements and documents creating an association of owners of the proposed 
townhouse sublots, which shall adequately provide for the control and maintenance of all 
commonly held facilities, garages, landscaping, parking and/or open site areas. 

 
9. This Preliminary Plat is specific to and contingent upon City approval of associated 

3 
 

114



 
 

applications including Master Plan Development Amendment No. MPD 2014-02, Zoning 
Map Amendment No. ZMA 2014-01 (Ordinance No. 468), Plat Amendment No. SUBPA 
2014-03, Preliminary Plat No. SUBPP 2014-02, and Design Review No. 2014-05.  The 
applicant shall satisfy all applicable conditions and requirements of these associated 
application approvals in addition to the conditions contained herein. 

 
10. A final plat shall not be approved by the City Council until all townhouse units have 

received an approved final inspection and certificate of occupancy from the City Building 
Inspector or the Council has approved a financial guarantee of performance for 
completion of improvements pursuant to Code Section 9-4A-8. 

 
11. This preliminary plat approval shall expire three hundred sixty five (365) days from the 

date of approval unless extended pursuant to Code Section 9-5A-9. 
 
 
In satisfaction of Conditions of Approval No. 1, 2, 3 and 5 of the preliminary plat approval, the 
Community Development Director reviewed the submitted final plat drawing and finds that it 
conforms to the approved preliminary plat drawings (attached as Exhibit CC-4), reviewed and 
approved by the City Council on May 15, 2014. The overall thirty-one unit project's infrastructure 
improvements have been constructed to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director and the Building Official. 
 
Although ten units and all the required public safety improvements and infrastructure are in 
place and available, approximately twenty-six approved townhome units remain under 
construction. The applicant has requested that a final plat be approved for this completed 
townhome unit so pending sales can be finalized. The draft City Council Findings of Fact, 
Conclusions of Law, Decision and Conditions of Approval for the Diamond Back Townhomes: 
Sublot 19 and Tract E  (Exhibit CC-1) includes a condition of approval as follows for 
consideration by the City Council prior to action on the final plat: 
 
As required by Condition No. 4 of the preliminary plat the applicant has complied and/or clarified 
as needed all applicable comments and conditions contained in the CH2MHill preliminary plat 
review comment letter dated March 7, 2014.   
 
Pursuant to Condition No. 6, to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director and 
Building Official, a construction management plan was satisfactorily submitted to the City for 
review and was approved.  Significant grading and construction has occurred on the site with no 
significant negative public impact or complaint.   
 
To satisfy Conditions 7 and 8, the applicant has submitted copies of draft party wall agreements 
for the duplex units and draft Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of White 
Clouds Townhomes. Proposed condition of approval No. 2 in the attached City Council Findings 
will reliably satisfy these two preliminary plat requirements. 
 
In regard to Condition No. 9 of the preliminary plat approval, the constructed townhome unit and 
all related site improvements have been completed in conformance with the City's design review 
approvals and building permits.  As specified above, the townhome unit has received final 
inspection and a certificate of occupancy from the Building Official, which satisfies Condition No. 
10.   
 
Lastly, in regard to Condition No. 11, the preliminary plat was approved by the City Council on 
May 15, 2014, grading and building permit applications were soon thereafter reviewed and 

4 
 

115



 
 
issued by the City, then substantially acted upon by the applicant. The Community Development 
Director extended the preliminary plat approval pursuant to Code Section 9-5A-9. The final plat 
application was submitted to the City on September 1, 2015.  Thus, Condition No. 11 above is 
also satisfied.   
 
Therefore, it can be found by the City Council that the submitted final plat conforms with the 
approved preliminary plat design and all applicable conditions of approval required prior to City 
action on a final plat have been completely satisfied by the applicant.  Draft City Council Findings 
of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Decision, and Conditions of Approval for the Diamond Back 
Townhomes: Sublot 19 and Tract E, Application No. SUBFP 2015-08, are attached as Exhibit 
CC-1. 
 
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS:   The alternatives available to the City Council for action on the final 
plat application include: 
 
(1) Close the public hearing, make the required findings and adopt the attached draft 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, as may be modified or specifically conditioned 
by the Council, approving the final plat application; or 

 
(2) Close the public hearing, discuss the findings, vote to deny the application and direct 

staff to return on a date certain with a resolution of denial reflecting the comments and 
findings of the Council; or 

 
(3)  Continue the hearing date certain for further information and review prior to an action on 

the requested final plat or to direct staff to bring the final plat to the review of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission for a recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Before public comment is received, the City Council should disclose all 
information and contacts received outside the hearing on this item upon which the decision will be 
based, receive public testimony, and consider the facts and findings necessary to make a decision 
on the application.  The City Council formally approved the preliminary plat application for the 
White Clouds Development, Parcel A Amended, Multi-Family Townhomes on May 15, 2014. 
 
The Community Development Director recommends that the City Council make and adopt a 
motion to approve the final plat application by finding the submitted final plat is consistent 
with the approved preliminary plat and finding that all applicable conditions of approval 
required prior to City action on a final plat for the subdivision have been satisfied by the 
applicant. 
 
 
LIST OF ATTACHED EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit CC-1 Draft City Council Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Decision and 

Conditions of Approval for the Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublot 19 and 
Tract E, Application No. SUBFP 2015-08. 

 
Exhibit CC-2 Certificate of Occupancy for Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublot 19 
 
Exhibit CC-3 Approved City Council Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Decision 

and Conditions of Approval for the White Clouds Development, Parcel A 

5 
 

116



 
 

Amended, Multi-Family Townhomes Preliminary Plat, Application No. 
SUBPP 2014-04. 

 
Exhibit CC-4 White Clouds Development, Parcel A, Multi-Family Townhomes 

Preliminary Plat drawings consisting of four 11” by 17” sheets reviewed 
and approved by the City Council on May 15, 2014. 

 
Exhibit CC-5 Reduced Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublot 19 and Tract E, Application 

No. SUBFP 2015-08 Final Plat Exhibit, consisting of three 11” by 17” 
sheets received by the City of Sun Valley on October 5, 2015. 

 
Exhibit CC-6 Final Plat Review: Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublot 19 and Tract E, 

letter and plat checklist from Betsy Roberts of CH2MHill, dated October 
17, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
**The entire administrative record for the final plat application is available for review in the 
Community Development Department at City Hall. 

6 
 

117



DRAFT 
SUN VALLEY CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
LAND SUBDIVISION   )  FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS 
WHITE CLOUDS TOWNHOMES  )  OF LAW, DECISION AND 
SUBLOTS 13&14, 17&18, AND TRACT D )  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
OF PARCEL A AMENDED OF  ) 
WHITE CLOUDS CORRECTED  ) 
PARCELS A, B, & J AMENDED                ) 
FINAL PLAT     ) 
APPLICATION NO. SUBFP 2015-07 ) 
 
 
This final plat application for four townhome sublots of a thirty-six unit townhome subdivision came 
before the Sun Valley City Council for consideration on November 5, 2015.  The City Council reviewed 
the Community Development Director’s Agenda Report and recommendation, conducted a properly 
noticed public hearing, and heard testimony from the public, the applicant, and the applicant’s 
representatives.  Based on the evidence presented, the City Council makes the following Findings of 
Fact/Conclusions of Law and Decision. 
 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT / CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 
1. The applicant for the Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D is 

Benchmark Associates, P.A. for Sun Valley Company.  The project area consists of an existing 
6.48 acre parcel within the Multi-Family Residential (RM-1) Zoning District of the White Clouds 
Subdivision.  The final plat is directly associated with Plat Amendment Application SUBPA 
2014-03, Preliminary Plat Application SUBPP 2014-04, and Design Review Application No. DR 
2014-05 for the construction of thirty-six townhome units with associated site improvements. 
Several of the units and the base subdivision infrastructure have been constructed. Construction 
continues on the remaining units, and final plats will be submitted for those remaining sublots 
once completed.    

 
2. The subject parcel was created for multi-family residential development as part of the White 

Clouds Subdivision through the City’s approval of the project’s Master Plan, Zoning Map 
Amendment, Planned Unit Development (PUD), Preliminary Plat, and Final Plat.  Parcel A is 
one of five (5) multi-family parcels created by the White Clouds Subdivision. 

 
3. The final plat for Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D (Application 

No. SUBFP 2015-07) creates four new multi-family townhome sublots in two duplex buildings. 
The project’s remaining townhome units and related site improvements will be completed and 
recorded as separate final plat approvals. The RM-1 Zoning District provides for medium density 
residential apartment, condominium, and/or townhouse dwellings as well as incidental uses. 
Multiple-family residential townhouse units are permitted by right within the RM-1 zone. The 
6.48 acre parcel has a maximum density permitted by the Preliminary Plat of 14 dwelling units 
per gross acres (90 units maximum). The project’s proposed total of thirty-six townhome units 
complies with the maximum density of 90 dwelling units for the parcel allowed within the RM-1 
Zoning District. 
 

4. The property owner filed a preliminary plat application on January 7, 2014 to subdivide Parcel A 

 
Page 1 of 5 

 

CC-2

118



into thirty-six townhome sublots with associated site improvements. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval of the preliminary plat to the City Council on April 17, 2014 
and the City Council approved the preliminary plat application on May 15, 2014.  Improvement 
and utility plans were reviewed and approved by the City and various building permits were 
issued for the project. Construction commenced and these two townhome units are complete, 
each receiving a Certificate of Occupancy. The significant infrastructure for the entire project 
has been completed and the driveway access specific to the two units is in place. 
 

5. As per Municipal Code Section 9-4A-7B, Director’s Review, the Diamond Back Townhomes: 
Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D Final Plat was reviewed by the Community Development 
Director for compliance with the approved preliminary plat design and all applicable conditions 
of approval.  As permitted by the Development Code, the Director determined that the final plat 
did not significantly differ from the approved preliminary plat and, based on the review and 
comments from the City’s Contract Engineer (CH2MHill), did not require that the final plat be 
submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission for its evaluation and decision in the same 
manner as required in the preliminary plat process. 
 

6. The required criteria for City Council review of a proposed final plat are contained in City Code 
Section 9-4A-7C and are fully discussed below. Additionally, City Code Section 9-4B-3, 
Townhomes, sets forth provisions to provide for public health, safety, and welfare of purchasers 
and residents of townhome developments.  Section 9-4B-3D-2 requires that a final plat shall not 
be approved by the City Council until all townhouse units have received an approved final 
inspection and certificate of occupancy from the City Building Inspector or the Council has 
approved a financial guarantee of performance for completion of improvements pursuant to 
Section 9-4A-8, Surety Agreements. The two townhome units associated with this Final Plat are 
complete and have received certificates of occupancy. All significant infrastructure for the thirty-
six unit townhome development is complete and the construction of the remaining townhome 
units continues.  

 
7. The subdivision includes extensive open common area and a private street/driveway system to 

access each of the two newly constructed townhome sublots from the Diamond Back Road 
right-of-way.  Snow storage, utility, and drainage easements exist on the property along 
Diamond Back Road and Clos Du Val Road.  The Diamond Back Road public street right-of-way 
and path will be plowed clear of snow by the City and Trail Creek Road is currently plowed by 
Idaho Transportation Department. No avalanche or run-out areas exist on the project site. 

 
8. The SVW&SD issued a will-serve letter for the overall White Clouds Subdivision as part of the 

Preliminary Plat review and action.  A submitted and approved Water and Sewer Plan detailed 
nearby existing utility infrastructure and on-site improvements. These water and sewer 
improvements are now constructed and available.  The project can be fully served by the 
constructed water and sewer utilities.  All other applicable services and utilities were extended 
to the site as part of the overall White Clouds infrastructure implementation and are adequate to 
fully serve the two townhomes as well as the remaining townhome units under construction. 
 

9. Considering and in accordance with the deviations and public benefits contained in the PUD 
approval for the overall White Clouds Development, the project design is consistent with 
Development Code Sections 9-4A-5, Design, and 9-3H-4, Regulated Structures. The significant 
slopes, ridges, knolls, summits and hilltops of the White Clouds Land Use Planning Area were 
preserved and subdivided into open space and recreational zoned parcels. The remaining more 
developable portions of the area were subdivided into lots with single- and multi-family 

 
Page 2 of 5 

 

CC-2

119



residential uses.  No significant historical, natural, ecological, architectural, archeological, or 
scenic special sites lie on site or directly adjacent to Parcel A. No significant streams, lakes, or 
other natural bodies of water lie on or adjacent to the site. The significant slopes and hillsides lie 
off-site adjacent to the northwest in open space and recreation zoned parcels. Pursuant to the 
deviations allowed in regard to steep slopes by the PUD approved for the overall White Clouds 
project, the subdivision design is appropriate for multi-family development. No significant view or 
hillside scaring will occur to the larger prominent surrounding hillsides and no significant natural 
features or hilltops will be disturbed. In the RM-1 Zoning District, buildings on natural 
topography greater than fifteen percent (15%) are required to be designed in a manner to 
reduce visibility by using stepped building forms, natural color and materials, sloped roofs, and 
landscaping. This townhome project utilizes attached townhome units with pitched roof designs, 
placing the larger units at the less visible rear portion of the dug into existing grade. The 
project’s use of natural stone and wood materials and mature screening landscaping further 
ensure compliance with hillside regulations.  None of the thirty-six townhome units skyline 
above adjacent hillsides or knolls. The townhome project complies with all applicable 
regulations and design criteria contained in the Development Code and is consistent with the 
intent and purpose of the Hillside Ordinance, the White Clouds Master Plan, and the White 
Clouds PUD. 

 
 
Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact, the City Council makes the following Conclusions 
of Law: 
 
1. Subject to appropriate conditions below, the subdivision conforms with all applicable 

requirements of Title 9, Development Code, and all other applicable ordinances and provisions 
of the City of Sun Valley City Code because the design of the townhome sublots with associated 
improvements complies with all applicable density, design, lot size, width, depth, shape, 
orientation, and use requirements. The Final Plat complies with all applicable regulations in 
effect for the proposed sublots within the applicable zoning district. The site is suitable for the 
proposed multi-family residential land use and is allowed by right within the RM-1 Zoning 
District. The applicant’s thirty-six unit design represents development of the site with 
approximately one-third the development density allowed by Code. The proposed overall 
subdivision of the property to form thirty-six total townhome sublots and common area is in 
accordance with the uses and densities permitted within the RM-1 Zoning District.   

 
2. The Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D Final Plat is in accordance 

with the City of Sun Valley 2005 Comprehensive Plan Update which designates the area as 
Medium Density Residential.  The subject property is currently designated as Medium Density 
Residential (up to 14 du/acre max.) by the Future Land Use Map of the 2005 Comprehensive 
Plan Update.  The RM-1 Zoning District implements the Medium Density Residential 
designation of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

3. Essential public facilities and services, including but not limited to emergency services, transit, 
public street maintenance, housing, and schools, are available to support the proposed uses 
and density or intensity without creating additional requirements at public costs for such public 
facilities and services. 
 

4. The proposed subdivision will be accessed from the existing Diamond Back public roadway 
improvements. As required by the Fire Department and proposed by the applicant, the 
constructed driveway and access roadway improvements meet all minimum standards for such 

 
Page 3 of 5 

 

CC-2

120



improvements as specified by Title 7 of the City Code.  The existing Diamond Back Road and 
Trail Creek Road improvements provide direct access to the subdivision without the need for 
further construction of public streets or any additional right-of-way. Existing water and sewer 
infrastructure lies in close proximity and has been extended onto the site to adequately serve 
the new development. Proper Will Serve letters have been obtained for the project from the Sun 
Valley Water and Sewer District, Idaho Power, and Intermountain Gas Company. Snow plowing 
and clearing on the private driveway system will be provided by the property owners. No offsite 
improvements are needed to connect the subdivision with existing public services and utilities.  
Fire and police service are provided by the City. The development will have no significant 
impact on the financial capability of the City to provide municipal services.   
 

5. It is determined that the proposed subdivision design complies with the specific design and 
improvement standards specified in Chapters 3 (Design and Development Regulations) and 4 
(Subdivision Regulations) of Title 9 (Development Code) and with Title 7 (Engineering 
Standards and Design Practices) of the City Code.  No significant historical, natural, ecological, 
architectural, or scenic special sites lie on or adjacent to the project site.  No significant streams, 
lakes, or other natural bodies of water lie on site or directly adjacent.  A site specific slope 
analysis was submitted as part of the project application and areas of any significant slope have 
been identified and quantified for the area on and adjacent to the proposed sublots. The 
significant slopes and hillsides lie off-site adjacent to the northwest in an open space and 
recreation zoned parcels.  Pursuant to the deviations allowed in regard to steep slopes by the 
PUD approved for the overall White Clouds project, the subdivision design is appropriate for 
multi-family development.  No view or hillside scaring will occur to the larger prominent 
surrounding hillsides and no significant natural features or hilltops will be disturbed. No natural 
tree masses or unique rock or geological formations exist on the site and the area is not within 
an identified view corridor or skyline. 

 
6. The Community Development Department and the City's contract engineer, CH2M Hill, have 

completed a comprehensive review of the final plat application and have determined that all 
required application materials have been satisfactorily submitted as per Development Code 
requirements.  The proposed townhome subdivision is consistent with the 2005 Comprehensive 
Plan Update for the Gun Club (now referred to as the White Clouds) Land Use Planning Area.  
All aspects of the subdivision are consistent with the approved White Clouds Master Plan and 
the White Clouds PUD. The individual townhome sublots and surrounding site improvements 
are congruent with the size, nature, and character of existing and future development in the 
area. No significant negative impacts to the area, City, or natural environment have been 
identified due to the thirty-six lot townhome subdivision, including but not limited to, water 
quality, air quality, noise, vegetation, riparian corridors, hillsides, and other natural features. The 
final plat design minimizes impact on sensitive prominent hillsides and places development on 
the flatter, less visible areas of the site to minimize visual impacts on surrounding land uses. 
The townhomes placed higher on the site will be dug into grade.  The subdivision is not 
materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare, and any significant impacts have 
been mitigated satisfactorily as a result of the project design as determined by the City Council.  
No significant negative impacts to the area or City due to the two (2) townhome sublot 
subdivision have been identified by staff nor have any comments or questions been received by 
the City during the noticed review and comment period for the City Council public hearing on the 
final plat application. 

 
 

 
 

 
Page 4 of 5 

 

CC-2

121



 
 

DECISION 
 
Therefore, based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact/Conclusions of Law, the Sun Valley City Council 
hereby conditionally approves the final plat for the Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, 
and Tract D based upon submitted application review documents, plat drawings, supporting exhibits, 
and testimony on the record at the public hearing, all considered by the City Council and subject to the 
following conditions of approval. 
 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
1. The final plat for the Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D shall be 

recorded by the applicant at the Office of the County Recorder and a copy of the recorded final 
plat document shall be submitted to the Community Development Department.  No lots within 
the proposed subdivision shall be sold until the plat has been recorded in the Office of the 
County Recorder. 

 
2. Prior to or concurrent with recordation of the Final Plat, the applicant shall record a final copy of 

the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of Diamond Back Townhomes, which 
shall adequately provide for the control and maintenance of all commonly held facilities, 
garages, landscaping, parking, and/or open site areas for the two newly completed townhomes.  
A copy of the recorded Declaration shall be submitted to the Community Development Director. 
 
 

Dated this 5th day of November, 2015. 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 
City of Sun Valley 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Date Findings of Fact signed 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Alissa Weber, City Clerk 
City of Sun Valley 

 
Page 5 of 5 

 

CC-2

122



CC-2 
Page Reserved for 

Certificates of 

Occupancy                      

for  

Diamond Back 

Townhomes Sublot 19 

123



CC-3

220124



CC-3

221125



CC-3

222126



CC-3

223127



CC-3

224128



CC-3

225129



CC-3

226130



CC-4

227131



CC-4

228132



CC-4

229133



CC-4

230134



CC-5

135



CC-5

136



PLAT CHECK LIST 

1 Subdivision Name: Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublot 19 and Tract E 

2 Reviewer: Betsy Roberts 

3 Date: October 17, 2015 

4 Sheet Title and Preamble: Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublot 19 and Tract E 

Located within: Sections 6&7, Township 4 North, Range 18 East, 
B.M., City of Sun Valley, Blaine County, Idaho 

A Townhouse Subdivision of Tract C within the Plat of 
“Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13-14, 17-18  and Tract D”, 
Creating Sublot 19 and Tract E. 

5 Basis of Bearing: OK.  Basis of Bearing referred to in Note #1 is per the plat “White 
Clouds Corrected:  Parcels A, B, & J Amended”, recorded as Inst. 
No. 620423.  

6 North Arrow: OK 

7 Scale and Legend: OK 

8 Plat Closure: OK 

9 Total Area: OK.  Tract E and Sublot Area shown  

10 Monuments: OK 

11 Land Corners: OK 

12 Initial Point: Not Shown.  Referred to in White Clouds Corrected Plat. 

13 Street Names & Width: OK – agreed names would be removed since they are private 
streets. Width 22’ described in easement. 

14 Easements: OK 

15 Lot & Block Numbers: OK 

16 Lot Dimensions: OK 

17 Curve & Line Tables: OK 

18 Certifications:  Shown 

19 Certificate of Owner: None 

20 Certificate of Surveyor: None 

21 Sanitary Restriction: None 

22 Agency Approvals: None 

23 Public Dedication: None (Standard public easement for utilities)  

24 Common Areas: OK 

 
P:\SUNVALLEYIDCITYOF\350794\P&Z\WHITE CLOUDS TOWNHOMES\WHITE CLOUDS DIAMONDBACK TOWNHOMES\DIAMONDBACK OCTOBER 2015 
REVIEW\SUBLOT 19\DIAMONDBACKTOWNHOMES_PLATREV_SUBLOT 19 TRACT E 101915.DOC 

CC-6

137



 Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF SUN VALLEY 

CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

 

From:   Jae Hill, AICP, CFM, Community Development Director 

Meeting Date:  5 November 2015 

SAGE CREEK WIRELESS FACILITY 

BACKGROUND:  In 2007, Edge Wireless (later AT&T) submitted an application for a Conditional Use 

Permit (CUP2007-04) for a new wireless communication facility to be constructed atop the Sun Valley 

Water & Sewer District's Sage Creek Reservoir.  This application received two public hearings - October 

11 and November 30, 2007 - and was subsequently denied by the Planning Commission, with formal 

findings of denial approved on December 13, 2007.  The Commission, at that time, found that the tower 

was "not compatible with the uses permitted in the applicable [OR-1] zoning district because of a 

skylining effect on adjacent land uses and visual impact upon the open quality and character of the 

natural hillside area and viewshed."  The Commission also found that the applicants had "not 

demonstrated all practical means" to conceal or minimize the visual impacts of the facility." 

The applicant filed a timely appeal and the matter was heard at the City Council on January 17, 2008, 

where the Council overturned the Commission's denial of the CUP.  Condition 1 of this approval stated 

that "any future modifications to the facility or its structural elements shall require City approval of a 

modification to this Conditional Use Permit."  Condition 3 imposed monitoring requirements which 

necessitated the submittal of materials to the Community Development Director every 5 years.  The only 

penalty stated for failure to comply with the monitoring requirements referenced a code section that 

has no enforcement except for an abandoned or decommissioned tower. 

On January 23, 2014, AT&T requested an equipment upgrade which included new electrical equipment 

inside the facility, new antenna panels, and a new support pole - increased in width from 4" to 6".  From 

DR2013-18: 

The most significant change is to the antenna mounted pole and panels.  The two 

existing antenna panels on the pole will be changed out with two new antenna panels 

that are longer.  The two new panels are 11.8" wide and 96 inches long.  The existing 

antenna panels were approved at 4-feet, 4-inches in length and 14 inches in width.  The 

existing 4 inch pole will be changed out with a new 6 inch wide support pipe pole but will 

extend no higher than the existing pole.  The pipe pole and antenna panels will maintain 

the existing 20-foot height above the booster pump structure. 

This was approved by the Planning Commission on the same day as the hearing. 

As part of the Design Review submittals which approved the design of the modifications to the booster 

pump station (DR2007-060) and the initial tower (DR2007-061), the applicant was required to plant 

138



 Page 2 of 4 

three aspens to screen the facility; the trees subsequently died after a few years as noted in the Staff 

Report for DR2013-18.  The location - high on the exposed hillside - was likely not suitable for such 

vegetation without irrigation and other regular maintenance. 

On November 4, 2014, Ned Williamson, attorney for Irwin and Ann Sentilles of 212 Lupine Street, 

submitted a letter outlining several points of contention.  Mr. Williamson claimed that: 

 The Council conducted a de novo hearing of the 2007 CUP instead of reviewing the 

Commission's decision and findings; 

 The Council never expressed in its appeal findings how the Commission erred; 

 The facility "doubled in size" per the 2014 Design Review application; 

 The notice for the 2014 Design Review application was improper as it called the project a 

"retrofit" instead of an application to "expand the array so materially" 

 That the 2007 CUP should have been modified before proceeding with the 2014 Design Review; 

Municipal Code section 9-5A-9.A sets a schedule for appeals, but the November 2014 letter from Ned 

Williamson (on behalf of the Sentilles family) was time-barred as an appeal due to its late submittal.  

Further, it could be contended that the letter doesn't include a formal request for appeal, but includes 

suggestions that the City hold a new CUP hearing and that the City revise its code to make the facility 

nonconforming, then proceed with abatement of the newly-created nonconformity as a "remedy" to the 

aforementioned complaints. 

On July 6, 2015, AT&T responded to the City's May and June 2015 requests for materials to ensure 

compliance with the Conditions of Approval of the CUP and Design Review approvals.  In its letter and 

submission, AT&T not only provides all of the information required by Condition 3 of the CUP, but it also 

clearly states its position as to why it feels a new CUP is not required.  The City Attorney and the 

Community Development Director agreed with the position of AT&T at this time and requested the final 

item - an emissions study - be provided to satisfy Condition 3, Item 2.  This study was provided on 

October 6, 2015 (and was furnished to Mr. Williamson as well). 

ANALYSIS:  Section 9-3K-2 [Applicability] of the Wireless Communication Facility Standards states that 

"this article applies to all wireless communication facilities existing and proposed to be located within 

the limits of the city" but 9-3K-5 [Design Review Permit Required] and 9-3K-6 [Conditional Use Permit 

Required] expressly state that a permit is only required for proposed facilities.  No mention of a 

permitting requirement - or process - is made for modification of existing facilities. 

The Federal Communications Commission's Wireless Facility Modification rules ("§6409") state that "a 

State or local government may not deny and shall approve any eligible facilities request for modification 

of an eligible support structure that does not substantially change the physical dimensions of the 

structure."    The law further defines "substantial change" as being limited to the height of the "eligible 

support structure" or to modifications to appurtenances that would increase the width by an amount 

equivalent to the width of the support structure; the regulation does not cover the modification of an 

individual antenna panel, regardless of the changes in dimensions of a particular array or panel.   The 

pole did not double in width, increasing from 4" to only 6". 

139



 Page 3 of 4 

Our code is silent on the process or need for a "modification" of a Conditional Use Permit.  Permits only 

expire if an expiration is assigned at the time of approval (9-5B-2.C.5.a).  Without condemnation and 

revocation of the permit for noncompliance, it wouldn't expire and therefore a new application wouldn't 

be required.  A Design Review application (such as the one granted in DR 2013-18) was intended (rightly 

or wrongly) to serve for modification of the facility in place of a revised CUP.  Furthermore, without 

specific code language about the "modification" of a CUP, a new CUP would be required in its place - an 

inappropriate action (per our own code) for an existing facility. 

Condition 9 of DR 2013-18 references Condition 3 of CUP 2007-04 (which is copied from 9-3K-7.C.4 

"Monitoring") and requires that information be submitted at 5-year intervals confirming: 

1. continued operation of the facility 

2. power strength measurements that the facility is FCC emissions compliant 

3. that there is no equipment available to enhance safety, efficiency, or visibility - or reduce the 

size - of the facility 

4. that there are not more appropriate locations for the facility 

5. that the facility is still essential to the network 

6. and documentation of any complaints regarding operation and maintenance. 

This condition just requires written confirmation, not evidence - with the exception of Item 2.  On July 6, 

2015, counsel for Edge/AT&T provided the statements required under Items 1, 3, 4, 5,and 6 of Condition 

3, and promised forthcoming emissions measurements under Item 2.  On October 6, 2015, AT&T 

provided a Power Density Study to satisfy the requirements of Item 2. 

On August 19, 2015, counsel for the Sentilles sent another letter insisting that the City take an "active 

role in testing whether an alternative site exists or if less visible equipment is available, as the CUP 

requires."  This is an inaccurate statement, as the requirement is that the applicant provide 

"confirmation" regarding such sites or equipment availability.  Furthermore, the City doesn't have 

registered professional staff to conduct such studies and thus the cost of hiring a consultant would be 

borne by the City.  Neither the Code nor the Conditions of Approval allow the City to select an alternate 

site. 

9-5B-2.C.6.c(2) allows for revocation of a Conditional Use Permit if the conditions are violated and an 

applicant is given a ten-day correction notice.  It's unclear if any such notice was ever provided; 

regardless, now that the materials have been submitted, the application is in compliance with the 

conditions contained in the DR, CUP, and applicable Code sections. 

Finally, the appeal of the original CUP itself appears to have been held correctly as per the City's 

Municipal Code in 9-5A-9.F [Decision]. 

CONCLUSION:  Due to a combination of factors, including Staff turnover, the Community Development 

Department has sought to rectify the compliance of CUP2007-04 through voluntary actions with AT&T.  

AT&T has submitted, to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director, the items required 

140



 Page 4 of 4 

under the monitoring requirements of the Municipal Code's Wireless Standards, the 2007 Conditional 

Use Permit, and the 2014 Design Review approval.   

Staff has not aggressively pursued remediation action against AT&T because the City could not have 

successfully prosecuted an enforcement case when the City itself had failed to monitor the Conditional 

Use Permits' conditions - though the burden is on the applicant to provide the information every five 

years, Staff had not followed up with the tower owner or applicant to notify them of the deficient 

materials.  Staff also has been recently "disinclined" to take action because of the critical health, safety, 

and welfare benefits that the wireless facility provides to the surrounding area - AT&T's own maps show 

the lack of cell service in the area if the tower were removed or relocated.   

In summary, Staff has provided substantive evidence and context to affirm our disagreement with Mr. 

Williamson's self-styled "appeal" of the Sage Creek facility's approvals: 

1. The facility "doubled in size" per the 2014 Design Review application; 

o Antenna panel change-outs are allowed by-right in our code. A Conditional Use Permit is 

only required for "proposed facilities."  Design Review approval is only required for 

substantial changes in the support structure; the term "substantial change" is defined by 

§6409 and doesn't apply in this particular case as the width of the new support 

structures was within FCC-delimited specifications and the "tower" height didn't change. 

2. The notice for the 2014 Design Review application was improper as it called the project a 

"retrofit" instead of an application to "expand the array so materially." 

o The equipment change-outs didn't expand the array beyond that which is permissible 

by-right under Federal law, nor was a new facility constructed or proposed, and 

therefore the project was a retrofit and not an expansion. 

3. That the 2007 CUP should have been modified before proceeding with the 2014 Design Review. 

o There is no stated procedure in the code to modify a Conditional Use Permit and  the 

only remedy would have been to require a new Conditional Use Permit; the code, 

however, does not require a new Conditional Use Permit for change-outs on existing 

facilities - rather the code expressly states that change-outs may occur by-right, 

provided 30-day notice is given to the City. 

 

141



142



143



144



N:\Electronic Council Packets\2015\November\November 5 2015 Regular City Council Meeting\Cell 

Tower\P&ZDenialEdgeWirelessSageCreekPZCUP2007-04.docx 

 1 

SUN VALLEY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT )  FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS 
     )  OF LAW AND DECISION 
APPLICATION #CUP2007-04 ) 
 
 
Edge Wireless submitted an application for Conditional Use Permit for the construction of a new 
wireless communication facility to be added to an existing pump booster station structure adjacent 
to the SVW&SD Sage Creek Reservoir on property within the Outdoor Recreation (OR-1) Zoning 
District.  This matter came before the Sun Valley Planning and Zoning Commission for 
consideration on October 11 and November 30, 2007 as a duly noticed public hearing.  The 
Commission heard comments from the applicant's representatives and the public, conducted a site 
visit to the project site, and reviewed the City Agenda Report and background supporting materials.  
Having concluded its review of the application, the Commission made the following Findings of 
Fact/Conclusions of Law and decision, directing staff to return date certain on December 13, 2007 
with draft findings for denial reflecting the comments and discussion of the Commission: 
 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT/ CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 
1. The applicant is Edge Wireless and the subject property is the Sage Creek water booster 

station operated by the Sun Valley Water & Sewer District, located at 100 Sage Creek 
Reservoir Road and zoned Outdoor Recreation (OR-1). 

 
2. The proposed application is for a Conditional Use Permit for a new wireless communication 

facility to be incorporated into the existing Sage Creek Booster Pump building.  
Freestanding antennas and other communication towers are a land use permitted within the 
OR-1 Zoning District with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit provided they serve a 
demonstrated community wide function and all reasonable measures are taken to mitigate 
the potential impact upon the open quality and character of the District. 

 
3. Title 9, Chapter 5, Article B, Section 2 of the Sun Valley Municipal Code allows a 

Conditional Use Permit Application to be submitted for the Commission to review the 
request. 

 
4. The Commission found that the wireless communication facility is inappropriate to the 

location, the lot, and the neighborhood, and is not compatible with the uses permitted in the 
applicable zoning district because of a skylining effect on adjacent land uses and visual 
impact upon the open quality and character of the natural hillside area and viewshed. 

 
5. The use is in conflict with the Municipal Code Section 9-3K-7B in that the applicants have 

not demonstrated that all practical means have been employed to conceal or minimize the 
visual impact of the facility and that the wireless communication facility is not adequately 
designed to visually and operationally blend into the surrounding area in a manner 
compatible with the local community character. 

 
 

145



N:\Electronic Council Packets\2015\November\November 5 2015 Regular City Council Meeting\Cell 

Tower\P&ZDenialEdgeWirelessSageCreekPZCUP2007-04.docx 

 2 

 
 
 

DECISION 
 
Therefore, based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusion of Law, the Commission 
hereby denies the Conditional Use Permit application for a new wireless communication facility to 
be added to the existing booster pump structure of the Sage Creek Water Reservoir facility 
(Application No. CUP2007-04, Edge Wireless). 
 
 
 
Dated this 13th day of December, 2007. 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
David Brown 
Acting Chairperson 
Sun Valley Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
 
 
Date Findings of Fact signed_______________ 

146



147



148



149



150



151



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
    SEATTLE LOS ANGELES        DENVER            PORTLAND             BEND 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
1220 S. Fillmore St. 
Denver, Colorado 80210 

 Victoria.Chenault@wirelesscounsel.com 
www.wirelesscounsel.com 

 

t 425.406.7859 
f 206.219.6717 

 
 

 

July 6, 2015 
 
Mr. Jae Hill 
Community Development Director 
City of Sun Valley 
81 Elkhorn Road 
P.O. Box 416 
Sun Valley, ID 83353 
 

Re: Conditional Use Permit – Sage Creek Application - #CUP2007-04 
 
Dear Jae: 
 
 Thank you again for speaking with me in early June regarding the request that 
AT&T Mobility (“AT&T”) submit a new application for the above referenced 
Conditional Use Permit.  As discussed, our firm is outside legal counsel for AT&T and 
we are in receipt of a letter that the City of Sun Valley received from Ned C. Williamson, 
attorney for Irwin and Ann Sentilles, dated November 4, 2014, regarding AT&T’s 
wireless communications facility located at the pump booster station structure adjacent to 
the SVW&SD Sage Creek Reservoir (the “Facility”).  
 

It is our understanding that Mr. Williamson’s letter prompted Interim Community 
Development Director, John Gaeddert, to examine the Conditional Use Permit that was 
granted to AT&T’s predecessor, Edge Wireless, on March 1, 2008 (the “2008 CUP”).  
Mr. Gaeddert, acting in good faith and with the intent to resolve the claims stated in Mr. 
Williamson’s letter, believed that a new Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) would be 
required.  His explanation for requiring a new CUP was out of concern that the 2008 
CUP may have expired and that AT&T had not obtained an effective modification of the 
2008 CUP when the modifications to the Facility were made in 2014 (“2014 
Modifications”).   He suggested that a new CUP would rectify the purported failure to 
obtain a proper modification to the 2008 CUP and also assist in satisfying the claims 
made by the frustrated homeowners, Irwin and Ann Sentilles, but he did not cite any 
supporting code authority when making these conclusions.  After an examination of the 
2008 CUP and Mr. Williamson’s letter against the applicable code provisions from Sun 
Valley’s City Code (the “Code”), we conclude that a new CUP is not required under the 
Code.   
 
  Mr. Gaeddert asserted that a new CUP would be required if the 2008 CUP had 
expired. The terms of the 2008 CUP do not set forth a stated date of expiration, and the 
Code does not otherwise provide a blanket expiration date for all CUPs.  In addition, 
while the third condition of approval requires a compliance review submittal every five 

152



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

 

years, there is no code provision or CUP language that would automatically revoke the 
permit for failure to comply with this condition of approval.  Further, no revocation 
proceedings for the 2008 CUP were ever initiated by the City.  Although AT&T 
acknowledges that the required information under Condition 3 was not submitted in 2013 
as required, to assure continuity of service and to maintain the existing AT&T network, 
we attach the required written Condition 3 submittal, which submittal brings AT&T into 
compliance with all conditions of approval from the 2008 CUP.  In addition, AT&T is 
also in compliance with the governing documents of the Sun Valley Elkhorn Association, 
as indicated in the attached letter dated November 5, 2014, which letter states that the 
completed project is in substantial compliance with the submitted plans, including the 
tree planting / irrigation and repainting of the antennas. Given this, the permit is and has 
remained valid since it was issued in 2008, and AT&T continues to be in compliance 
with all governing rules and regulations.  

 
 Mr. Gaeddert also questioned whether the approval of AT&T’s 2014 

Modifications to the Facility was an appropriate modification of the 2008 CUP under the 
first condition of approval.  This first condition of approval clearly states that the 2008 
CUP is specific to the related Design Review Approval and requires “City approval of a 
modification to this Conditional Use Permit”.  Neither the code nor the 2008 CUP set 
forth a required process for City approval of modifications to a CUP.  As a result, AT&T 
submits that the very comprehensive 2014 design review approval of AT&T’s 2014 
Modifications was sufficient to comply with the first condition of the 2008 CUP.  The 
Sentilles’ claim that staff acted improperly or contrary to the conditions of the 2008 CUP 
or that the 2008 CUP was not properly modified is simply not accurate.  On the contrary, 
staff thoroughly reviewed AT&T’s proposed modifications and made detailed findings 
that each of the modifications satisfied the design review criteria set forth in the Code. 
This thorough review of the modifications and the conclusion that the modifications 
would cause minimal impact to the surrounding area are sufficient to satisfy the 
conditions of the 2008 CUP.  

 
There are also overarching federal law considerations validating the 2014 

Modifications.  Under Section 6409 of the Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act 
of 2012 (“Section 6409”), the 2014 Modifications are proper because certain 
modifications are permitted outright if there is no substantial change to an existing 
wireless facility.  The 2014 Modifications included the replacement of a four-inch wide 
mounting pipe with a six-inch wide mounting pipe, the replacement of the two existing 
antennas on the pipe, and the installation of additional equipment within AT&T’s 
equipment enclosure. Section 6409 requires a jurisdiction to approve any modification to 
existing wireless facilities that does not “substantially change” the physical dimensions of 
the wireless facility. (A copy of the new federal rule is enclosed with this letter for your 

153



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 

 

review.)1 Based on the FCC guidelines, the 2014 Modifications to the Facility were not 
considered a substantial change and the City would have no discretion to deny the 
modification request were it to be resubmitted. 

 
It should also be noted that the Code is consistent with Section 6409.  Section 9-

3K-7C-3(c) of the Code provides that any equipment change-out and overhaul may occur 
any time with 30 days’ notice so the City may inform individuals within 300 feet of the 
wireless facility.  The 2014 Modifications described above clearly fall within the 
parameters of an “equipment change-out,” and there is no Code requirement for any 
additional land use approval for such modifications. 

 
 Finally, the letter from the Sentilles’ counsel amounts to a time barred appeal 

under existing Code.  Section 9-5A-9, requires that any interested party within 300-feet 
of the exterior boundary of the property appeal any decision within 10 days.  The 
effective date of the 2014 Modification Approval was June 2, 2014.  The Sentilles did not 
file a timely appeal within the requisite 10-day period.  Therefore, the written objection to 
the Facility dated November 4, 2014, is time barred under the code.  

 
Thank you again for agreeing to review AT&T’s position on the application for a 

new CUP.  Please also extend our gratitude to Mr. Gaeddert for being open to our 
position and for speaking with us prior to you assuming your new role.  Please let me 
know if there is anything else needed to process the enclosed compliance submittal.  We 
look forward to your review and response. 

 
 
Regards, 
 

 
 
Victoria Davis Chenault 
 
Enclosures    
 
 
 
                                                
1 Earlier this year, the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) published a new federal rule (which is codified 
at 47 C.F.R. § 1.40001) that defines a “substantial change.” as increasing the height of the tower by more than 10% or 
by the height of one additional antenna array with separation from the nearest existing antenna not to exceed twenty 
feet, whichever is greater; for other eligible support structures, it increases the height of the structure by more than 10% 
or more than ten feet, whichever is greater. The new federal rule is consistent with the FCC guidelines that were in 
place in 2014 when the 2014 Modifications were reviewed by the City.   

154



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 4 
 
 

 

Attachment 1 
 

Compliance Review Pursuant to Condition of Approval No. 3 from 2008 CUP 
 
Monitoring: At five (5) year internals from the date when the city issues a building 
permit, the Applicant shall submit the following information to the Community 
Development Director: 
 
i.   Confirmation that the facility continues to operate in compliance with all terms 
and conditions of approval by the City. 
 
 After review of the 2008 CUP approval, the approval of the 2014 Modifications, 
and all applicable provisions of the Code, and as described in the forgoing letter, AT&T 
confirmed that it continues to operate with in compliance with all terms and conditions of 
approval by the City. 
 
ii. Independent field strength or power density measurements taken within the past 
30-days that verify that the facility continues to operate in compliance with all terms and 
conditions and emissions standards imposed by the Federal Communications 
Commission. 
 
 As of the date of this letter, AT&T initiated ordering of the Power Density Study 
and expects a final report within four to six weeks.  AT&T will provide the results of the 
study to the City as soon as they are received.   
  
iii. Confirmation that there is no equipment available that would enhance the safety, 
efficiency, or visibility of the facility or reduce the size of the facility. 
 
 Safety: According to AT&T’s Radio Frequency Engineers (“RF Engineers”), the 
facility continues to operate safely within all FCC guidelines and in accordance with 
industry standards.  
  
 Efficiency:  The Facility is as efficient as possible given the design restrictions, 
and operates with the most current technology.  The Facility was originally constructed 
with “2G” radio frequency technology.  The Facility was subsequently updated to 
accommodate more advanced and efficient “3G” and “4G” technologies. All the older 
2G equipment will be removed by 2017 to further enhance efficiency.  
 
 Visibility:  The ground equipment is currently configured with the minimum 
amount of equipment that allows the proper function of the Facility.  All equipment is 
within the existing pump house to provide maximum visual concealment.   
 
 The antenna technology at the Facility is consolidated into two panel antennas to 

155



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 5 
 
 

 

minimize the visual impact.  The industry standard is to have a dedicated panel antenna 
for each technology (i.e. four antennas per sector). Although the consolidated antennas 
do not provide optimal efficiency and capacity, AT&T agreed to utilize the consolidated 
antenna system so that service could be provided to a location where it would not 
otherwise be available.  In addition, the Facility is not configured with any future 
expansion and only possesses enough equipment to support daily usage in the area.  
 
iv. Confirmation that there are not more appropriate locations for the Facility.   
  
 On June 12, 2015, the RF Engineers completed a site walk of the Facility and 
surrounding area.  They examined all alternative locations, developed and undeveloped, 
within a technically feasible radius of approximately 2 miles. The RF Engineers 
concluded that there were no other locations that could accommodate AT&T’s service 
needs.  The following is a list of those alternative locations that were examined. 
 

·       Top of Bald Mountain – AT&T is currently operating from this location. This 
was the primary location to provide coverage to Elkhorn prior to AT&T 
constructing the Elkhorn reservoir location. This site provided marginal 
outdoor coverage and poor in building coverage in Elkhorn, thereby 
prompting the need for an additional facility in the area. 

·       Dollar Mountain - AT&T is currently operating a site from this location. There 
are two towers on Dollar Mountain. AT&T is located on the lower of the two 
towers. This location is blocked by terrain, which terrain prevents AT&T from 
providing coverage to the Elkhorn location.    

·      Verizon Wireless facility East of Elkhorn approximately 2 miles – This location 
was evaluated by AT&T when AT&T originally examined the area for possible 
locations of the current Facility.  This location would have not offered a 
significant improvement to the network or filled the gaps in coverage. 

·       Sun Valley City Fire Department - This location was evaluated by AT&T when 
AT&T originally examined the area for possible locations of the current 
Facility.  However, the elevated terrain surrounding the fire station limits the 
potential coverage and therefore did not meet AT&T’s coverage needs. 

The RF Engineers also examined the possibility of deploying a new facility or utilizing 
an existing facility at the locations listed below, but determined that the locations would 
not provide adequate coverage to Elkhorn due to terrain or other concerns: 

·         Top of old the Flying Squirrel Ski Run 
·         Site near the animal shelter, Clear Creek Disposal 
·         River Run Lodge 
·         Down Town Ketchum - 333 South Main. 
·         Sun Valley Lodge 
·         Sun Valley Club House 
 

156



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 6 
 
 

 

v. Confirmation that the facility continues to function as an essential element of the 
Applicant’s network.   
 
 The RF Engineers confirmed that the Facility continues to function as an essential 
element of AT&T’s network in the Sun Valley area by providing coverage to the Elkhorn 
community that could not otherwise be offered by any other location.  Please refer to the 
coverage maps below as an indication of the gap in coverage that would result if the 
Facility were to be removed.   

 
 

Elkhorn(WT(

Good(indoor(coverage(

Dollar(Mt(

AT&T network with the Elkhorn water pump location.(

157



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 7 
 
 

 

 
vi. Documentation of any complaints received by the Applicant since the inception of 
operations regarding the operation and maintenance of the facility, including the 
Applicant actions to address the complaints.   
 
 To the best of AT&T’s knowledge, AT&T has received no other complaints aside 
from the letter received from the City from Ned C. Williamson, attorney for Irwin and 
Ann Sentilles, dated November 4, 2014.  AT&T has addressed  the complaints set forth in 
the letter from Mr. Williamson  in the foregoing letter and is providing all required 
information to comply with  Condition 3.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Elkhorn(WT(

Dollar(Mt(

Good(indoor(coverage(

AT&T network if the Elkhorn water pump facility were removed.(

158



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 8 
 
 

 

Attachment 2 
 

Letter From Sun Valley Elkhorn Association, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

159



	  

	  

	  
	  
July	  2,	  2015	  
	  
Nadine	  Bostwick	  
Powder	  River	  Development	  Services	  LLC	  
219	  S	  Wooddale	  Ave	  
Eagle,	  ID	  83616	  
	  

Sent	  via	  email:	  Nadine.bostwock@powderriverdev.com;	  	  pat@svwsd.com	   	  

RE:	  ATT	  antennae	  project	  at	  100	  Sage	  Creek	  Reservoir	  Road	  

Dear	  Nadine	  and	  Pat:	  

On	  June	  2nd,	  2014	  	  you	  received	  the	  Architectural	  Design	  Committee	  conditional	  approval	  for	  the	  ATT	  
antennae	  project	  at	  100	  Sage	  Creek	  Reservoir	  Road.	  The	  SVEA	  governing	  documents	  require	  that	  the	  
final	  inspection	  must	  take	  place	  within	  one	  year.	  We	  visited	  the	  site	  for	  the	  final	  approval	  inspection	  on	  
November	  5th,	  2014	  and	  found	  the	  completed	  project	  to	  be	  in	  substantial	  compliance	  with	  the	  
submitted	  plans.	  	  	  Thank	  you	  for	  completing	  the	  tree	  planting	  /	  irrigation	  and	  repainting	  of	  the	  
antennae.	  

Your	  completion	  deposit	  in	  the	  amount	  of	  $1,000	  is	  being	  processed	  by	  accounting	  and	  will	  be	  mailed	  
via	  USPS.	  

Please	  don’t	  hesitate	  to	  call	  if	  you	  have	  questions	  or	  concerns.	  

Sincerely,	  
	  
Paul Exline 
Paul	  Exline	  
ADC	  Manager	  
Sun	  Valley	  Elkhorn	  Association,	  Inc.	  
	  
/SVSWD	  

160



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 9 
 
 

 

Attachment 3 
 

The FCC Rule Regarding Section 6409 

161



1269 Federal Register / Vol. 80, No. 5 / Thursday, January 8, 2015 / Rules and Regulations 

(iii) Comparable equipment from pre- 
existing wireless deployments on the 
structure; 

(3) The deployment will involve no 
new ground disturbance; and 

(4) The deployment would otherwise 
require the preparation of an EA under 
paragraph (a)(4)(i) of this section solely 
because of the age of the structure; or 

(B) The mounting of antennas 
(including associated equipment such as 
wiring, cabling, cabinets, or backup- 
power) on buildings or other non-tower 
structures where the deployment meets 
the following conditions: 

(1) There is an existing antenna on the 
building or structure; 

(2) One of the following criteria is 
met: 

(i) Non-Visible Antennas. The new 
antenna is not visible from any adjacent 
streets or surrounding public spaces and 
is added in the same vicinity as a pre- 
existing antenna; 

(ii) Visible Replacement Antennas. 
The new antenna is visible from 
adjacent streets or surrounding public 
spaces, provided that 

(A) It is a replacement for a pre- 
existing antenna, 

(B) The new antenna will be located 
in the same vicinity as the pre-existing 
antenna, 

(C) The new antenna will be visible 
only from adjacent streets and 
surrounding public spaces that also 
afford views of the pre-existing antenna, 

(D) The new antenna is not more than 
3 feet larger in height or width 
(including all protuberances) than the 
pre-existing antenna, and 

(E) No new equipment cabinets are 
visible from the adjacent streets or 
surrounding public spaces; or 

(iii) Other Visible Antennas. The new 
antenna is visible from adjacent streets 
or surrounding public spaces, provided 
that 

(A) It is located in the same vicinity 
as a pre-existing antenna, 

(B) The new antenna will be visible 
only from adjacent streets and 
surrounding public spaces that also 
afford views of the pre-existing antenna, 

(C) The pre-existing antenna was not 
deployed pursuant to the exclusion in 
this subsection 
(§ 1.1307(a)(4)(ii)(B)(2)(iii)), 

(D) The new antenna is not more than 
three feet larger in height or width 
(including all protuberances) than the 
pre-existing antenna, and 

(E) No new equipment cabinets are 
visible from the adjacent streets or 
surrounding public spaces; 

(3) The new antenna complies with 
all zoning conditions and historic 
preservation conditions applicable to 
existing antennas in the same vicinity 

that directly mitigate or prevent effects, 
such as camouflage or concealment 
requirements; 

(4) The deployment of the new 
antenna involves no new ground 
disturbance; and 

(5) The deployment would otherwise 
require the preparation of an EA under 
paragraph (a)(4) of this section solely 
because of the age of the structure. 

Note to paragraph (a)(4)(ii): A non-visible 
new antenna is in the ‘‘same vicinity’’ as a 
pre-existing antenna if it will be collocated 
on the same rooftop, façade or other surface. 
A visible new antenna is in the ‘‘same 
vicinity’’ as a pre-existing antenna if it is on 
the same rooftop, façade, or other surface and 
the centerpoint of the new antenna is within 
ten feet of the centerpoint of the pre-existing 
antenna. A deployment causes no new 
ground disturbance when the depth and 
width of previous disturbance exceeds the 
proposed construction depth and width by at 
least two feet. 

* * * * * 
■ 4. Add Subpart CC to part 1 to read 
as follows: 

Subpart CC—State and Local Review 
of Applications for Wireless Service 
Facility Modification 

§ 1.40001 Wireless Facility Modifications. 
(a) Purpose. These rules implement 

section 6409 of the Spectrum Act 
(codified at 47 U.S.C. 1455), which 
requires a State or local government to 
approve any eligible facilities request 
for a modification of an existing tower 
or base station that does not 
substantially change the physical 
dimensions of such tower or base 
station. 

(b) Definitions. Terms used in this 
section have the following meanings. 

(1) Base station. A structure or 
equipment at a fixed location that 
enables Commission-licensed or 
authorized wireless communications 
between user equipment and a 
communications network. The term 
does not encompass a tower as defined 
in this subpart or any equipment 
associated with a tower. 

(i) The term includes, but is not 
limited to, equipment associated with 
wireless communications services such 
as private, broadcast, and public safety 
services, as well as unlicensed wireless 
services and fixed wireless services 
such as microwave backhaul. 

(ii) The term includes, but is not 
limited to, radio transceivers, antennas, 
coaxial or fiber-optic cable, regular and 
backup power supplies, and comparable 
equipment, regardless of technological 
configuration (including Distributed 
Antenna Systems and small-cell 
networks). 

(iii) The term includes any structure 
other than a tower that, at the time the 
relevant application is filed with the 
State or local government under this 
section, supports or houses equipment 
described in paragraphs (b)(1)(i) through 
(ii) of this section that has been 
reviewed and approved under the 
applicable zoning or siting process, or 
under another State or local regulatory 
review process, even if the structure was 
not built for the sole or primary purpose 
of providing such support. 

(iv) The term does not include any 
structure that, at the time the relevant 
application is filed with the State or 
local government under this section, 
does not support or house equipment 
described in paragraphs (b)(1)(i)–(ii) of 
this section. 

(2) Collocation. The mounting or 
installation of transmission equipment 
on an eligible support structure for the 
purpose of transmitting and/or receiving 
radio frequency signals for 
communications purposes. 

(3) Eligible facilities request. Any 
request for modification of an existing 
tower or base station that does not 
substantially change the physical 
dimensions of such tower or base 
station, involving: 

(i) Collocation of new transmission 
equipment; 

(ii) Removal of transmission 
equipment; or 

(iii) Replacement of transmission 
equipment. 

(4) Eligible support structure. Any 
tower or base station as defined in this 
section, provided that it is existing at 
the time the relevant application is filed 
with the State or local government 
under this section. 

(5) Existing. A constructed tower or 
base station is existing for purposes of 
this section if it has been reviewed and 
approved under the applicable zoning 
or siting process, or under another State 
or local regulatory review process, 
provided that a tower that has not been 
reviewed and approved because it was 
not in a zoned area when it was built, 
but was lawfully constructed, is existing 
for purposes of this definition. 

(6) Site. For towers other than towers 
in the public rights-of-way, the current 
boundaries of the leased or owned 
property surrounding the tower and any 
access or utility easements currently 
related to the site, and, for other eligible 
support structures, further restricted to 
that area in proximity to the structure 
and to other transmission equipment 
already deployed on the ground. 

(7) Substantial change. A 
modification substantially changes the 
physical dimensions of an eligible 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 20:38 Jan 07, 2015 Jkt 235001 PO 00000 Frm 00033 Fmt 4701 Sfmt 4700 E:\FR\FM\08JAR3.SGM 08JAR3m
st

oc
ks

til
l o

n 
D

S
K

4V
P

T
V

N
1P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 R

U
LE

S
3

162



1270 Federal Register / Vol. 80, No. 5 / Thursday, January 8, 2015 / Rules and Regulations 

support structure if it meets any of the 
following criteria: 

(i) For towers other than towers in the 
public rights-of-way, it increases the 
height of the tower by more than 10% 
or by the height of one additional 
antenna array with separation from the 
nearest existing antenna not to exceed 
twenty feet, whichever is greater; for 
other eligible support structures, it 
increases the height of the structure by 
more than 10% or more than ten feet, 
whichever is greater; 

(A) Changes in height should be 
measured from the original support 
structure in cases where deployments 
are or will be separated horizontally, 
such as on buildings’ rooftops; in other 
circumstances, changes in height should 
be measured from the dimensions of the 
tower or base station, inclusive of 
originally approved appurtenances and 
any modifications that were approved 
prior to the passage of the Spectrum 
Act. 

(ii) For towers other than towers in 
the public rights-of-way, it involves 
adding an appurtenance to the body of 
the tower that would protrude from the 
edge of the tower more than twenty feet, 
or more than the width of the tower 
structure at the level of the 
appurtenance, whichever is greater; for 
other eligible support structures, it 
involves adding an appurtenance to the 
body of the structure that would 
protrude from the edge of the structure 
by more than six feet; 

(iii) For any eligible support structure, 
it involves installation of more than the 
standard number of new equipment 
cabinets for the technology involved, 
but not to exceed four cabinets; or, for 
towers in the public rights-of-way and 
base stations, it involves installation of 
any new equipment cabinets on the 
ground if there are no pre-existing 
ground cabinets associated with the 
structure, or else involves installation of 
ground cabinets that are more than 10% 
larger in height or overall volume than 
any other ground cabinets associated 
with the structure; 

(iv) It entails any excavation or 
deployment outside the current site; 

(v) It would defeat the concealment 
elements of the eligible support 
structure; or 

(vi) It does not comply with 
conditions associated with the siting 
approval of the construction or 
modification of the eligible support 
structure or base station equipment, 
provided however that this limitation 
does not apply to any modification that 
is non-compliant only in a manner that 
would not exceed the thresholds 
identified in § 1.40001(b)(7)(i) through 
(iv). 

(8) Transmission equipment. 
Equipment that facilitates transmission 
for any Commission-licensed or 
authorized wireless communication 
service, including, but not limited to, 
radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or 
fiber-optic cable, and regular and 
backup power supply. The term 
includes equipment associated with 
wireless communications services 
including, but not limited to, private, 
broadcast, and public safety services, as 
well as unlicensed wireless services and 
fixed wireless services such as 
microwave backhaul. 

(9) Tower. Any structure built for the 
sole or primary purpose of supporting 
any Commission-licensed or authorized 
antennas and their associated facilities, 
including structures that are constructed 
for wireless communications services 
including, but not limited to, private, 
broadcast, and public safety services, as 
well as unlicensed wireless services and 
fixed wireless services such as 
microwave backhaul, and the associated 
site. 

(c) Review of applications. A State or 
local government may not deny and 
shall approve any eligible facilities 
request for modification of an eligible 
support structure that does not 
substantially change the physical 
dimensions of such structure. 

(1) Documentation requirement for 
review. When an applicant asserts in 
writing that a request for modification is 
covered by this section, a State or local 
government may require the applicant 
to provide documentation or 
information only to the extent 
reasonably related to determining 
whether the request meets the 
requirements of this section. A State or 
local government may not require an 
applicant to submit any other 
documentation, including but not 
limited to documentation intended to 
illustrate the need for such wireless 
facilities or to justify the business 
decision to modify such wireless 
facilities. 

(2) Timeframe for review. Within 60 
days of the date on which an applicant 
submits a request seeking approval 
under this section, the State or local 
government shall approve the 
application unless it determines that the 
application is not covered by this 
section. 

(3) Tolling of the timeframe for 
review. The 60-day period begins to run 
when the application is filed, and may 
be tolled only by mutual agreement or 
in cases where the reviewing State or 
local government determines that the 
application is incomplete. The 
timeframe for review is not tolled by a 

moratorium on the review of 
applications. 

(i) To toll the timeframe for 
incompleteness, the reviewing State or 
local government must provide written 
notice to the applicant within 30 days 
of receipt of the application, clearly and 
specifically delineating all missing 
documents or information. Such 
delineated information is limited to 
documents or information meeting the 
standard under paragraph (c)(1) of this 
section. 

(ii) The timeframe for review begins 
running again when the applicant 
makes a supplemental submission in 
response to the State or local 
government’s notice of incompleteness. 

(iii) Following a supplemental 
submission, the State or local 
government will have 10 days to notify 
the applicant that the supplemental 
submission did not provide the 
information identified in the original 
notice delineating missing information. 
The timeframe is tolled in the case of 
second or subsequent notices pursuant 
to the procedures identified in this 
paragraph (c)(3). Second or subsequent 
notices of incompleteness may not 
specify missing documents or 
information that were not delineated in 
the original notice of incompleteness. 

(4) Failure to act. In the event the 
reviewing State or local government 
fails to approve or deny a request 
seeking approval under this section 
within the timeframe for review 
(accounting for any tolling), the request 
shall be deemed granted. The deemed 
grant does not become effective until the 
applicant notifies the applicable 
reviewing authority in writing after the 
review period has expired (accounting 
for any tolling) that the application has 
been deemed granted. 

(5) Remedies. Applicants and 
reviewing authorities may bring claims 
related to Section 6409(a) to any court 
of competent jurisdiction. 

PART 17—CONSTRUCTION, 
MARKING, AND LIGHTING OF 
ANTENNA STRUCTURES 

■ 5. The authority citation for part 17 
continues to read as follows: 

Authority: Sections 4, 303, 48 Stat. 1066, 
1082, as amended; 47 U.S.C. 154, 303. 
Interpret or apply sections 301, 309, 48 Stat. 
1081, 1085 as amended; 47 U.S.C. 301, 309. 
■ 6. Amend § 17.4 by revising 
paragraphs (c)(1)(v) and (c)(1)(vi), and 
adding paragraph (c)(1)(vii) to read as 
follows: 

§ 17.4 Antenna structure registration. 
* * * * * 

(c) * * * 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 20:38 Jan 07, 2015 Jkt 235001 PO 00000 Frm 00034 Fmt 4701 Sfmt 4700 E:\FR\FM\08JAR3.SGM 08JAR3m
st

oc
ks

til
l o

n 
D

S
K

4V
P

T
V

N
1P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 R

U
LE

S
3

163

Ken Lyons

Ken Lyons



1271 Federal Register / Vol. 80, No. 5 / Thursday, January 8, 2015 / Rules and Regulations 

(1) * * * 
(v) For any other change that does not 

alter the physical structure, lighting, or 
geographic location of an existing 
structure; 

(vi) For construction, modification, or 
replacement of an antenna structure on 
Federal land where another Federal 
agency has assumed responsibility for 
evaluating the potentially significant 
environmental effect of the proposed 
antenna structure on the quality of the 
human environment and for invoking 
any required environmental impact 
statement process, or for any other 

structure where another Federal agency 
has assumed such responsibilities 
pursuant to a written agreement with 
the Commission (see § 1.1311(e) of this 
chapter); or 

(vii) For the construction or 
deployment of an antenna structure that 
will: 

(A) Be in place for no more than 60 
days, 

(B) Requires notice of construction to 
the FAA, 

(C) Does not require marking or 
lighting under FAA regulations, 

(D) Will be less than 200 feet in height 
above ground level, and 

(E) Will either involve no excavation 
or involve excavation only where the 
depth of previous disturbance exceeds 
the proposed construction depth 
(excluding footings and other anchoring 
mechanisms) by at least two feet. An 
applicant that relies on this exception 
must wait 30 days after removal of the 
antenna structure before relying on this 
exception to deploy another antenna 
structure covering substantially the 
same service area. 
* * * * * 
[FR Doc. 2014–28897 Filed 1–7–15; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6712–01–P 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 20:38 Jan 07, 2015 Jkt 235001 PO 00000 Frm 00035 Fmt 4701 Sfmt 9990 E:\FR\FM\08JAR3.SGM 08JAR3m
st

oc
ks

til
l o

n 
D

S
K

4V
P

T
V

N
1P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 R

U
LE

S
3

164



 

 
    

On-Site Radio Frequency Safety Survey Report (RFSSR) Prepared For: 

 

Site Name: Elkhorn 
FA#: 10130455 
USID: 100574 
Site ID: 451P4265 
Address: 100 Sage Creek Reservoir Road 
 Sun Valley, ID 83353 
County: Blaine 
Latitude: 43.6681389 
Longitude: -114.3163889 

  

Additional Site Information 

 

Property Owner: N/A 
Property Owner Contact: N/A 
M-RFSC Name: Luke Wang 
Site Structure Type: Building Sidemount 
Site Access Restriction: Locked 
Access Control: Park at the nearby access point. 

The site can be accessed by foot.  

  

Report Information 
Survey Technician: Brent Hart Site Survey Date: September 18, 2015 at 9:30 AM 
Report Writer: Bob Livelsberger Report Generated Date: October 5, 2015 
Meter Model/Serial: NBM 550 / E-1063 Probe Model/Serial: EA-5091 / 01105 
Calibration Date: March 15, 2014 Calibration Date: March 15, 2014 

    

Compliance Statement 
AT&T Mobility Compliance Statement:  is Compliant with FCC Rules and Regulations. 

165



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 2 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

Table of Contents 
1 General Summary ....................................................................................................... 3 

1.1 Site Summary ....................................................................................................... 3 
1.2 Climate Conditions at Time of On-Site Audit ........................................................ 3 

2 Site Scale Map ............................................................................................................ 4 

3 Antenna Inventory ....................................................................................................... 5 

4 Site Photographs ......................................................................................................... 6 

5 Emission Measurements and Discussion .................................................................. 10 
5.1 On-Site Measurements ....................................................................................... 10 
5.2 Predicted Emission Levels and Discussion ........................................................ 12 

5.2.1 Predictive AT&T Mobility’s RF Contribution Only on the Site ........................ 13 

6 Statement of Compliance .......................................................................................... 15 
6.1 Statement of AT&T Mobility Compliance ............................................................ 15 
6.2 Recommendations .............................................................................................. 15 

7 Fall Arrest & Parapet Information .............................................................................. 16 

8 Appendix A ................................................................................................................ 17 
8.1 Technical Framework ......................................................................................... 17 

9 Appendix B ................................................................................................................ 21 
9.1 Qualifications of Waterford Consultants, LLC ..................................................... 21 

10 Appendix C ................................................................................................................ 22 
10.1 RoofMaster™ ..................................................................................................... 22 

11 Appendix D ................................................................................................................ 23 
11.1 Statement of Limiting Conditions ........................................................................ 23 

 

166



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 3 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

1 General Summary 
1.1 Site Summary 
Existing RF Sign(s) at Access Point(s) Info 1/Notice 
Existing RF Sign(s) at AT&T Mobility Sectors Alpha: None 

Beta: None 
Gamma: None 

Existing Barriers at AT&T Mobility Sectors None 
Existing RF Signs at Other Carrier Sectors None 
Existing RF Barriers at Other Carrier Sectors None 
Max Measured Spatial Average MPE% & 
Location on Roof (General Public) 

N/A 

Max Predictive Spatial Average MPE% & 
Location on Roof (General Public) 

1012.0034% in front of AT&T Mobility Alpha 
Sector Antenna #1 

Max Measured Spatial Average MPE% & 
Location at Ground (General Public) 

2.05% MPE 

Max Predictive Spatial Average MPE% & 
Location at Ground (General Public) 

3.8511% MPE 

Overall Site Compliance Yes 
 
 

1.2 Climate Conditions at Time of On-Site Audit 
Temperature: 44°F 
Sky Conditions: Partly Cloudy 
Wind Factor: Calm 
Precipitation: None 

 
 

167



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 4 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

2 Site Scale Map 
 

 
Existing Signs Only (All Carriers) 

 
 

168



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 5 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

3 Antenna Inventory 

Ant # Operator 
Antenna 

Make Antenna Model Type 
Frequency 

(MHz) 
Az 

(deg) 

Horizontal 
Beam 
width 
(deg) 

Ant 
(ft) 

Antenna 
Gain 
(dBd) 

GSM 
Radios 

LTE 
Radios 

UMTS 
Radios 

Total 
ERP 

(watts) 

Mech. 
DT 

(deg) 
X 

(ft) 
Y 
(ft) 

Z Bottom 
Tip Ground 

Level (ft) 
1 AT&T Mobility KATHREIN   80010692V01 01DT Panel 700 320 70 8.6 14.03  1  708 0 72 9 21.8 
1 AT&T Mobility KATHREIN   80010692V01 00DT Panel 1900 320 61 8.6 14.44 1   787 0 72 9 21.8 
1 AT&T Mobility KATHREIN   80010692V01 00DT Panel 1900 320 61 8.6 14.44   2 1037 0 72 9 21.8 
2 AT&T Mobility KATHREIN   80010692V01 05DT Panel 700 190 70 8.6 14.13  1  776 0 72 9 21.8 
2 AT&T Mobility KATHREIN   80010692V01 00DT Panel 1900 190 61 8.6 14.44 1   787 0 72 9 21.8 
2 AT&T Mobility KATHREIN   80010692V01 00DT Panel 1900 190 61 8.6 14.44   2 1037 0 72 9 21.8 

Note: Waterford Consultants has assumed transmission parameters for Unknown RF emitters based on similar installations found at other radio communications 
sites. Generic antenna models have been used where existing antenna part numbers or radiation patterns are not available.  The frequencies presented in this table may 
have been assumed in order to represent the approximate band of operation and to support a worst-case calculation of power density. 

  

169



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 6 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

4 Site Photographs 

 
Access 

 

 
AT&T Mobility Alpha and Beta Sector Antennas #1 through #2  

170



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 7 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

 
AT&T Mobility Alpha and Beta Sector Antennas #1 through #2  

 

 
Site Overview Northeast Facing Southeast 

171



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 8 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

 
Site Overview Northeast Facing Southwest 

 

 
Site Overview Northeast Facing West 

172



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 9 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

 
Site Overview Northwest Facing East 

173



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 10 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

5 Emission Measurements and Discussion 
5.1 On-Site Measurements 
The site was surveyed at approximately 9:30 AM on September 18, 2015.  Radiation 
meter and probe were used to record power density levels.  The field technician 
physically walked all accessible areas of the site, including areas, where accessible 
and applicable, around the antenna mounts.  Measurements procedures are 
consistent with FCC and Narda procedures, regarding the location of the probe to 
the RF source and making slow sweeping motions over the area a person would 
occupy.   

 

 
The above site map shows the measurement locations 

174



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 11 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

Measurement Readings are Spatial Average and Maximum as MPE % of the General Public Limits 
 

Loc# 
Site Reading 

Loc# 
Site Reading 

Avg Max Avg Max 
1 0.28% 0.58% 2 0.12% 0.54% 
3 0.33% 1.61% 4 0.43% 2.20% 
5 0.54% 2.25% 6 0.52% 4.03% 
7 2.05% 4.93% 8 1.60% 4.51% 
9 1.77% 4.85% 10 1.40% 4.80% 

11 1.35% 4.51% 12 1.30% 3.51% 
13 1.35% 3.53% 14 1.30% 3.51% 
15 1.02% 3.29% 16 0.88% 3.54% 
17 0.87% 3.27% 18 0.93% 3.47% 
19 0.96% 2.75% 20 1.01% 2.65% 
21 1.61% 4.29% 22 1.51% 3.46% 
23 1.41% 3.31% 24 1.36% 3.15% 

 

175



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 12 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

5.2 Predicted Emission Levels and Discussion 
The following plots show the spatial average predicted power density levels in the 
reference plane indicated as a percentage of the General Public Limits. Please note 
that 100% of the General Public Limits corresponds to 20% of the Occupational 
Limits.   

 
The reference plane for the plot is the roof level, as indicated in the caption.  For 
example, “Avg 10 to 16 Feet” refers to the spatial average predicted power density 
level between 10 and 16 feet above the main level.  Plots are produced for each 
accessible level.  Levels that are not accessible will not be shown.  Only accessible 
areas in a plot are relevant.  Areas not accessible or in free space, off the edge of a 
roof or equipment penthouse, do not affect compliance. 

 
 

176



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 13 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

5.2.1 Predictive AT&T Mobility’s RF Contribution Only on the Site 

 
The reference plane for the plot is the ground level.   
 

177



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 14 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

 

 
The reference plane for the plot is the ground level.   
 

 
  

  

178



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 15 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

6 Statement of Compliance 
6.1 Statement of AT&T Mobility Compliance 
At the time of our audit, AT&T Mobility is in compliance with the FCC’s OET Rules 
and Regulations. No action is required. 
 
6.2 Recommendations 

No actions required at this time 

179



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 16 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

7 Fall Arrest & Parapet Information 
Parapet Available No 
Parapet Height (Inches) N/A 
Fall Arrest Anchor Available No 

180



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 17 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

8 Appendix A 
8.1 Technical Framework 

 

The FCC requires licensees to ensure that persons are not exposed to 
radiofrequency electromagnetic energy power densities in excess of the applicable 
MPE (Maximum Permissible Exposure) limits. These rules apply to both 
Occupational Personnel and the General Population.  Applicable FCC rules are 
found at 47 C.F.R.  § § 1.1307(b)(3) and 1.1310.  The FCC rules define two tiers of 
permissible exposure differentiated by the situation in which the exposure takes 
place and/or the status of the individuals who are subject to exposure.   
 

General Population / uncontrolled exposure limits apply to those situations 
in which persons may not be aware of the presence of electromagnetic 
energy, where exposure is not employment-related, or where persons cannot 
exercise control over their exposure.   
 

Occupational / controlled exposure limits apply to situations in which 
persons are exposed as a consequence of their employment, have been 
made fully aware of the potential for exposure, and can exercise control over 
their exposure. 

 

Maximum Permissible Exposure (“MPE”) is defined in OET 65 as being 100% of the 
exposure limits for the situation or tier of permissible exposure.  These limits are 
listed as follows: 
 
Limits for Occupational/Controlled Exposure 
Frequency 
Range (MHz) 

Electric 
Field 
Strength (E) 
(V/m) 

Magnetic 
Field (H)  
(A/m) 

Power 
Density (S)  
(mW/cm2) 

Averaging Time 
|E|2, |H|2 or S 
(minutes) 

0.3-3.0 614 1.63 (100)* 6 
3.0-30 1842/f 4.89/f (900/f2)* 6 
30-300 61.5 0.163 1.0 6 
300-1500 --  f/300 6 
1500-100,000 --  5 6 
 
Limits for General Population/Uncontrolled Exposure 
Frequency 
Range (MHz) 

Electric 
Field 
Strength (E) 
(V/m) 

Magnetic 
Field (H)  
(A/m) 

Power 
Density (S)  
(mW/cm2) 

Averaging Time 
|E|2, |H|2 or S 
(minutes) 

0.3-1.34 614 1.63 (100)* 30 
1.34-30 842/f 2.19/f (180/f2)* 30 
30-300 27.5 0.073 0.2 30 
300-1500 --  f/1500 30 
1500-100,000 --  1.0 30 

181



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 18 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

f = frequency in MHz   *Plane-wave equivalent power density 

 
FCC Limits for Maximum Permissible Exposure (MPE) 

Plane-wave Equivalent Power Density 
 

For any area in excess of 100% General Population MPE, access controls with 
appropriate RF alerting signage must be put in place and maintained to restrict 
access to authorized personnel. Subject to other site security requirements, 
Occupational Personnel trained in RF safety and equipped with personal protective 
equipment designed for safe work in the vicinity of RF may be granted access.  
Controls such as physical barriers to entry imposed by locked doors, locked 
passageways, or other access control mechanisms may be supplemented by alarms 
that alert the individual and notify site management of a breach in access control.  
Controls may include administrative policies and procedures requiring personal 
protective equipment (e.g. RF personal monitor), proof of RF training to obtain site 
access cards, presentation of appropriate RF awareness training certifications to 
security personnel or other measures designed to prevent uncontrolled access. 
 
RF alerting signs are not necessarily required, and by FCC guidelines, alone do not 
constitute compliance, posting of the appropriate NOTICE, CAUTION, or WARNING 
signs at areas of concern is considered good practice. The signs below are 
examples of signs meeting FCC guidelines.  
 

182



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 19 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

   

  
  

  
 

Power density decreases significantly over a short distance from any antenna. 
Specifically with respect to directional panel antennas, the design, orientation in 
azimuth and elevation as documented, reasonably precludes potential to exceed 
MPE limits at any location other than directly in front of the antenna.  Areas in front 
of the antenna that are restricted by barriers, would require climbing or are otherwise 
beyond the reach of a standing individual of average height are not considered 
accessible.  Analysis or measurement of instantaneous energy levels is performed 
for use as proof of compliance with FCC rules and regulations applicable to non-
occupational persons, those individuals who are not authorized to access portions of 
the antenna support structure above ground level.  To assess time-average 
exposure for occupational personnel working within secured areas of the site, on the 

183



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 20 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

supporting structure, or in the immediate proximity of the antenna equipment is a 
separate study requiring detailed ergonomic information. 
 
FCC regulations regarding Radiofrequency radiation exposure, expressed in 47 CFR 
§ 1.1310 are further clarified with respect to the value of 5% of exposure limits for 
the subject transmitters in the following section of 47 CFR § 1.1307 (b): 
 

 (3) In general, when the guidelines specified in § 1.1310 are 
exceeded in an accessible area due to the emissions from multiple 
fixed transmitters, actions necessary to bring the area into 
compliance are the shared responsibility of all licensees whose 
transmitters produce, at the area in question,  power density levels 
that exceed 5% of the power density exposure limit applicable to 
their particular transmitter or field strength levels that, when 
squared, exceed 5% of the square of the electric or magnetic field 
strength limit applicable to their particular transmitter. Owners of 
transmitter sites are expected to allow applicants and licensees to 
take reasonable steps to comply with the requirements contained In 
§ 1.1307(b) and, where feasible, should encourage co-location of 
transmitters and common solutions for controlling access to areas 
where the RF exposure limits contained in § 1.1310 might be 
exceeded. 

 
Following these FCC requirements, predictive modeling has been performed to 
evaluate power density resulting from client transmitters as a percentage of the 
power density MPE limit applicable to their transmitters. These results are presented 
in Section 4.  
 
The site should be routinely inspected and this or a similar report updated with any 
changes to the RF environment including: 

 
• Adding new antennas  
• Removing of any existing antennas 
• Change in the radiating power or number of RF emitters 

 
Waterford Consultants recommends coordinating with all wireless tenants before 
performing services in front of or near any transmitting antennas.  During these 
activities, it may be appropriate to utilize Lockout/Tagout Procedures as specified in 
ATT-002-290-078, “RF Exposure: Responsibilities, Procedures & Guidelines” for 
scheduled outages to eliminate RF hazards during these activities. 

 

184



Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 21 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

9 Appendix B 
9.1 Qualifications of Waterford Consultants, LLC 
With more than 100 team-years of experience, Waterford Consultants, LLC 
[Waterford] provides technical consulting services to clients in the Radio 
Communications and antenna locating industry.  Waterford retains professional 
engineers who are placed in responsible charge of the processes for analysis. 
 
Waterford is familiar with 47 C.F.R. § § 1.1307(b)(3) and 1.1310 along with the 
general Rules, Regulations and policies of the FCC.  Waterford work processes 
incorporate all specifications of FCC Office of Engineering and Technology, Bulletin 
65 (“OET65”), from the website: www.fcc.gov/oet/rfsafety and follow criteria detailed 
in 47 CFR § 1.1310 “Radiofrequency radiation exposure Limits”. 
 
Within the technical and regulatory framework detailed above, Waterford developed 
tools according to recognized and generally accepted good engineering practices.  
Permissible exposure limits are band specific, and the Waterford computerized 
modeling tools correctly calculate permissible exposure based on the band(s) 
specified in the input data. Only clients and client representatives are authorized to 
provide input data through the Waterford web portal.  In securing that authorization, 
clients and client representatives attest to the accuracy of all input data. 
 
Waterford Consultants, LLC attests to the accuracy of the engineering calculations 
computed by those modeling tools.  Furthermore, Waterford attests that the results 
of those engineering calculations are correctly summarized in this report. 

 

185

http://www.fcc.gov/oet/rfsafety


Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 22 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

10 Appendix C 
10.1 RoofMaster™ 
RoofMaster™ is the software package that Waterford Consultants created to model 
RF environments associated with multiple emitters where the potential exists for 
human exposure.  Based on the computational guidelines set forth in OET Bulletin 
65 from the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), RoofMaster™ considers 
the operating parameters of specified RF sources to predict the overall Maximum 
Permissible Exposure possible at a given location.  These theoretical results 
represent worst-case predictions as emitters are assumed to be operating at 100% 
duty cycle. 
 
From the FCC document: 

 
 “The revised OET Bulletin 65 has been prepared to provide assistance in 
determining whether proposed or existing transmitting facilities, operations or 
devices comply with limits for human exposure to radiofrequency (RF) fields 
adopted by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). The bulletin 
offers guidelines and suggestions for evaluating compliance.” 
 

http://transition.fcc.gov/Bureaus/Engineering_Technology/Documents/bulletins/oet65/oet65.pdf 
 
 

186

http://transition.fcc.gov/Bureaus/Engineering_Technology/Documents/bulletins/oet65/oet65.pdf


Site Name: Elkhorn 
Site FA: 10130455  

 

RF-15-0013 Page 23 
Waterford Consultants, LLC ● 201 Loudoun Street Southeast Suite 300 ● Leesburg, Virginia 20175 ● 703.596.1022 

 

11 Appendix D 
11.1 Statement of Limiting Conditions 
Waterford Consultants, LLC field personnel have visited the site and collected only 
data with regard to the MPE environment.  Waterford Consultants will not be 
responsible for matters of a legal nature that affect the site or property.  The property 
has been analyzed under the premise that it is under responsible ownership and 
management and our client has the legal right to conduct business at this facility. 
 
Due to the complexity of some wireless sites, Waterford Consultants has created 
this report utilizing best industry practices and due diligence.  Waterford Consultants 
cannot be held accountable or responsible for anomalies or discrepancies due to 
actual site conditions (i.e., mislabelling of antennas or equipment, inaccessible cable 
runs, inaccessible antennas or equipment, etc.) or information or data supplied by 
Wireless Carrier, the site manager, or their affiliates, subcontractors or assigns. 
 
Waterford Consultants has provided the results of a computer generated model in 
this MPE Site Compliance Report to show approximate dimensions of the site, and 
the model results is included to assist the reader of the compliance report to 
visualize the site area, and to provide supporting documentation for Waterford 
Consultants’ recommendations. 
 
Waterford Consultants will not be responsible for any existing conditions or for any 
engineering or testing that might be required to discover whether adverse safety 
conditions exist.  Because Waterford Consultants is not an expert in the field of 
mechanical engineering or building maintenance, this MPE Site Compliance Report 
must not be considered a structural or physical engineering report. 
 
Waterford Consultants obtained information used in this MPE Site Compliance 
Report from sources that Waterford Consultants considers reliable and 
believes them to be true and correct.  Waterford Consultants does not assume 
any responsibility for the accuracy of such items that were furnished by other 
parties. 

 
 

187



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
    SEATTLE LOS ANGELES        DENVER            PORTLAND             BEND 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
113 Cherry St. #75604 
Seattle WA 98104-2205 

Kim.Allen@wirelesscounsel.com 
www.wirelesscounsel.com 

 

t 425.628.2666 
f 206.219.6717 

 
 

 

OctoberĀ30,.2015�
�

	  
Via	  Email	  to	  Alissa	  Weber,	  City	  Clerk	  
	  
Mayor� Dewayne� Briscoe� �
City� Council� Members� City� of� Sun� Valley �
P.O. � Box � 416�
Sun� Valley,� ID� � 83353� 0416�
Re:� � Elkhorn� � � Sage� Creek� Wireless� Facility� �
�
Dear� Mayor� and� City� Council:�
�
AT&T� appreciates� the� opportunity� to� respond� to� the� concerns� expressed� by� the� Sentilles�
and� other� neighbors.� � This� wireless� facility� provides� a� vital� link� in� the� network� that�
provides� wireless� service� to� this� area.� �With� the� demand� for� more� and� better� service�
ever� expanding,� this� facility� was� upgraded� in� 2014� to� meet� that� increased� demand� for�
service.� AT&T� has� fulfilled� all� of� its� obligations� under� the� original� 2008� Conditional� Use�
Permit� (“CUP”)� and� the� 2014� Design� Review,� as� set� forth� more� fully� in� a� letter� to� the� city�
dated� July� 1,� 2015,� attached� as� Exhibit� � A.� � The� Council� does� not� have� jurisdiction� to� hear�
an� untimely� appeal� of� those� permit� decisions� at� this� late� date.	  
	  

• Overview.	  
In� 2008,� the� Sun� Valley� City� Council� granted� a� CUP� to� Edge,� AT&T’s� predecessor,� to�
construct� a� wireless� facility.� � That� facility� was� constructed� and� became� a� vital� link� in� the�
wireless� network� in� that� area.� � There� was� no� expiration� date� in� the� conditions� of�
approval,� nor� is� there� a� code� provision� setting� a� time� of� expiration.� � � In� 2014,� when�
technological� upgrades� were� required� to� provide� the� enhanced� service� that� Sun� Valley�
residents� need,� the� Planning� and� Zoning� Commission� approved� a� Design� Review�
modification� the� existing� CUP� to� replace� antennas� and� equipment.� The� decisions� on�
these� permits� are� attached� as� Exhibits� B� and� C.� � Both� of� these� hearings� were� properly�
noticed� to� all� property� owners� within� 300� feet� of� the� site,� as� required� by� Table� 9 � 5A� 3� of�
the� Sun� Valley� City� Code(“SVCC”).� � The� Sentilles� received� notice,� as� a� 300� foot� adjoiner.� �
The� other� residents� who� have� submitted� letters� are� not� within� the� 300� feet� radius� and�
were� not� entitled� to� notice.� (See� Exhibit� D� Assessor’s� Map� of� 300� foot� adjoiners.)�
�
 

188



 
 
 
 
 
October 30, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

 

• The	  2008	  CUP	  and	  the	  2014	  Design	  Review	  were	  properly	  approved.
The� Sentilles� argue� that� Condition� 1� of� the� 2008� CUP� requires� a� public� hearing� to� modify�
the� CUP.� 1.This� is� not� supported� by� either� the� language� of� the� condition,� case� law� � or� the�
code.� � Condition� 1� requires:� ”This� Conditional� Use� Permit� is� specific� to� Design� Review�
Applications� DR#2007� 060� and� DR#2007� 061.� Any� future� modifications� to� the� facility� or�
its� structural� elements� shall� require� city� approval� of� a� modification� to� this� Conditional�
Use� Permit.”�
The� condition� requires� city	  approval,� not� Council� approval.� SVCC� Table� 9� 5A� 1� �
Authorities� And� Processes,� � does� not� require� a� public� hearing� or� Council� action.� � In� fact,�
there� is� no� designated� process� required� to� modify� a� CUP.� � In� this� case,� the� 2014� Design�
Review� was � the� city� approval� of� a� modification� to� the� 2008� CUP.� � The� 2014� Design�
Review� decision� by� the� Planning� and� Zoning� Commission� reexamined� all� of� the� criteria�
for� a� conditional� use� and� found� them� to� be� met.� � � The� 2014� Design� Review� replaced� the�
2008� Design� Review� for� the� original� facility� and� properly� modified� Condition� 1� of� the�
2008	  CUP. � �
�

• The	  2008	  and	  2014	  permits	  were	  not	  appealed. �
This� tardy� attempt� to� challenge� the� 2008� and� 2014� permits� amounts� to� a� time� barred�
appeal� under� existing� Code.� � SVCC� Section� 9 � 5A� 9� 2permits� an� appeal� only� by� an�
interested� party� within� 300� feet� of� the� exterior� boundary� of� the� property� and� requires �
that� the� appeal� be� filed� within� 10� days.� � The� effective� date� of� the� 2008� permit� was�
March� 3,� 2008.The� effective� date� of� the� 2014� Modification� Approval� was� June� 2,� 2014.� �
The� Sentilles� did� not� file� a� timely� appeal� within� the� requisite� 10 � day� period� for� either�
permit.� � The� other� neighbors� who� have� written� to� this� Council� did� not� timely� appeal,� and�
also� � do� not� live� within� 300� feet� of� the� property,� as� required� to� have� standing� to� appeal.� �
The� challenges� being� asserted� now� to� the� 2008� and� 2014� proceedings� are� barred� under�

                                                
1 � The � Sentilles � inaccurately � cite � case � law � in � support � of � their � assertion � that � notice � and � a� hearing � is � required � for �
As � this � Council � well � knows, � zoning � provisions � can � and � often � are � properly � applied � administratively, � without � a� public �
hearing. � � These � cited � cases � do � hold � that� a � governing � body, � like � this � Council, �may � not� enact� � additional � regulations �
without � proper � community � notice � and � a � hearing.� � This � Council, � having � set � forth � those �matters � which � require � a � hearing �
in � Table � 9 � 5A � 1, � cannot � expand � that � list � on � an � ad	  hoc � basis � here. � The � existing � code � does � not � require � a � hearing � to�
modify � a � CUP. �
�
�
�
2� 9-‐5A-‐9:	  APPEALS: � �
�
A. � Notice � Of � Appeal: � Any � applicant � and� any � person� owning � an� interest � in� real � property � which� is � within� three � hundred�
feet� (300')� of� the � exterior� boundary � lines � of� the � property � which � is � subject � to � an � application � who � is � dissatisfied, �may �
appeal � the� action � of � the� decision �maker. � An � appeal � shall � be� made, � in � writing, � and � filed � with � the� city � clerk � within� ten �
(10)� days � after� the � action � of� the � decision �maker. �

�
�

189



 
 
 
 
 
October 30, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 

 

the� code� and� the� Council� does� not� have� the� authority� to� reconsider� those� final� decisions�
now. �
	  

• The	  2014	  modification	  was	  not	  a	  substantial	  change	  under	  federal	  law	  and	  the	  
city	  was	  required	  to	  approve	  the	  application.	  

Under� Section� 6409(a)� of� the� Middle� Class� Tax� Relief� and� Job� Creation� Act� of� 2012�
(“Section	  6409”),� the� 2014� Modification� cannot� be� contested� because� such�
modifications� are� permitted� outright� if� there� is� no� substantial� change� to� an� existing�
wireless� facility.� � The� 2014� Modifications� included� the� replacement� of� a� four � inch�� ide�
mounting� pipe� with� a� six� inch� wide� mounting� pipe,� the� replacement� of� the� two� existing�
antennas� on� the� pipe,� and� the� installation� of� additional� equipment� within� AT&T’s �
equipment� enclosure.� Section� 6409� requires � a� jurisdiction� to� approve� any� modification�
to� existing� wireless� facilities� that� does� not� “substantially� change”� the� physical�
dimensions� of� the� wireless� facility.� � The� term� “substantial� change”� is� defined� as:	  

�
• a� height� increase� greater� than� 10%� or� ten� feet,� whichever� is� greater� �
• projection� from� a� tower� by� more� than� 20� feet�
• installation� of� more� than� 4� new� cabinets�
• excavation� or� deployment� outside� the� current� site �
• installations� that� would� defeat� concealment� elements�
• noncompliance� with� original� conditions� of� approval� �
�

� In� this� case,� the� 2014� dimensional� changes� are� well� below� these� thresholds� and,�
as� the� facility� was� not� required� to� be� concealed,� the� concealment� standard� does� not�
apply.� There� were� no� cabinets� installed� and� no� excavation� outside� the� lease� area� was�
performed.� A� modification� that� is� not� a� substantial� change� is� not� required� to� meet� new�
code� requirements.� � It� is� not� subject� to� any� discretionary� review.� As� detailed� above,� the�
Design� Review� itself� constituted� city� approval� of� a� modification� to� the� CUP� and� there� is�
compliance� with� all� of� the� original� conditions� of� approval..� � �

�
� It� should� be� noted� that� the� Sun� Valley� Code� is� also� consistent� with� Section� 6409.� �

Section� 9� 3K� 7C� 3(c)� of� the� Code� provides� that� any� equipment� change � out� and� overhaul�
may� occur� any� time� with� 30� days’� notice� so� the� City� may� inform� individuals� within� 300�
feet� of� the� wireless� facility.� No� hearing� or� appeal� is� permitted.� � The� 2014� Modifications�
described� above� clearly� fall� within� the� parameters� of� an� “equipment� change � out,”� and�
there� is� no� Code� requirement� for� any� additional� land� use� approval� for� such�
modifications.�

�
Finally,� it� should� again� be� noted� that� there� was� no� appeal� filed� within� 10� days� of�

the� 2008� CUP� and� the� 2014� Design� Review� decision,� which� is� the� deadline� set� � by� the�
code.� AT&T� is� now� and� will� remain� in� compliance� with� all� of� the� conditions� of� approval�

190



 
 
 
 
 
October 30, 2015 
Page 4 
 
 

 

imposed� by� both� permits.� This� matter� is� not� properly� before� the� Council� for� any� action�
at� this� time.�

�
Sincerely,� �
�
�
�
Kimberly� Allen�
Attorneys� for� AT&T�
�
cc:� �
Jae� Hill,� Sun� Valley� Planning� Director �
Adam� King,� Sun� Valley� City� Attorney �
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
�

191



EXHIBIT A

192



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
    SEATTLE LOS ANGELES        DENVER            PORTLAND             BEND 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
1220 S. Fillmore St. 
Denver, Colorado 80210 

 Victoria.Chenault@wirelesscounsel.com 
www.wirelesscounsel.com 

 

t 425.406.7859 
f 206.219.6717 

 
 

 

July 6, 2015 
 
Mr. Jae Hill 
Community Development Director 
City of Sun Valley 
81 Elkhorn Road 
P.O. Box 416 
Sun Valley, ID 83353 
 

Re: Conditional Use Permit – Sage Creek Application - #CUP2007-04 
 
Dear Jae: 
 
 Thank you again for speaking with me in early June regarding the request that 
AT&T Mobility (“AT&T”) submit a new application for the above referenced 
Conditional Use Permit.  As discussed, our firm is outside legal counsel for AT&T and 
we are in receipt of a letter that the City of Sun Valley received from Ned C. Williamson, 
attorney for Irwin and Ann Sentilles, dated November 4, 2014, regarding AT&T’s 
wireless communications facility located at the pump booster station structure adjacent to 
the SVW&SD Sage Creek Reservoir (the “Facility”).  
 

It is our understanding that Mr. Williamson’s letter prompted Interim Community 
Development Director, John Gaeddert, to examine the Conditional Use Permit that was 
granted to AT&T’s predecessor, Edge Wireless, on March 1, 2008 (the “2008 CUP”).  
Mr. Gaeddert, acting in good faith and with the intent to resolve the claims stated in Mr. 
Williamson’s letter, believed that a new Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) would be 
required.  His explanation for requiring a new CUP was out of concern that the 2008 
CUP may have expired and that AT&T had not obtained an effective modification of the 
2008 CUP when the modifications to the Facility were made in 2014 (“2014 
Modifications”).   He suggested that a new CUP would rectify the purported failure to 
obtain a proper modification to the 2008 CUP and also assist in satisfying the claims 
made by the frustrated homeowners, Irwin and Ann Sentilles, but he did not cite any 
supporting code authority when making these conclusions.  After an examination of the 
2008 CUP and Mr. Williamson’s letter against the applicable code provisions from Sun 
Valley’s City Code (the “Code”), we conclude that a new CUP is not required under the 
Code.   
 
  Mr. Gaeddert asserted that a new CUP would be required if the 2008 CUP had 
expired. The terms of the 2008 CUP do not set forth a stated date of expiration, and the 
Code does not otherwise provide a blanket expiration date for all CUPs.  In addition, 
while the third condition of approval requires a compliance review submittal every five 

193



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

 

years, there is no code provision or CUP language that would automatically revoke the 
permit for failure to comply with this condition of approval.  Further, no revocation 
proceedings for the 2008 CUP were ever initiated by the City.  Although AT&T 
acknowledges that the required information under Condition 3 was not submitted in 2013 
as required, to assure continuity of service and to maintain the existing AT&T network, 
we attach the required written Condition 3 submittal, which submittal brings AT&T into 
compliance with all conditions of approval from the 2008 CUP.  In addition, AT&T is 
also in compliance with the governing documents of the Sun Valley Elkhorn Association, 
as indicated in the attached letter dated November 5, 2014, which letter states that the 
completed project is in substantial compliance with the submitted plans, including the 
tree planting / irrigation and repainting of the antennas. Given this, the permit is and has 
remained valid since it was issued in 2008, and AT&T continues to be in compliance 
with all governing rules and regulations.  

 
 Mr. Gaeddert also questioned whether the approval of AT&T’s 2014 

Modifications to the Facility was an appropriate modification of the 2008 CUP under the 
first condition of approval.  This first condition of approval clearly states that the 2008 
CUP is specific to the related Design Review Approval and requires “City approval of a 
modification to this Conditional Use Permit”.  Neither the code nor the 2008 CUP set 
forth a required process for City approval of modifications to a CUP.  As a result, AT&T 
submits that the very comprehensive 2014 design review approval of AT&T’s 2014 
Modifications was sufficient to comply with the first condition of the 2008 CUP.  The 
Sentilles’ claim that staff acted improperly or contrary to the conditions of the 2008 CUP 
or that the 2008 CUP was not properly modified is simply not accurate.  On the contrary, 
staff thoroughly reviewed AT&T’s proposed modifications and made detailed findings 
that each of the modifications satisfied the design review criteria set forth in the Code. 
This thorough review of the modifications and the conclusion that the modifications 
would cause minimal impact to the surrounding area are sufficient to satisfy the 
conditions of the 2008 CUP.  

 
There are also overarching federal law considerations validating the 2014 

Modifications.  Under Section 6409 of the Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act 
of 2012 (“Section 6409”), the 2014 Modifications are proper because certain 
modifications are permitted outright if there is no substantial change to an existing 
wireless facility.  The 2014 Modifications included the replacement of a four-inch wide 
mounting pipe with a six-inch wide mounting pipe, the replacement of the two existing 
antennas on the pipe, and the installation of additional equipment within AT&T’s 
equipment enclosure. Section 6409 requires a jurisdiction to approve any modification to 
existing wireless facilities that does not “substantially change” the physical dimensions of 
the wireless facility. (A copy of the new federal rule is enclosed with this letter for your 

194



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 

 

review.)1 Based on the FCC guidelines, the 2014 Modifications to the Facility were not 
considered a substantial change and the City would have no discretion to deny the 
modification request were it to be resubmitted. 

 
It should also be noted that the Code is consistent with Section 6409.  Section 9-

3K-7C-3(c) of the Code provides that any equipment change-out and overhaul may occur 
any time with 30 days’ notice so the City may inform individuals within 300 feet of the 
wireless facility.  The 2014 Modifications described above clearly fall within the 
parameters of an “equipment change-out,” and there is no Code requirement for any 
additional land use approval for such modifications. 

 
 Finally, the letter from the Sentilles’ counsel amounts to a time barred appeal 

under existing Code.  Section 9-5A-9, requires that any interested party within 300-feet 
of the exterior boundary of the property appeal any decision within 10 days.  The 
effective date of the 2014 Modification Approval was June 2, 2014.  The Sentilles did not 
file a timely appeal within the requisite 10-day period.  Therefore, the written objection to 
the Facility dated November 4, 2014, is time barred under the code.  

 
Thank you again for agreeing to review AT&T’s position on the application for a 

new CUP.  Please also extend our gratitude to Mr. Gaeddert for being open to our 
position and for speaking with us prior to you assuming your new role.  Please let me 
know if there is anything else needed to process the enclosed compliance submittal.  We 
look forward to your review and response. 

 
 
Regards, 
 

 
 
Victoria Davis Chenault 
 
Enclosures    
 
 
 
                                                
1 Earlier this year, the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) published a new federal rule (which is codified 
at 47 C.F.R. § 1.40001) that defines a “substantial change.” as increasing the height of the tower by more than 10% or 
by the height of one additional antenna array with separation from the nearest existing antenna not to exceed twenty 
feet, whichever is greater; for other eligible support structures, it increases the height of the structure by more than 10% 
or more than ten feet, whichever is greater. The new federal rule is consistent with the FCC guidelines that were in 
place in 2014 when the 2014 Modifications were reviewed by the City.   

195



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 4 
 
 

 

Attachment 1 
 

Compliance Review Pursuant to Condition of Approval No. 3 from 2008 CUP 
 
Monitoring: At five (5) year internals from the date when the city issues a building 
permit, the Applicant shall submit the following information to the Community 
Development Director: 
 
i.   Confirmation that the facility continues to operate in compliance with all terms 
and conditions of approval by the City. 
 
 After review of the 2008 CUP approval, the approval of the 2014 Modifications, 
and all applicable provisions of the Code, and as described in the forgoing letter, AT&T 
confirmed that it continues to operate with in compliance with all terms and conditions of 
approval by the City. 
 
ii. Independent field strength or power density measurements taken within the past 
30-days that verify that the facility continues to operate in compliance with all terms and 
conditions and emissions standards imposed by the Federal Communications 
Commission. 
 
 As of the date of this letter, AT&T initiated ordering of the Power Density Study 
and expects a final report within four to six weeks.  AT&T will provide the results of the 
study to the City as soon as they are received.   
  
iii. Confirmation that there is no equipment available that would enhance the safety, 
efficiency, or visibility of the facility or reduce the size of the facility. 
 
 Safety: According to AT&T’s Radio Frequency Engineers (“RF Engineers”), the 
facility continues to operate safely within all FCC guidelines and in accordance with 
industry standards.  
  
 Efficiency:  The Facility is as efficient as possible given the design restrictions, 
and operates with the most current technology.  The Facility was originally constructed 
with “2G” radio frequency technology.  The Facility was subsequently updated to 
accommodate more advanced and efficient “3G” and “4G” technologies. All the older 
2G equipment will be removed by 2017 to further enhance efficiency.  
 
 Visibility:  The ground equipment is currently configured with the minimum 
amount of equipment that allows the proper function of the Facility.  All equipment is 
within the existing pump house to provide maximum visual concealment.   
 
 The antenna technology at the Facility is consolidated into two panel antennas to 

196



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 5 
 
 

 

minimize the visual impact.  The industry standard is to have a dedicated panel antenna 
for each technology (i.e. four antennas per sector). Although the consolidated antennas 
do not provide optimal efficiency and capacity, AT&T agreed to utilize the consolidated 
antenna system so that service could be provided to a location where it would not 
otherwise be available.  In addition, the Facility is not configured with any future 
expansion and only possesses enough equipment to support daily usage in the area.  
 
iv. Confirmation that there are not more appropriate locations for the Facility.   
  
 On June 12, 2015, the RF Engineers completed a site walk of the Facility and 
surrounding area.  They examined all alternative locations, developed and undeveloped, 
within a technically feasible radius of approximately 2 miles. The RF Engineers 
concluded that there were no other locations that could accommodate AT&T’s service 
needs.  The following is a list of those alternative locations that were examined. 
 

·       Top of Bald Mountain – AT&T is currently operating from this location. This 
was the primary location to provide coverage to Elkhorn prior to AT&T 
constructing the Elkhorn reservoir location. This site provided marginal 
outdoor coverage and poor in building coverage in Elkhorn, thereby 
prompting the need for an additional facility in the area. 

·       Dollar Mountain - AT&T is currently operating a site from this location. There 
are two towers on Dollar Mountain. AT&T is located on the lower of the two 
towers. This location is blocked by terrain, which terrain prevents AT&T from 
providing coverage to the Elkhorn location.    

·      Verizon Wireless facility East of Elkhorn approximately 2 miles – This location 
was evaluated by AT&T when AT&T originally examined the area for possible 
locations of the current Facility.  This location would have not offered a 
significant improvement to the network or filled the gaps in coverage. 

·       Sun Valley City Fire Department - This location was evaluated by AT&T when 
AT&T originally examined the area for possible locations of the current 
Facility.  However, the elevated terrain surrounding the fire station limits the 
potential coverage and therefore did not meet AT&T’s coverage needs. 

The RF Engineers also examined the possibility of deploying a new facility or utilizing 
an existing facility at the locations listed below, but determined that the locations would 
not provide adequate coverage to Elkhorn due to terrain or other concerns: 

·         Top of old the Flying Squirrel Ski Run 
·         Site near the animal shelter, Clear Creek Disposal 
·         River Run Lodge 
·         Down Town Ketchum - 333 South Main. 
·         Sun Valley Lodge 
·         Sun Valley Club House 
 

197



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 6 
 
 

 

v. Confirmation that the facility continues to function as an essential element of the 
Applicant’s network.   
 
 The RF Engineers confirmed that the Facility continues to function as an essential 
element of AT&T’s network in the Sun Valley area by providing coverage to the Elkhorn 
community that could not otherwise be offered by any other location.  Please refer to the 
coverage maps below as an indication of the gap in coverage that would result if the 
Facility were to be removed.   

 
 

Elkhorn(WT(

Good(indoor(coverage(

Dollar(Mt(

AT&T network with the Elkhorn water pump location.(

198



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 7 
 
 

 

 
vi. Documentation of any complaints received by the Applicant since the inception of 
operations regarding the operation and maintenance of the facility, including the 
Applicant actions to address the complaints.   
 
 To the best of AT&T’s knowledge, AT&T has received no other complaints aside 
from the letter received from the City from Ned C. Williamson, attorney for Irwin and 
Ann Sentilles, dated November 4, 2014.  AT&T has addressed  the complaints set forth in 
the letter from Mr. Williamson  in the foregoing letter and is providing all required 
information to comply with  Condition 3.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Elkhorn(WT(

Dollar(Mt(

Good(indoor(coverage(

AT&T network if the Elkhorn water pump facility were removed.(

199



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 8 
 
 

 

Attachment 2 
 

Letter From Sun Valley Elkhorn Association, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

200



�

�

�
�
July � 2, � 2015 �
�
Nadine � Bostwick �
Powder � River � Development � Services � LLC �
219� S� Wooddale� Ave �
Eagle, � ID � 83616 �
�

Sent � via� email: � Nadine.bostwock@powderriverdev.com;�� pat@svwsd.com � �

RE:	  ATT	  antennae	  project	  at	  100	  Sage	  Creek	  Reservoir	  Road	  

Dear � Nadine � and � Pat: �

On � June � 2nd,�� 014 � � you � received � the � Architectural � Design � Committee � conditional � approval � for� the � ATT �
antennae� project � at � 100� Sage� Creek � Reservoir � Road.� The � SVEA � governing � documents � require � that � the �
final � inspection �must � take � place � within� one � year. �We � visited � the � site � for � the � final � approval � inspection � on�
November � 5th,�� 014 � and � found � the � completed � project � to � be � in � substantial � compliance � with � the �
submitted � plans. � � � Thank � you � for � completing � the � tree � planting � / � irrigation � and � repainting � of � the �
antennae. �

Your � completion � deposit � in � the � amount � of � $1,000 � is � � eing � � rocessed � � y � � ccounting � � nd � � ill�� e � � ailed �
via � USPS. �

Please� don’t � hesitate� to � call � if � you � have� questions � or � concerns. �

Sincerely, �
�
Paul Exline 
Paul � Exline �
ADC� Manager �
Sun � Valley � Elkhorn � Association, � Inc. �
�
/SVSWD �

201



 
 
 
 
 
July 6, 2015 
Page 9 
 
 

 

Attachment 3 
 

The FCC Rule Regarding Section 6409 

202



1269 Federal Register / Vol. 80, No. 5 / Thursday, January 8, 2015 / Rules and Regulations 

(iii) Comparable equipment from pre- 
existing wireless deployments on the 
structure; 

(3) The deployment will involve no 
new ground disturbance; and 

(4) The deployment would otherwise 
require the preparation of an EA under 
paragraph (a)(4)(i) of this section solely 
because of the age of the structure; or 

(B) The mounting of antennas 
(including associated equipment such as 
wiring, cabling, cabinets, or backup- 
power) on buildings or other non-tower 
structures where the deployment meets 
the following conditions: 

(1) There is an existing antenna on the 
building or structure; 

(2) One of the following criteria is 
met: 

(i) Non-Visible Antennas. The new 
antenna is not visible from any adjacent 
streets or surrounding public spaces and 
is added in the same vicinity as a pre- 
existing antenna; 

(ii) Visible Replacement Antennas. 
The new antenna is visible from 
adjacent streets or surrounding public 
spaces, provided that 

(A) It is a replacement for a pre- 
existing antenna, 

(B) The new antenna will be located 
in the same vicinity as the pre-existing 
antenna, 

(C) The new antenna will be visible 
only from adjacent streets and 
surrounding public spaces that also 
afford views of the pre-existing antenna, 

(D) The new antenna is not more than 
3 feet larger in height or width 
(including all protuberances) than the 
pre-existing antenna, and 

(E) No new equipment cabinets are 
visible from the adjacent streets or 
surrounding public spaces; or 

(iii) Other Visible Antennas. The new 
antenna is visible from adjacent streets 
or surrounding public spaces, provided 
that 

(A) It is located in the same vicinity 
as a pre-existing antenna, 

(B) The new antenna will be visible 
only from adjacent streets and 
surrounding public spaces that also 
afford views of the pre-existing antenna, 

(C) The pre-existing antenna was not 
deployed pursuant to the exclusion in 
this subsection 
(§ 1.1307(a)(4)(ii)(B)(2)(iii)), 

(D) The new antenna is not more than 
three feet larger in height or width 
(including all protuberances) than the 
pre-existing antenna, and 

(E) No new equipment cabinets are 
visible from the adjacent streets or 
surrounding public spaces; 

(3) The new antenna complies with 
all zoning conditions and historic 
preservation conditions applicable to 
existing antennas in the same vicinity 

that directly mitigate or prevent effects, 
such as camouflage or concealment 
requirements; 

(4) The deployment of the new 
antenna involves no new ground 
disturbance; and 

(5) The deployment would otherwise 
require the preparation of an EA under 
paragraph (a)(4) of this section solely 
because of the age of the structure. 

Note to paragraph (a)(4)(ii): A non-visible 
new antenna is in the ‘‘same vicinity’’ as a 
pre-existing antenna if it will be collocated 
on the same rooftop, façade or other surface. 
A visible new antenna is in the ‘‘same 
vicinity’’ as a pre-existing antenna if it is on 
the same rooftop, façade, or other surface and 
the centerpoint of the new antenna is within 
ten feet of the centerpoint of the pre-existing 
antenna. A deployment causes no new 
ground disturbance when the depth and 
width of previous disturbance exceeds the 
proposed construction depth and width by at 
least two feet. 

* * * * * 
■ 4. Add Subpart CC to part 1 to read 
as follows: 

Subpart CC—State and Local Review 
of Applications for Wireless Service 
Facility Modification 

§ 1.40001 Wireless Facility Modifications. 
(a) Purpose. These rules implement 

section 6409 of the Spectrum Act 
(codified at 47 U.S.C. 1455), which 
requires a State or local government to 
approve any eligible facilities request 
for a modification of an existing tower 
or base station that does not 
substantially change the physical 
dimensions of such tower or base 
station. 

(b) Definitions. Terms used in this 
section have the following meanings. 

(1) Base station. A structure or 
equipment at a fixed location that 
enables Commission-licensed or 
authorized wireless communications 
between user equipment and a 
communications network. The term 
does not encompass a tower as defined 
in this subpart or any equipment 
associated with a tower. 

(i) The term includes, but is not 
limited to, equipment associated with 
wireless communications services such 
as private, broadcast, and public safety 
services, as well as unlicensed wireless 
services and fixed wireless services 
such as microwave backhaul. 

(ii) The term includes, but is not 
limited to, radio transceivers, antennas, 
coaxial or fiber-optic cable, regular and 
backup power supplies, and comparable 
equipment, regardless of technological 
configuration (including Distributed 
Antenna Systems and small-cell 
networks). 

(iii) The term includes any structure 
other than a tower that, at the time the 
relevant application is filed with the 
State or local government under this 
section, supports or houses equipment 
described in paragraphs (b)(1)(i) through 
(ii) of this section that has been 
reviewed and approved under the 
applicable zoning or siting process, or 
under another State or local regulatory 
review process, even if the structure was 
not built for the sole or primary purpose 
of providing such support. 

(iv) The term does not include any 
structure that, at the time the relevant 
application is filed with the State or 
local government under this section, 
does not support or house equipment 
described in paragraphs (b)(1)(i)–(ii) of 
this section. 

(2) Collocation. The mounting or 
installation of transmission equipment 
on an eligible support structure for the 
purpose of transmitting and/or receiving 
radio frequency signals for 
communications purposes. 

(3) Eligible facilities request. Any 
request for modification of an existing 
tower or base station that does not 
substantially change the physical 
dimensions of such tower or base 
station, involving: 

(i) Collocation of new transmission 
equipment; 

(ii) Removal of transmission 
equipment; or 

(iii) Replacement of transmission 
equipment. 

(4) Eligible support structure. Any 
tower or base station as defined in this 
section, provided that it is existing at 
the time the relevant application is filed 
with the State or local government 
under this section. 

(5) Existing. A constructed tower or 
base station is existing for purposes of 
this section if it has been reviewed and 
approved under the applicable zoning 
or siting process, or under another State 
or local regulatory review process, 
provided that a tower that has not been 
reviewed and approved because it was 
not in a zoned area when it was built, 
but was lawfully constructed, is existing 
for purposes of this definition. 

(6) Site. For towers other than towers 
in the public rights-of-way, the current 
boundaries of the leased or owned 
property surrounding the tower and any 
access or utility easements currently 
related to the site, and, for other eligible 
support structures, further restricted to 
that area in proximity to the structure 
and to other transmission equipment 
already deployed on the ground. 

(7) Substantial change. A 
modification substantially changes the 
physical dimensions of an eligible 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 20:38 Jan 07, 2015 Jkt 235001 PO 00000 Frm 00033 Fmt 4701 Sfmt 4700 E:\FR\FM\08JAR3.SGM 08JAR3m
st

oc
ks

til
l o

n 
D

S
K

4V
P

T
V

N
1P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 R

U
LE

S
3

203



1270 Federal Register / Vol. 80, No. 5 / Thursday, January 8, 2015 / Rules and Regulations 

support structure if it meets any of the 
following criteria: 

(i) For towers other than towers in the 
public rights-of-way, it increases the 
height of the tower by more than 10% 
or by the height of one additional 
antenna array with separation from the 
nearest existing antenna not to exceed 
twenty feet, whichever is greater; for 
other eligible support structures, it 
increases the height of the structure by 
more than 10% or more than ten feet, 
whichever is greater; 

(A) Changes in height should be 
measured from the original support 
structure in cases where deployments 
are or will be separated horizontally, 
such as on buildings’ rooftops; in other 
circumstances, changes in height should 
be measured from the dimensions of the 
tower or base station, inclusive of 
originally approved appurtenances and 
any modifications that were approved 
prior to the passage of the Spectrum 
Act. 

(ii) For towers other than towers in 
the public rights-of-way, it involves 
adding an appurtenance to the body of 
the tower that would protrude from the 
edge of the tower more than twenty feet, 
or more than the width of the tower 
structure at the level of the 
appurtenance, whichever is greater; for 
other eligible support structures, it 
involves adding an appurtenance to the 
body of the structure that would 
protrude from the edge of the structure 
by more than six feet; 

(iii) For any eligible support structure, 
it involves installation of more than the 
standard number of new equipment 
cabinets for the technology involved, 
but not to exceed four cabinets; or, for 
towers in the public rights-of-way and 
base stations, it involves installation of 
any new equipment cabinets on the 
ground if there are no pre-existing 
ground cabinets associated with the 
structure, or else involves installation of 
ground cabinets that are more than 10% 
larger in height or overall volume than 
any other ground cabinets associated 
with the structure; 

(iv) It entails any excavation or 
deployment outside the current site; 

(v) It would defeat the concealment 
elements of the eligible support 
structure; or 

(vi) It does not comply with 
conditions associated with the siting 
approval of the construction or 
modification of the eligible support 
structure or base station equipment, 
provided however that this limitation 
does not apply to any modification that 
is non-compliant only in a manner that 
would not exceed the thresholds 
identified in § 1.40001(b)(7)(i) through 
(iv). 

(8) Transmission equipment. 
Equipment that facilitates transmission 
for any Commission-licensed or 
authorized wireless communication 
service, including, but not limited to, 
radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or 
fiber-optic cable, and regular and 
backup power supply. The term 
includes equipment associated with 
wireless communications services 
including, but not limited to, private, 
broadcast, and public safety services, as 
well as unlicensed wireless services and 
fixed wireless services such as 
microwave backhaul. 

(9) Tower. Any structure built for the 
sole or primary purpose of supporting 
any Commission-licensed or authorized 
antennas and their associated facilities, 
including structures that are constructed 
for wireless communications services 
including, but not limited to, private, 
broadcast, and public safety services, as 
well as unlicensed wireless services and 
fixed wireless services such as 
microwave backhaul, and the associated 
site. 

(c) Review of applications. A State or 
local government may not deny and 
shall approve any eligible facilities 
request for modification of an eligible 
support structure that does not 
substantially change the physical 
dimensions of such structure. 

(1) Documentation requirement for 
review. When an applicant asserts in 
writing that a request for modification is 
covered by this section, a State or local 
government may require the applicant 
to provide documentation or 
information only to the extent 
reasonably related to determining 
whether the request meets the 
requirements of this section. A State or 
local government may not require an 
applicant to submit any other 
documentation, including but not 
limited to documentation intended to 
illustrate the need for such wireless 
facilities or to justify the business 
decision to modify such wireless 
facilities. 

(2) Timeframe for review. Within 60 
days of the date on which an applicant 
submits a request seeking approval 
under this section, the State or local 
government shall approve the 
application unless it determines that the 
application is not covered by this 
section. 

(3) Tolling of the timeframe for 
review. The 60-day period begins to run 
when the application is filed, and may 
be tolled only by mutual agreement or 
in cases where the reviewing State or 
local government determines that the 
application is incomplete. The 
timeframe for review is not tolled by a 

moratorium on the review of 
applications. 

(i) To toll the timeframe for 
incompleteness, the reviewing State or 
local government must provide written 
notice to the applicant within 30 days 
of receipt of the application, clearly and 
specifically delineating all missing 
documents or information. Such 
delineated information is limited to 
documents or information meeting the 
standard under paragraph (c)(1) of this 
section. 

(ii) The timeframe for review begins 
running again when the applicant 
makes a supplemental submission in 
response to the State or local 
government’s notice of incompleteness. 

(iii) Following a supplemental 
submission, the State or local 
government will have 10 days to notify 
the applicant that the supplemental 
submission did not provide the 
information identified in the original 
notice delineating missing information. 
The timeframe is tolled in the case of 
second or subsequent notices pursuant 
to the procedures identified in this 
paragraph (c)(3). Second or subsequent 
notices of incompleteness may not 
specify missing documents or 
information that were not delineated in 
the original notice of incompleteness. 

(4) Failure to act. In the event the 
reviewing State or local government 
fails to approve or deny a request 
seeking approval under this section 
within the timeframe for review 
(accounting for any tolling), the request 
shall be deemed granted. The deemed 
grant does not become effective until the 
applicant notifies the applicable 
reviewing authority in writing after the 
review period has expired (accounting 
for any tolling) that the application has 
been deemed granted. 

(5) Remedies. Applicants and 
reviewing authorities may bring claims 
related to Section 6409(a) to any court 
of competent jurisdiction. 

PART 17—CONSTRUCTION, 
MARKING, AND LIGHTING OF 
ANTENNA STRUCTURES 

■ 5. The authority citation for part 17 
continues to read as follows: 

Authority: Sections 4, 303, 48 Stat. 1066, 
1082, as amended; 47 U.S.C. 154, 303. 
Interpret or apply sections 301, 309, 48 Stat. 
1081, 1085 as amended; 47 U.S.C. 301, 309. 
■ 6. Amend § 17.4 by revising 
paragraphs (c)(1)(v) and (c)(1)(vi), and 
adding paragraph (c)(1)(vii) to read as 
follows: 

§ 17.4 Antenna structure registration. 
* * * * * 

(c) * * * 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 20:38 Jan 07, 2015 Jkt 235001 PO 00000 Frm 00034 Fmt 4701 Sfmt 4700 E:\FR\FM\08JAR3.SGM 08JAR3m
st

oc
ks

til
l o

n 
D

S
K

4V
P

T
V

N
1P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 R

U
LE

S
3

204

Ken Lyons

Ken Lyons



1271 Federal Register / Vol. 80, No. 5 / Thursday, January 8, 2015 / Rules and Regulations 

(1) * * * 
(v) For any other change that does not 

alter the physical structure, lighting, or 
geographic location of an existing 
structure; 

(vi) For construction, modification, or 
replacement of an antenna structure on 
Federal land where another Federal 
agency has assumed responsibility for 
evaluating the potentially significant 
environmental effect of the proposed 
antenna structure on the quality of the 
human environment and for invoking 
any required environmental impact 
statement process, or for any other 

structure where another Federal agency 
has assumed such responsibilities 
pursuant to a written agreement with 
the Commission (see § 1.1311(e) of this 
chapter); or 

(vii) For the construction or 
deployment of an antenna structure that 
will: 

(A) Be in place for no more than 60 
days, 

(B) Requires notice of construction to 
the FAA, 

(C) Does not require marking or 
lighting under FAA regulations, 

(D) Will be less than 200 feet in height 
above ground level, and 

(E) Will either involve no excavation 
or involve excavation only where the 
depth of previous disturbance exceeds 
the proposed construction depth 
(excluding footings and other anchoring 
mechanisms) by at least two feet. An 
applicant that relies on this exception 
must wait 30 days after removal of the 
antenna structure before relying on this 
exception to deploy another antenna 
structure covering substantially the 
same service area. 
* * * * * 
[FR Doc. 2014–28897 Filed 1–7–15; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6712–01–P 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 20:38 Jan 07, 2015 Jkt 235001 PO 00000 Frm 00035 Fmt 4701 Sfmt 9990 E:\FR\FM\08JAR3.SGM 08JAR3m
st

oc
ks

til
l o

n 
D

S
K

4V
P

T
V

N
1P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 R

U
LE

S
3

205



EXHIBIT B

206



207



208



209



EXHIBIT C

210



211



212



213



214



215



EXHIBIT D

216



217



MEMORANDUM TO: SUN VALLEY MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

FROM: IRWIN SENTILLES, 212 LUPINE
NED WILLIAMSON, COUNSEL

RE: SAGE CREEK CELL TOWER

DATE: OCTOBER 28, 2015

This memorandum summarizes points made in Ned Williamson’s letter to you of August
19, 2015, provides supplemental information, and suggests a way forward. Please see
the August letter for more details (Attachment 1).

1. The Sage Creek Cell Tower is not a preferred location under the City Code.
Because it is within 500 feet of residences, there must be no other feasible
alternative to it, an important continuing standard to be met.

“Conditional use permits for wireless communication facilities within five hundred feet
(500’) of a school, child daycare center, hospital, residential dwelling, or similar land
use, may be granted only where the applicant submits evidence demonstrating that
there is no other feasible alternative to the proposed location.”(l) (Emphasis added)

2. In 2007, after several public hearings, P&Z concluded that the cell tower was
inappropriate for the neighborhood.

“[The cell tower] is inappropriate to the location, the lot and the neighborhood, and is not
compatible with the uses permitted in the applicable zoning district.” (2)

3. Since the P&Z determination, we believe that the City had made several
mistakes:

FIRST MISTAKE: Mayor Willich held a single hearing to approve the tower, but
the P&Z determination was not addressed.

SECOND MISTAKE: The City failed to modify the 2008 conditional use permit
(CUP) for the tower, as required by its terms, for the 2014 expansion of the tower.
Further, even though the tower nearly doubled in size, the City sent to the public
a misleading notice of a related P&Z hearing stating that there was no
modification.

The CUP approved by the City for the tower has important continuing conditions,
consistent with the City Code’s not favoring the location. CUP Condition No. 1 requires
a modification to the CUP to permit any modification of the tower.

218



“Any future modifications to the facility or its structural elements shall require City
approval of a modification to this Conditional Use Permit.” (3)

The public notice said: “No modifications to the...structural elements of the facility are
proposed.” (4) But there is a material difference between the original tower and the
expanded tower as built (see photograph at Attachment 2).

The legal necessity for a modification of the CUP is specifically addressed in the
attached letter from Ned Williamson, dated October 28, 2015, to you. (Attachment 3)

THIRD MISTAKE: The City failed to ask for CUP-mandated periodic
demonstrations concerning location and concealment when first required in 2013
or as part of consideration of the tower expansion in 2014. It did so only after our
urging in 2015.

CUP Condition No. 3 requires demonstrations every five years that: (i) there is no other
more appropriate location for the facility, and (ii) there is no equipment that would
reduce its visibility.

“Confirmation that there are not more appropriate locations available for the facility.”(5)

“Confirmation that there is no equipment available that would enhance.. .the visibility of
the facility or reduce the size of the facility.”(6)

FOURTH MISTAKE: ATT’s after-the-fact, recent submission as to CUP Condition 3
fails to address location or concealment in a meaningful way. It is incomplete on
its face: first, it fails to address the one location that was favored by ATT’s
predecessor Edge Wireless, or the adjacent locations; and second, it fails to
address available stealth technology. But the City staff advised it was
“disinclined” to take further action in enforcing the continuing CUP conditions.

The ATT submission is troubling. As for location, it omits the old Elkhorn golf clubhouse
and the adjacent Elkhorn ski lift. The clubhouse was Edge’s favored location in 2007,
presumably providing the best wireless coverage, and has new ownership. Available
records show these properties are now owned by the Sun Valley Company and the Sun
Valley Elkhorn Association, two organizations which have historically pursued the best
interests of the Sun Valley community. These locations, and perhaps others, should be
pursued. The locations listed by Afl in its submission likely reflect no new effort to find
more appropriate alternatives, as they were rejected in 2007 as deficient in coverage or
as having obvious terrain obstacles. As for concealment, missing is any consideration
of available stealth technology, which comes in many forms. A cursory look at
approaches catalogued on stealthconcealment.com makes that clear. AU merely
mentions a combination of antennas. Much more could be done to address
concealment.

2

219



4. The problem is a continuing one, larger than even the recently expanded
tower.

The next expansion of the tower could constrain the City’s control of development
because of recent FCC rule-making that became effective in 2015. The FCC rules
provide that a municipality must approve the expansion of an existing tower or the
addition of other towers (called collocation) where there is an existing tower if the
resulting increase in physical size is not “substantial.” In a tortuous use of language, the
rules define an extension of less than 20 feet from either side of a tower as not
substantial. That amounts to nearly 40 feet of potential additional visibility. Importantly,
however, the FCC rules defer to municipal authorities as to other terms of their initial
site approvals.

“A modification substantially changes physical dimensions ... if it involves adding an
appurtenance to the body of the tower that would protrude from the edge of the tower by
more than twenty feet... [unless the modification] would defeat the concealment
elements [or would] not comply with conditions associated with the siting approval [other
than size].” (7) (Emphasis added) The FCC has said that this exception “properly
preserves municipal authority to determine which structures are appropriate for wireless
use and under what conditions...” as reflected in the initial siting approval. (8)

5. REMEDY: The way forward is simple and commonsensical.

Consistent with the FCC regulatory scheme described above, the City should use the
conditions of its initial siting approval (the CUP), specifically those in Condition 3,
require a review to (i) determine the most appropriate location for the cell tower and (ii)
wherever that location, require adequate measures for its concealment. Given the
multiple mistakes by the City, compounded over many years, the final determination
should be made after active involvement of the City in both finding an appropriate site
and the concealment of the tower. An appropriate forum for this is a public hearing to
modify the CUP.

6. Our concerns are neither isolated nor new.

Our have been repeatedly raised by others in the Sun Valley community. Attached are
letters from concerned property owners who continue to object to the cell tower and the
City’s handling of this matter. (Attachment 4)

We all depend upon our elected officials to protect our property values. Due process
requires that our public officials do their job in this matter.

3

220



Footnotes:

(1) Section 9-3K-6, Sun Valley City Code.
(2) P&Z Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision, December 13, 2007,
paragraph 4.
(3) Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision (CUP 2007-04), p. 3.
(4) Planning and Zoning Commission, Public Hearing Notice, Meeting to be held on
Thursday, January 23, 2014, paragraph 4.
(5) Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision (CUP 2007-04), p. 3.
(6) Id.
(7) FCC Regulation Section 1.4000 1, 80 Federal Register 1270 (January 8, 2015).
(8) FCC Report and Order, dated October 17, 2014 (FCC 14-153), paragraph 200.

Attachments:

Attachment 1 -- Letter, dated August 19, 2015, from Ned Williamson to Mayor and City
Council

Attachment 2 -- Picture of expanded cell tower as built, submitted byATT

Attachment 3 -- Letter, dated October 28, 2015, from Ned Williamson addressing the
legal necessity for a modification of the CUP

Attachment 4 -- Sample of letters from concerned Sun Valley property owners

4

221



ATTACHMENT No. 1

Letter dated August 19, 2015

4-

222



NED C. WILLIAMSON
ATTORNEY AT LAW

115 SECOND AVENUE SOUTH
HAlLEY, IDAHO 83333

(208) 788-6688
FAX (208) 788-7901

August 19, 2015

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe
City Council Members
City of Sun Valley
P.O. Box 416

O Sun Valley, ID 83353-0416

Q Re: Elkhorn — Sage Creek Cell Tower

Dear Mayor and City Council:

My clients, Irwin and Ann Sentilles, have been trying for nearly a year to have the City address

substantive and procedural issues that concern the AT&T cell tower at the Sage Creek water

facility. The tower is an unsightly structure directly adjacent to the Sentilles home and visible

throughout their and the surrounding neighborhoods. AT&T enlarged the cell tower in 2014. A

letter we sent to Mayor Briscoe in November 2104 (which is enclosed) outlines the pertinent

history of the cell tower and the issues it presents.

Our efforts have included meetings with the Mayor, the City Attorney and two Community

Directors. After I had several conversations with staff, the interim Community Development

Director John Gaeddert informed AT&T that it must now seek a modification of the original

conditional use permit granted in 2008 to AT&T’s predecessor, Edge Wireless (the “CUP”). It

appeared that AT&T was proceeding with an application to modify the CUP; but then in a letter

dated July 6, 2015, AT&T informed the City that a modification of the CUP was not required.

We were advised by the City Attorney on July 13, 2015, that the City will “abide by AT&T’s

position” and is “disinclined” to take any action. We object to the inaction of the City, and

given the repeated failures of AT&T and the City in this matter, I am writing to call this

“disinclination” to your attention.

contentions of AT&T can be quickly addressed. AT&T believes a new CUP is not needed. We never asked

for a new CUP. We asked for a modification of the CUP as required by Condition No. I of the CUP. AT&T argued

that staff made thorough findings under the design review criteria. A review of design review criteria is no

substitute for a review of conditional use permit standards. AT&T seems to argue that local review would be futile

under federal law. But federal law does not preclude a municipality from applying its ordinances or enforcing prior

permits. Lastly, AT&T argues my clients are time barred. AT&T fails to address the due process violations,

described in our prior correspondence, of requirements that are conditions precedent to any valid land use decision.

223



C)
Mayor Dewayne Briscoe
City Council Members
City of Sun Valley
August 19, 2015
Page 2

The AT&T cell tower has been problematic from the beginning. In 2007, after several hearings

and much review, P&Z denied the application for the original tower as “inappropriate” for the

neighborhood. That denial was overturned in 2008 by the City Council and Mayor Willich in a

single meeting. The current “disinclination” occurs after subsequent repeated failures by the

City to monitor the CUP and to enforce its cell tower ordinance. Here are some of the

highlights:

• In 2013, AT&T failed to submit information required in Condition No. 3 of the CUP, and

the City did nothing to enforce the CUP. Condition No. 3 has critical monitoring

requirements. Condition No. 3 requires evidence periodically that there are not more

appropriate locations for the facility and that there is no equipment that would reduce the

visibility of the facility.

• In 2014, the City sent out a public notice for design review for changes to the tower

which incorrectly stated that it involved no modifications to structural elements when, in

fact, the antenna array more than doubled in size. “It is a well settled principle that notice

and hearing requirements in zoning enabling acts are conditions precedent to the proper

exercise of the zoning authority.” Citizensfor a Better Government v. County of Valley,

95 Idaho 320, 322, 508 P2d 550, 552 (1973).

• Condition No. 1 of the CUP expressly requires a modification to the CUP if there is a

modification to the facility. But the City is now “disinclined” to require a modification of

the CUP.

Only after we informed the City that AT&T had failed to provide the information required in

Condition No. 3 of the CUP did the City request a response from AT&T. But AT&T has

responded in its July letter in an incomplete and conclusory fashion.

• AT&T’s response alleges it addressed alternative locations. But AT&T fails to address

the one location that had been initially favored by Edge. The record shows that the

current site was not the first choice of Edge.

• AT&T states in a conclusory fashion that there is a consolidation of two antennas. But

there is dearth of analysis as to whether there is other technology which would reduce the

visibility and size of the facility.

• AT&T states it has received no complaints other than from my clients. But AT&T fails

to mention that the dead landscaping surrounding the cell tower was the subject of

complaints at a 2014 P&Z meeting. In February 2015, the City received several letters

from Sage Creek neighbors objecting to the tower expansion. Moreover, in April 2015,

the City received a letter from the Sun Valley Elkhorn Association concerning the need

for careful review and public hearings regarding the tower.

224



Mayor Dewayne Briscoe
City Council Members
City of Sun Valley
August 19, 2015
Page 3

The bald assertions of AT&T should be analyzed, not summarily accepted. The City should take
an active role in testing whether an alternative site exists and whether less visible equipment is
available, as the CUP requires.

These are serious due process violations. But they can be easily corrected by conducting a
correctly noticed hearing of an application to modify the CUP -- provided the City actively
participates in the review process.

Even though the City’s ordinance is designed to protect residential neighborhoods from the
deleterious impacts of cell towers, even though AT&T has violated the CUP, and even though
the CUP could be revoked (see Sun Valley Municipal Code, § 9-5B-2(C)(6)), the City
administration is “disinclined” to require AT&T to comply with the CUP and the City Code. In
our view, this position does not represent responsible public service.

Despite our extraordinary efforts to correct the quagmire created by Edge, AT&T and the City,
City staff or the City administration is “disinclined” to enforce the CUP. However, it was the
City Council which approved the CUP in 2008 and required continuing conditions for the
conditional approval it provides. It is thus incumbent on the City Council, not the city
administration, to enforce the CUP conditions.

My clients have been asking the City to do its job since they and their neighbors first discovered
that the 2014 change of the AT&T facility was not what they had been told it would be. It is
long past time for the City to act. “Disinclined” is not due process. We call upon the City to
become active in this matter and to conduct a proper hearing on the merits as has been required
since 2008.

Sincerely,

Ned C. Williamson

NCW/jrs
End.

cc: Adam King (w/ end.)
Jae Hill (w! end.)
Irwin and Anne Sentilles (w/o end.)

225



NED C. WILLIAMSON
ATTORNEY AT LAW

115 SECOND AVENUE SOUTH
HAlLEY, IDAHO 83333

(208) 788-6688
FAX (208) 788-7901

November 4, 2014

Mayor DeWayne Briscoe

0
City of Sun Valley
P.O. Box 416

C)
SunValley,ID 83353-0416

Re: Elkhorn — Sage Creek Cell Tower

Dear Mayor Briscoe:

I represent Irwin and Ann Sentilles who have had a house at 212 Lupine Street in Elkhom

since 2003. The Sentilles’ house is directly below the Sage Creek water tank property, owned by

the Sun Valley Water and Sewer District, on which a cell tower was located in 2007. Based on

the troubling history of the location of cell tower and the possibility of collocation of other

towers at this site, my clients are gravely concerned about the impact of the cell tower on their

property. In this letter, I will outline the pertinent history and the series of mistakes which,

unless remedied by the City, will continue to adversely affect the Sage Creek residential area, the

natural beauty of Elkhorn and Sun Valley as well.

I. PERTINENT HISTORY

1. The 2007 Application.

In 2007, Edge Wireless submitted conditional use permit (CUP) and design review

applications to locate a new cell tower on the Sage Creek water tank. The facility consisted of a

20 foot mounting pole with two antenna panels on that pole. The staff report for 2007

application states that there was no evidence the applicant submitted any analysis whether there

was a feasible alternative as required by §9-3K-6 of the Sun Valley Municipal Code. The staff

report further questioned whether the applicant employed all practical means to reduce the visual

impact of the cell tower. The staff report also expressed a significant concern that the site could

be used for collocation of future antennas. When discussing prior efforts to conceal the Sage

Creek water tank, the staff report correctly noted “{i]t would be a mistake to undo those effective

efforts of the past by now allowing a large collocation facility for wireless antennas and

equipment to sit on the hilltop location above existing residential areas in an important natural

view area.”

226



Mayor DeWayne Briscoe
City of Sun Valley
November 4, 2014
Page 2

On the same date as the staff report, the applicant submitted what it purported was an
alternative site analysis which simply showed the area of poor or non-existent cell coverage in
Elkhom and listed only four alternatives. Later, the applicant submitted yet another purported
site analysis. That subsequent submission merely stated that the applicant approached two
landowners, but the landowners declined to place the cell tower on their properties. The
applicant asserted, following these cursory submissions, that the Sun Valley Water and Sewer
District had one feasible site — the Sage Creek water tank.

2. The 2007 Application — P&Z.

The Sun Valley Planning and Zoning Commission subsequently conducted two public
hearings and eventually denied the CUP and design review applications. Notably, the
Commission found “[t]he cell tower is inappropriate to the location, the lot and the
neighborhood, and is not compatible with the uses permitted in the applicable zoning district
because of a skylining effect on adjacent land uses and visual impact upon the open quality and
character of the natural hillside and viewshed.”

3. The 2007 Application — City Council.

The Commission’s decision was appealed to the Sun Valley City Council. Even though
the application was on appeal, the Council conducted a de novo proceeding. According to the
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the City Council conducted one hearing, took
comments and conducted a site visit. The Council then approved the CUP and design review
applications without explaining how the Commission erred.

4. The 2014 Application.

In 2013, AT&T as successor of Edge Wireless submitted a design review application to
“retrofit” the cell tower by replacing the two antenna panels. Originally, the panels were 4’4” in
length and 14” wide. The application sought to replace the panels with two new panels 8’ long
and approximately 12” wide. In addition, the existing 4” pole was proposed to be replaced with
a new 6” pole. The notice for the P&Z Commission’s hearing merely states than the application
is for “equipment and antenna upgrades to an existing wireless communication facility. No

jnodifications to the pump house structure or structural elements of the facility eproposed.”

The facility was constructed this summer. Contrary to the notice about the “retrofit,” the
new facility nearly doubled in size. Two additional poles were attached to the enlarged pole, the
antennas were placed on these additional poles and numerous external cables were connected to
the expanded array. The profile was materially changed and the facility was materially modified.

227



Mayor DeWayne Briscoe
City of Sun Valley
November 4, 2014
Page 3

II. PROBLEMS

1. The 2007 Council Decision Is Erroneous.

Even though Edge Wireless belatedly submitted a purported analysis of alternative sites,

its submission did not comply with the strict standard set forth in §9-3K-6 of the Sun Valley

Municipal Code which requires the applicant to demonstrate “no other feasible alternative to the

proposed location.” It is not enough to simply state that a couple of private landowners declined

to allow a cell tower on their properties. §9-3K-6 justifiably establishes a difficult standard.

There are numerous sites on the neighboring hills which could serve Elkhorn and be less

intrusive to its residential community. Therefore, the applicant failed to establish no feasible

alternative.

It was also erroneous for the Sun Valley City Council to conduct a de novo review during

the appeal. The City conducted a de rzovo hearing when it was legally limited to conducting an

appeal. In doing so, it failed to give the Commission’s findings the required deference. The

standard of review for an appeal is different than the standard of review for a public hearing. In

an appeal, a final decision by a Planning and Zoning Commission should be afforded great

weight and in this case, the appeal should only be reversed if the Commission’s findings of fact

were not supported by substantial evidence or were arbitrary, capricious or an abuse of
discretion. See e.g., Idaho Code § 67-52 79.

2. The 2014 Notice is Not Proper.

As noted earlier, the notice for the 2014 design review states the application was for

upgrades and there were no modifications. A reasonable person reading the notice would not

have been notified that there would be any additions to the cell tower. As it turns out, the

expanded array is approximately two times larger and involves more poles and external cables

that change the visual profile materially. Sun Valley’s zoning ordinance requires a description of

the application in all notices to property owners. Sun Valley A’Iunicipal Code, §9-5A-7(B)(1)(b).

The notice for the 2014 application utterly fails to describe that the application would expand the
array so materially. Stated differently, the notice violates procedural due process. “It is a well

settled principle that notice and hearing requirements in zoning enabling acts are conditions

precedent to the proper exercise of the zoning authority.” Citizens for a Better Government v.

County of Valley, 95 Idaho 320, 322, 508 P2d 550, 552 (1973).

3. The 2014 Approval Violates the 2007 Council Decision.

In 2007, the Sun Valley City Council held “[a]ny future modifications to the facility or its
structural elements shall require City approval of a modification to this Conditional Use Permit.”
See Condition No. 1, Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision (CUP 2007-04), p. 3.
The 2014 Planning and Zoning Commission failed to require the applicant to obtain a

228



Mayor DeWayne Briscoe
City of Sun Valley
November 4, 2014
Page 4

modification to the 2007 CUP. Absent a properly noticed hearing on a request for modification

to the conditional use permit and an actual modification to the conditional use permit, the

Planning and Zoning Commission did not have jurisdiction to consider the 2014 application. In

short, there was no authority to approve the 2014 design review application without a

modification to the 2007 conditional use pemlit.

4. Future Location of Other Antermas is Encouraged.

§9-3K-4 of the Sun Valley Municipal Code provides that collocation of other antennas is

encouraged. In 2007, the Community Development Director correctly noted that approval of the

Sage Creek water tank as a cell tower site would encourage collocation. Collocation may be

theoretically desirable because the impact of cell towers would be consolidated. But collocation

is not appropriate when the original site is not appropriate and was chosen erroneously.

III. SOLUTIONS

Based on this history, it is clear that the original 2007 decision is erroneous and that the

2014 decision was made without proper notice or authority. Stated differently, the current

facility should not have been permitted and the wrong result should not be compounded now or

in the future. As a result, we respectfully request that the City remedy the problem as follows:

First, the City should adopt a new ordinance prohibiting wireless communication

facilities within 500 feet of residential properties and develop a strategy to eliminate existing

noncon Corming uses. Pending such adoption and elimination, the existing zoning code should be

amended to prohibit the enlargement of a wireless communication facility within 500 feet of
residential properties and eliminating collocation as a factor to be considered in locating a
wireless communication facility within 500 feet of residential properties.

Second, as required by the 2007 Council decision, the City should conduct a hearing to
consider a modification of the 2007 CUP to address the deficiencies in the prior proceedings.

Considering the City Council conducted a de novo hearing in 2007 and required the
modification, we believe the Council should also conduct the modification hearing.

Third, if the Council approves the modification, then it should require that a design
review hearing be again conducted, after proper notice, for the 2014 application in accordance
with the modification.

Simply put, we believe the record clearly demonstrates that the present facility is wrong.
It is wrong based on legal principles and as a matter of sound public policy. It is wrong to leave

unremedied a mistake caused by a prior administration. And it is wrong to allow a mistake to be
compounded now or in the future. Sun Valley can certainly do better than the record shows in
this matter. Sun Valley and its residents deserve better.

229



Mayor DeWayne Briscoe
City of Sun Valley
November 4, 2014
Page 5

I would encourage the City to discuss this matter with us. Thank you for your
consideration.

Sincerely,
A

Ned C. Williamson

NCW/jrs

cc: Sun Valley City Council
Adam King, Esq.
Mark Hoffman
Sun Valley Elkhom Association
Clients

230



ATTACHMENT No. 2

Photo of Existing
Enlarged Cell Tower

231



Site Name: Elkhorn
Site FA: 10130455

T Mobility Alpha and Beta Sector Antennas #1 through #2

232



ATTACHMENT No. 3

Letter dated October28, 2015

233



NED C. WILLIAMSON
ATTORNEY AT LAW

115 SECOND AVENUE SOUTH
HAlLEY, IDAHO 83333

(208) 788-6688
FAX (208) 788-7901

October 28, 2015

Mayor Dewayne Briscoe
City Council Members
City of Sun Valley
P.O. Box 416
Sun Valley, ID 83353-04 16

Re: Elkhorn — Sage Creek Cell Tower

Dear Mayor and City Council:

My clients are grateful for your decision to discuss the issues involving the Sage Creek cell
tower. It has been an arduous task just to get before the Council and have the opportunity to
address the problems with the cell tower. In several letters, we have outlined the legal, factual
and procedural problems. See letters dated November 4, 2014 and August 19, 2015. In this
letter, I will focus on some basic legal principles.

First, the Sage Creek conditional use permit issued in 2008 (“CUP”) creates a mandatory
procedure. Condition No. 1 of the (“CUP “) expressly requires a modification to the CUP if
there is a modification to the facility. The 2014 modification to the cell tower clearly increased
the scope and size of the cell tower but there was no modification to the CUP. It is important to
recognize that a conditional use permit allows a use provided that any conditions are satisfied.
Idaho Code § 67-6512. The applicant’s predecessor sought a conditional use permit. The
applicant’s predecessor did not appeal any of the conditions and therefore accepted the
conditions set forth in the CUP. In several contexts, the courts require compliance when
language is mandatory. See e.g., Fischer v. City ofKetchurn, 141 Idaho 349, 109 P.3d 1091
(2005)[a requirement that an engineer certify a conditional use application could not be waived];
Engle v. Blame County, Blame County Case No. CV-2014-392, -429, -494 and -515 [mandatory
subdivision standards cannot be waived]. In other words, Condition No. 1 is mandatory and
cannot be ignored or waived.

Second, once an application for a modification to the CUP is considered, the mandatory
standards in the Article K, Wireless Communication Facilities, must be considered. Like
Condition No. 1, Section 9-3K-7(B) provides “[a]l1 project applications shall adhere to the
following criteria:” This section establishes mandatory criteria involving height and visual

234



Mayor Dewayne Briscoe
City Council Members
City of Sun Valley
October 28, 2015
Page 2

impact. In pertinent part, the criteria states that “applicants shall employ all practical means to.
reduce their visual impact, including: {u]se of the smallest components necessary to provide

service that are in use or proposed for use within Blame County” and “shall be designed to
visually and operationally blend into the surrounding area.” §9-3K-7(B)(3)(a) and (c).

Third, we anticipate AT&T will again argue that our efforts to require a modification to the CUP
may time barred. In a letter dated July 6, 2015, AT&T made such an argument. There are
several legal problems with this argument. “It is a well settled principle that notice and hearing
requirements in zoning enabling acts are conditions precedent to the proper exercise of the
zoning authority.” Jerome County v. Holloway, 118 Idaho 681, 684, 799 P.2d 969, 972 (1990);
accord Citizens for Better Government v. County of Valley, 95 Idaho 320, 322, 508 P.2d 550,
552 (1973). As we have established before, the notice of the design review hearing conducted in
2014 incorrectly stated that it involved no modifications to structural elements when, in fact, the
antenna array nearly doubled in size. Moreover, since there was no hearing on the modification
of the CUP, there of course was no notice for such a modification to the CUP. Stated differently,
there has not been a proper exercise of the zoning authority required for either or both the design
review and conditional use permit modification. Therefore, my clients are not precluded from
challenging the failure to notice the design review or the failure to conduct a hearing on a
modification to the CUP.

Again, we want to thank the council for discussing this matter. Assuming I can overcome my
technological deficiencies, I hope to have a PowerPoint presentation for the November 5, 2015
meeting at which time Irwin and I hope to highlight our position. Thank you.

Sincerely,

Ned C. Williamson

NCW/jrs
End.

cc: Adam King (w/ end.)
Jae I-Jill (w/ end.)
Irwin and Arm Sentilles (w/o end.)

235



“1 - — -

ATTACHMENT No. 4

Sample Letters from
Sun Valley Citizens

236



7
,

—

L

a

S

1

f
l

-i

- z

k C
t 4 a •8 4

—
—

.
-
.
,

7
_

C
-
-

4

t
—

S

—

:
-

—
—
r
-

a
—

?
:

:
c

-
c
-

I
-

_
,

-

—

•

-
-

-
—

.•

-
:

-
f
l
;
_

-

-

•-

—

7
,

—
•

—
>

—
.
-

Z
2

‘

- -

•

.‘

4
•
4

t
•

C
.
•

a
-
—

-

.

—
•
,

—

.
•

—

i
—

‘
—

u
-

-

—
-
•

-—
.

‘

-
.

•
“

-
-

—
.

•
a

-

1’

t
:
_

•
_

.
•

—
.
s

—
:

•

—

-
-

-
-

-
•
-

,
,

-

•
-

-

s
—

-

—
-

.
t

•
S

.
.
•

—

-

S
‘

-

—
-1

-
—

,
r

-
S

-
-
•
.

—
-

t
-
•

f—
•

-
-
.

—
-;

-

-
.

•
,

.
—

-
-.

—
,

-
s

—
-

-
—

—

-
d

•
—

C

•
—

•
‘
.

‘
7

—
•

V
—

1
—

e
-

—
•J

S

-
4

j
—

J
--

7
0

2
s

•-
—

-
-

-
—

—
>

4
,

2
—

—
-

•

•
I

7
,
_
_
-

-
•

t

-,
=

;
-
:

:
-
4

.
,

•
e
•

-
‘

*
:1

f
—

1
-%

s

-
•
.

.

—
—

i
•

-
,
,

—
-
:

,
-

—

-

.-
y

C
‘

‘
-

2

4
1

j
S

—
C

—

2
”

—
*
*

I
•

-
:
f
y
,

—

—
-

-
•

,
C

*
_
7

2

•
-

2
-
-
—

‘
-
-

—
.

-
t

‘
C

-s
d

1
—

•
?

-

-
•

-
•

-

-
.

—
—

-
‘

-2
-

•
‘

-—
—

-—
—

—
2

—
,

1
2

—
r

—
f
l

Z’
2

-

-
-
,

•
:
.

f
l
*
,

•
_

r
;
c
r
_

r
—

I
.•

-
-

-
I

73
—

-
•

I
A

I
C

I
—

I
•
z

“

2

—

I
n

,
,

‘4
I
-

-
j
.

j
1

‘
:

‘
-

I
n

—

t
_
*
—

=
—

—
*

-7

*

—
,

•
j
*
j

*
—

4

-
-

-
I

-
—

:
‘
f
l
-
_
_

:
—

,
-
•

—

-
‘
•
—

,
I

I-
—

I

.

t
—

.
•

-

:
-
-

-

a
—

,
;

w
’

•

‘

—
•
‘

1
‘

-
I

-d

—
‘
-
‘

‘
—

I
2

-

I
4
.
’

I
•

4
’
.

-
‘
*

4
:
*

-
•

t
—

—
-

.
‘

—
j

-
-

I
4

1
5

•
0

•

-
t

-
:

:

—
—

‘
r
t-

2
—

—
•

2

L
—

:1
‘
T

*

•
1

I
7
f
l

--
a
*
j

-
—

-

I

•

-

—
a

•
V

—
—

-
-

—

I

-

I

-
.

-

I
-

-.
V

n

—
.

r

237



TO: Mayor Dewayne Briscoe
City of Sun Valley

Date: January 2015

Re: Elkhorn -- Sage Creek Cell Tower

Dear Mr. Mayor:

We join our neighbors Irwin and Ann Sentilles in protesting the Sage Creek cell tower
adversely impacting our neighborhood.

P&Z got it right in ?007 when it concluded “[tJhe cell tower is inappropriate to the
location, the lot and the neighborhood, and is not compatible with the uses permitted in
the appHcable zoning district” Unfortunately, the P&Z conclusion was confirmed last
summer with the surprising expansion of the cell tower. The summer modifications
substantially changed the physical dimensions of the tower, enlarging its profile to a
substantial extent. And we are deeply concerned that the impact of the tower will be
compounded in future years by collocation of other towers at the site. All of this
adversely affects our property values and the enjoyment of our property and detracts
from the beauty and sight lines of our Elkhorn hills.

We call upon you to remedy the situation with all deliberate speed. Thank you for your
attention.

Very truly yours,

t.

Name: i /vedad /rf,1’ /4?

Address: 1-piie O

ft,1 J/2&&/

____

Sample238



OCTOBER 27, 2015
MANA LUPINE, LLC
210 LUP[NE RD
SUN VALLEç ID 83353
EMAiL:cmbarker@cox.net
PH: (208) 720-3690

MAYOR DEWAYNE BRISCOE
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS
CITY OF SUN VALLEY
P0 BOX 416
SUN VALLEY, ID 83353

RE: ELKHORN- SAGE CREEK CELL TOWER

DEAR MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL:

WE FEEL THAT NED WILLIAMSON’ S LETTER OF AUGUST 19,2015 MORE THAN ADEQUATELY
OUTLINES OUR SHARED CONCERNS REGARDING THE SAGE CREEK CELL TOWER.

AS OUR PROPERTY IS DIRECTLY ADJACENT & VISUALLY IMPACTED BY THE TOWER
LOCATION, WE WOULD LOUDLY ADD OUR VOICES TO THAT OF OUR NEIGHBORS TO CALL
ON THE CITY COUNCIL TO ENFORCE THE CODES AND CUP CONDITIONS.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,
ED McCall

letter to SUN VALLEY 10-27-20 15

239



Resolution 2015-30 
Contract for Services, Mountain Rides 

Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF SUN VALLEY  
RESOLUTION 2015-30 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SUN VALLEY AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO  
EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR SERVICES WITH MOUNTAIN RIDES 

WHEREAS, The City of Sun Valley (“the City”) is a municipal corporation duly organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Idaho Code §50-101 et seq.; and  

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Idaho Code § 50-301 and § 50-302, the City is empowered to enter into 

contracts and take such steps as are reasonably necessary to maintain the peace, good government 
and welfare of the City and its trade, commerce and industry; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mountain Rides Transportation Authority is an Idaho Transportation Authority, 

formed and existing pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement duly executed, extended, and recorded as 
Instrument #629888 in Blaine County, Idaho (recorded 9/29/15);  

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into an agreement with Mountain Rides to provide 

transportation services for the City and to residents and visitors of Sun Valley, including operating, 
managing, and running a transportation system which meets the needs and demands of both the 
residents and tourists of Sun Valley; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Sun Valley and Mountain Rides have agreed to the terms and 
conditions of the Contract for Services, a copy of which is attached hereto as “Exhibit 1”; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED TY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUN VALLEY, IDAHO,  
 
SECTION 1:  That the City of Sun Valley has approved funding for services with Mountain Rides in the 
amount of two hundred sixty-five thousand dollars ($265,000.00). 
 
SECTION 2:  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an FY 16 Contract with Mountain Rides. 
 
SECTION 3:  That this Resolution shall be known as Resolution No. 2015-30 of the City of Sun Valley, 
Idaho and shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 
 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS _____ DAY OF 
NOVEMBER 2015. 

 
 

     ____________________________________ 

      Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Alissa Weber, City Clerk 

240



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

241



 

 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 
MOUNTAIN RIDES TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
THIS CONTRACT FOR SERVICES (hereinafter the “Contract”) is made and entered this 

6
th 

_____
 
day of November, 20145, by and between the CITY OF SUN VALLEY, IDAHO, a municipal 

corporation (hereinafter referred to as “the City”) and the MOUNTAIN RIDES TRANSPORTATION 

AUTHORITY (hereinafter referred to as “Mountain Rides”), an Idaho Transportation Authority, formed 
and existing pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement duly executed, extended, and recorded as Instrument 

# 590904 629888 in Blaine County, Idaho (recorded  

9/28/119/29/15).  This Contract is hereby entered into in contemplation of the following findings: 

 
FINDINGS 

 
1. Sun Valley is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the law of the 
State of Idaho §50-101 et seq. 

 
2. Mountain Rides is an Idaho Transportation Authority formed and existing pursuant to a Joint 
Powers Agreement duly executed and recorded as Instrument #552903 629888 in Blaine County, Idaho. 

 
3. The City is a destination resort city as defined by Idaho Code § 50-1044, as it derives a major 
portion of its economic well-being from businesses catering to the recreational needs of people traveling 
to the City for an extended period of time.  The City, as a resort city, is eligible to collect a local option 
non-property tax. 

 
4. Pursuant to Idaho Code §50-301 and §50-302, the City is empowered to enter into contracts and 
take such steps as are reasonably necessary to maintain the peace, good government and welfare of the 
City and its trade, commerce and industry.  Accordingly, the City has the power as conferred by the State of 
Idaho to provide directly for certain promotional activities to enhance the trade, commerce, industry, and 
economic wellbeing of the City. 

 
5. City Ordinances Nos. 389 and 456 provide for the imposition of a non-property tax on the sales 
price of certain property sold or otherwise transferred in the City. Pursuant to the language of the 
Ordinances, which were approved by the voters of the City, the municipal sales tax revenue derived shall 
be used for, among other things, public transportation, information, education and economic 
development activity. 

 
6. Mountain Rides provides an efficient and responsive public transportation system which is 
easily identifiable, is coordinated in a manner to encourage the ease of ridership, is charged with 
planning and implementation of multi-modal transportation technologies, when feasible, and will seek 
to reduce the congestion and pollution of individual vehicular trips within Blaine County. 

 
7. Mountain Rides’ mission is to establish, implement, maintain, fund and operate a comprehensive 
public transportation system by motor buses, vans or other appropriate means, including but not limited 
to multi-modal transportation systems, on a scheduled or unscheduled and charter basis throughout 
Blaine County for the benefit of the inhabitants and visitors in Blaine County. 

Formatted: Right:  0.12", Space Before:  0.55
pt, Line spacing:  Exactly 13.8 pt

Formatted: Pattern: Clear (Background 1)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11
pt, Pattern: Clear (Background 1)

Formatted: Pattern: Clear (Background 1), Not
Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11
pt, Pattern: Clear (Background 1)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11
pt, Pattern: Clear (Background 1)

242



 

 

8. The organizational goals of Mountain Rides are consistent with the purposes and findings 
included in Ordinance Nos. 389 and 456. 

 
9. Mountain Rides has faithfully and diligently carried out its mission to provide services that 
promote and enhance the trade, commerce and industry of the City.  It is in the best interests of the 
public health, welfare and prosperity of the City to provide regional transportation services. 

 
10. It is the intention of the City to contract with Mountain Rides to provide such services for 
consideration as hereinafter provided. 

 
11. Mountain Rides desires to enter into a contract with the City to provide transportation services all 
as hereinafter provided. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, on the basis of the foregoing findings the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Services to be Provided by Mountain Rides.  Mountain Rides hereby agrees to provide 

transportation services for the City and to provide public transportation services to residents and visitors 
to the City and the MOUNTAIN RIDES service area, within the confines of the Mountain Rides budget. 
Services provided are set forth in the attached Exhibit A - FY2015 FY2016 Service Plan. Mountain RIdes 
agrees that it shall provide, at its sole expense, all costs of labor, materials, supplies, business overhead 
and financial expenses, insurance, fidelity bonds, and all necessary equipment and facilities required to 
provide the transportation services as set forth in this Contract. 

 
2. Term.  The term of this Contract shall commence on the 1st day of October, 20142015, and shall 

terminate on the 30th
 
day of September, 20152016. 

 

3. Consideration. 
 

(a) In consideration for providing the services herein described, the City agrees to pay to 
Mountain Rides the total sum of TWO HUNDRED FIFTY SIXTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($250265,000), payable in four equal quarterly installments on December November 15, 
20145; February 15, 20165; May 15, 20165; and August 15, 20165.  Mountain Rides will 
provide the City with an invoice 30 days in advance of the due dates setting forth the amount 
of the installment due.  The City shall pay Mountain Rides the amount set forth in such invoice 
no later than thirty (30) days after the date of such invoice. 

 
(b) The City’s contribution to the Mountain Rides FY 20156 Budget is part of a budget adopted by 

the Mountain Rides Board at its regular board meeting on September 1716, 20142015.  An 
attachment of the adopted budget along with a revenue break out of each partner is included 
as Exhibit B. 

 
(c) In consideration and as part of this Contract, Mountain Rides agrees to provide a mid-year 

report to the Sun Valley City Council including activities, ridership, financial conditions and 
other pertinent information helpful to assessing the current condition of the transportation 
system.  This report will be delivered before April 1, 20156 for presentation at the April 20156 
City Council meeting.  In addition, Mountain Rides will provide a report and budget request to 
coincide with the City’s budget deliberations for the next budget year. 

Formatted: Not Highlight

243



 

 

 
(d) Notwithstanding the requirements to subparagraph 3(a) above, the parties recognize and agree 

that payment source for the services called for herein is local option sales tax revenue.  The 
City, as part of its budgeting process, has projected historical sales tax revenue data to 
determine it can retain Mountain Rides for the consideration called for herein.  In the event 
the City fails to collect such local option tax revenue during the term of this Contract for any 
reason, the City may, at its sole option, terminate, or adjust the payments to Mountain Rides 
by reducing its contribution by the same ratio that the LOT revenues are below the projections, 
this Contract upon thirty (30) day written notice to Mountain Rides.  In the event of such 
termination, Sun Valley shall have no further responsibility to make payment to Mountain 
Rides under this Contract beyond the thirty (30) day notice period.  In the event that budgeted 
revenue from any of Mountain Rides’ funding partners (local government, federal government, 
fares, or private business funding) identified in the Mountain Rides’ FY2015 FY2016 adopted 
budget is not collected as expected, Mountain Rides may need to make adjustments to its 
adopted FY2015 FY2016 Service Plan in order to balance revenue with expenses.  In this event, 
Mountain Rides will give notice to the City as to the adjustments that impact transit service 
within the City.  Mountain Rides and the City will work to come to a mutually- acceptable 
adjusted service plan.  If a mutually-acceptable adjusted service plan cannot be reached, the 
City can terminate this Contract upon thirty (30) day written notice to Mountain Rides. 

 
4. Termination.  The City may, at its sole discretion, terminate this Contract immediately upon 120 
days written notice to Mountain Rides with or without cause.  In the event of such termination, the City 
shall have no further responsibility to make any payment to Mountain Rides under this Contract.  The City 
reserves the right to request an independent audit under the provisions herein upon termination, and 
such audit obligation and cost on the part of Mountain Rides shall survive any termination of the contract. 

 
5. Equal Employment Opportunity.  Mountain Rides covenants that it shall not discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, or national 
origin. 

 
6. Default.  In the event either party fails to perform its responsibilities, as set forth in this Contract 
during the contract term, this Contract may, at the option of the non-defaulting party, be terminated.  
Upon termination under this paragraph, Mountain Rides, in the event it intentionally breaches its 
responsibilities, shall not be entitled to receive any unpaid installments of the consideration called for in 
paragraph 3 of the Contract. 

 
7. Independent Contractor Status.  The parties acknowledge and agree that Mountain Rides shall 
provide its services for the fee specified herein in the status of independent contractor, and not as an 
employee of the City.  Mountain Rides and its agents, employees, and volunteers, shall not accrue leave, 
retirement, insurance, bonding, or any other benefit afforded to employees of the City.  The sole 
interest and responsibility of the City under this Contract is to assure itself that the services covered by 
this Contract shall be performed and rendered by Mountain Rides in a competent, efficient and 
satisfactory manner. 

 
8 Hold Harmless.  Any contractual obligation entered into or assumed by Mountain Rides, or 
any liability incurred by reason of personal injury and/or property damage in connection with or 
arising out of Mountain Rides’ obligations pursuant to this Contract shall be the sole responsibility of 
Mountain Rides, and Mountain Rides covenants and agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless 
from any and all claims or causes of action arising out of Mountain Rides’ activities and obligations 
as set forth hereinabove, including, but not 

limited to, personal injury, property damage, and employee complaints. 

 
9. Non-Assignment.  This Contract may not be assigned by or transferred by Mountain Rides, in 

244



 

 

whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the City. 

 
10. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

(a) Paragraph Headings.  The headings in this Contract are inserted for convenience and 
identification only and are in no way intended to describe, interpret, define or limit the 
scope, extent or intent of this Contract or any of the provisions of the Contract. 

(b) Provision Severable.  Every provision of this Contract is intended to be severable.  If any 
term or provision hereof is illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or 
invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Contract. 

(c) Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.  The rights and remedies provided by this Contract are 
cumulative and the use of any one right or remedy by any party shall not preclude nor waive 
its rights to use any or all other remedies.  Any rights provided to the parties under this 
Contract are given in addition to any other rights the parties may have by law, statute, 
ordinance or otherwise. 

(d) Successor and Assigns.  This Contract and the terms and provision hereof shall inure to the 
benefit of and be binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of 
the parties hereto. 

(e) Entire Contract.  This Contract contains the entire agreement between the parties respecting 
the matters herein set forth and supersedes all prior agreements between the parties hereto 
respecting such matters. 

(f)  Governing Law.  This Contract shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Idaho. 

(g) Preparation of Contract.  No presumption shall exist in favor of or against any party to this 
Contract as a result of the drafting and preparation of the document. 

(h) No Waiver.  No waiver of any breach by either party of the terms of this Contract shall be 
deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach of the Contract. 

(i)  Amendment.  No amendment of this Contract shall be effective unless the amendment is in 
writing, signed by each of the parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Contract the day and year first 

above written. 

 
MOUNTAIN RIDES CITY OF SUN VALLEY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 

 
By 
Jason Miller, Executive Director 

 
 ATTEST:  
 

 

 

 

Alissa Weber, City Clerk

245



 

 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 
MOUNTAIN RIDES TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
THIS CONTRACT FOR SERVICES (hereinafter the “Contract”) is made and entered this 

_____
 
day of November, 2015, by and between the CITY OF SUN VALLEY, IDAHO, a municipal 

corporation (hereinafter referred to as “the City”) and the MOUNTAIN RIDES TRANSPORTATION 

AUTHORITY (hereinafter referred to as “Mountain Rides”), an Idaho Transportation Authority, formed 
and existing pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement duly executed, extended, and recorded as Instrument 

#629888 in Blaine County, Idaho (recorded 9/29/15).  This Contract is hereby entered into in 
contemplation of the following findings: 

 
FINDINGS 

 
1. Sun Valley is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the law of the 
State of Idaho §50-101 et seq. 

 
2. Mountain Rides is an Idaho Transportation Authority formed and existing pursuant to a Joint 
Powers Agreement duly executed and recorded as Instrument #629888 in Blaine County, Idaho. 

 
3. The City is a destination resort city as defined by Idaho Code § 50-1044, as it derives a major 
portion of its economic well-being from businesses catering to the recreational needs of people traveling 
to the City for an extended period of time.  The City, as a resort city, is eligible to collect a local option 
non-property tax. 

 
4. Pursuant to Idaho Code §50-301 and §50-302, the City is empowered to enter into contracts and 
take such steps as are reasonably necessary to maintain the peace, good government and welfare of the 
City and its trade, commerce and industry.  Accordingly, the City has the power as conferred by the State of 
Idaho to provide directly for certain promotional activities to enhance the trade, commerce, industry, and 
economic wellbeing of the City. 

 
5. City Ordinances Nos. 389 and 456 provide for the imposition of a non-property tax on the sales 
price of certain property sold or otherwise transferred in the City. Pursuant to the language of the 
Ordinances, which were approved by the voters of the City, the municipal sales tax revenue derived shall 
be used for, among other things, public transportation, information, education and economic 
development activity. 

 
6. Mountain Rides provides an efficient and responsive public transportation system which is 
easily identifiable, is coordinated in a manner to encourage the ease of ridership, is charged with 
planning and implementation of multi-modal transportation technologies, when feasible, and will seek 
to reduce the congestion and pollution of individual vehicular trips within Blaine County. 

 
7. Mountain Rides’ mission is to establish, implement, maintain, fund and operate a comprehensive 
public transportation system by motor buses, vans or other appropriate means, including but not limited 
to multi-modal transportation systems, on a scheduled or unscheduled and charter basis throughout 
Blaine County for the benefit of the inhabitants and visitors in Blaine County. 

246



 

 

8. The organizational goals of Mountain Rides are consistent with the purposes and findings 
included in Ordinance Nos. 389 and 456. 

 
9. Mountain Rides has faithfully and diligently carried out its mission to provide services that 
promote and enhance the trade, commerce and industry of the City.  It is in the best interests of the 
public health, welfare and prosperity of the City to provide regional transportation services. 

 
10. It is the intention of the City to contract with Mountain Rides to provide such services for 
consideration as hereinafter provided. 

 
11. Mountain Rides desires to enter into a contract with the City to provide transportation services all 
as hereinafter provided. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, on the basis of the foregoing findings the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Services to be Provided by Mountain Rides.  Mountain Rides hereby agrees to provide 

transportation services for the City and to provide public transportation services to residents and visitors 
to the City and the MOUNTAIN RIDES service area, within the confines of the Mountain Rides budget. 
Services provided are set forth in the attached Exhibit A - FY2016 Service Plan. Mountain RIdes agrees 
that it shall provide, at its sole expense, all costs of labor, materials, supplies, business overhead and 
financial expenses, insurance, fidelity bonds, and all necessary equipment and facilities required to 
provide the transportation services as set forth in this Contract. 

 
2. Term.  The term of this Contract shall commence on the 1st day of October, 2015, and shall 

terminate on the 30th day of September, 2016. 
 

3. Consideration. 
 

(a) In consideration for providing the services herein described, the City agrees to pay to 
Mountain Rides the total sum of TWO HUNDRED SIXTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($265,000), 
payable in four equal quarterly installments on November 15, 2015; February 15, 2016; May 
15, 2016; and August 15, 2016.  Mountain Rides will provide the City with an invoice 30 days 
in advance of the due dates setting forth the amount of the installment due.  The City shall 
pay Mountain Rides the amount set forth in such invoice no later than thirty (30) days after 
the date of such invoice. 

 
(b) The City’s contribution to the Mountain Rides FY 2016 Budget is part of a budget adopted by 

the Mountain Rides Board at its regular board meeting on September 16, 2015.  An 
attachment of the adopted budget along with a revenue break out of each partner is included 
as Exhibit B. 

 
(c) In consideration and as part of this Contract, Mountain Rides agrees to provide a mid-year 

report to the Sun Valley City Council including activities, ridership, financial conditions and 
other pertinent information helpful to assessing the current condition of the transportation 
system.  This report will be delivered before April 1, 2016 for presentation at the April 2016 
City Council meeting.  In addition, Mountain Rides will provide a report and budget request to 
coincide with the City’s budget deliberations for the next budget year. 

247



 

 

 
(d) Notwithstanding the requirements to subparagraph 3(a) above, the parties recognize and agree 

that payment source for the services called for herein is local option sales tax revenue.  The 
City, as part of its budgeting process, has projected historical sales tax revenue data to 
determine it can retain Mountain Rides for the consideration called for herein.  In the event 
the City fails to collect such local option tax revenue during the term of this Contract for any 
reason, the City may, at its sole option, terminate, or adjust the payments to Mountain Rides 
by reducing its contribution by the same ratio that the LOT revenues are below the projections, 
this Contract upon thirty (30) day written notice to Mountain Rides.  In the event of such 
termination, Sun Valley shall have no further responsibility to make payment to Mountain 
Rides under this Contract beyond the thirty (30) day notice period.  In the event that budgeted 
revenue from any of Mountain Rides’ funding partners (local government, federal government, 
fares, or private business funding) identified in the Mountain Rides’ FY2016 adopted budget is 
not collected as expected, Mountain Rides may need to make adjustments to its adopted 
FY2016 Service Plan in order to balance revenue with expenses.  In this event, Mountain Rides 
will give notice to the City as to the adjustments that impact transit service within the City.  
Mountain Rides and the City will work to come to a mutually- acceptable adjusted service plan.  
If a mutually-acceptable adjusted service plan cannot be reached, the City can terminate this 
Contract upon thirty (30) day written notice to Mountain Rides. 

 
4. Termination.  The City may, at its sole discretion, terminate this Contract immediately upon 120 
days written notice to Mountain Rides with or without cause.  In the event of such termination, the City 
shall have no further responsibility to make any payment to Mountain Rides under this Contract.  The City 
reserves the right to request an independent audit under the provisions herein upon termination, and 
such audit obligation and cost on the part of Mountain Rides shall survive any termination of the contract. 

 
5. Equal Employment Opportunity.  Mountain Rides covenants that it shall not discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, or national 
origin. 

 
6. Default.  In the event either party fails to perform its responsibilities, as set forth in this Contract 
during the contract term, this Contract may, at the option of the non-defaulting party, be terminated.  
Upon termination under this paragraph, Mountain Rides, in the event it intentionally breaches its 
responsibilities, shall not be entitled to receive any unpaid installments of the consideration called for in 
paragraph 3 of the Contract. 

 
7. Independent Contractor Status.  The parties acknowledge and agree that Mountain Rides shall 
provide its services for the fee specified herein in the status of independent contractor, and not as an 
employee of the City.  Mountain Rides and its agents, employees, and volunteers, shall not accrue leave, 
retirement, insurance, bonding, or any other benefit afforded to employees of the City.  The sole 
interest and responsibility of the City under this Contract is to assure itself that the services covered by 
this Contract shall be performed and rendered by Mountain Rides in a competent, efficient and 
satisfactory manner. 

 
8 Hold Harmless.  Any contractual obligation entered into or assumed by Mountain Rides, or 
any liability incurred by reason of personal injury and/or property damage in connection with or 
arising out of Mountain Rides’ obligations pursuant to this Contract shall be the sole responsibility of 
Mountain Rides, and Mountain Rides covenants and agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless 
from any and all claims or causes of action arising out of Mountain Rides’ activities and obligations 
as set forth hereinabove, including, but not 

limited to, personal injury, property damage, and employee complaints. 

 
9. Non-Assignment.  This Contract may not be assigned by or transferred by Mountain Rides, in 

248



 

 

whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the City. 

 
10. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

(a) Paragraph Headings.  The headings in this Contract are inserted for convenience and 
identification only and are in no way intended to describe, interpret, define or limit the 
scope, extent or intent of this Contract or any of the provisions of the Contract. 

(b) Provision Severable.  Every provision of this Contract is intended to be severable.  If any 
term or provision hereof is illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or 
invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Contract. 

(c) Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.  The rights and remedies provided by this Contract are 
cumulative and the use of any one right or remedy by any party shall not preclude nor waive 
its rights to use any or all other remedies.  Any rights provided to the parties under this 
Contract are given in addition to any other rights the parties may have by law, statute, 
ordinance or otherwise. 

(d) Successor and Assigns.  This Contract and the terms and provision hereof shall inure to the 
benefit of and be binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of 
the parties hereto. 

(e) Entire Contract.  This Contract contains the entire agreement between the parties respecting 
the matters herein set forth and supersedes all prior agreements between the parties hereto 
respecting such matters. 

(f)  Governing Law.  This Contract shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Idaho. 

(g) Preparation of Contract.  No presumption shall exist in favor of or against any party to this 
Contract as a result of the drafting and preparation of the document. 

(h) No Waiver.  No waiver of any breach by either party of the terms of this Contract shall be 
deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach of the Contract. 

(i)  Amendment.  No amendment of this Contract shall be effective unless the amendment is in 
writing, signed by each of the parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Contract the day and year first 

above written. 

 
MOUNTAIN RIDES CITY OF SUN VALLEY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 

 
By 
Jason Miller, Executive Director 

 
 ATTEST:  
 

 

 

 

Alissa Weber, City Clerk

249



Resolution 2015-31 
Contract for Services, Ketchum Computers 

Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF SUN VALLEY  
RESOLUTION 2015-31 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SUN VALLEY AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO  
EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR SERVICES WITH KETCHUM COMPUTERS 

WHEREAS, The City of Sun Valley (“the City”) is a municipal corporation duly organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Idaho Code §50-101 et seq.; and  

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Idaho Code § 50-301 and § 50-302, the City is empowered to enter into 

contracts and take such steps as are reasonably necessary to maintain the peace, good government 
and welfare of the City and its trade, commerce and industry; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into an agreement with Ketchum Computers to provide 

information technology services, including network, wireless, server and workstation setup and 
maintenance, to the City; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Sun Valley and Ketchum Computers have agreed to the terms and 
conditions of the Contract for Services, a copy of which is attached hereto as “Exhibit 1”; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED TY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUN VALLEY, IDAHO,  
 
SECTION 1:  That the City of Sun Valley has approved funding for services with Ketchum Computers at a 
rate of $145 per hour.  
 
SECTION 2:  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an FY 16 Contract with Ketchum 
Computers. 
 
SECTION 3:  That this Resolution shall be known as Resolution No. 2015-31 of the City of Sun Valley, 
Idaho and shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 
 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS _____ DAY OF 
NOVEMBER 2015. 

 
 

     ____________________________________ 

      Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Alissa Weber, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

250



 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

251



City of Sun Valley Initials ____   Page 1 of 3 Ketchum Computers Initials ____ 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement, dated as of Nov 15th, 2015, is between Ketchum Computers, Inc., P. O. Box 5186, Ketchum, ID 

83340 ("CONSULTANT"), and City of Sun Valley, P.O. Box 416 Sun Valley, ID. 83353 ("CLIENT”) collectively 

(the “parties”). 
 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS CLIENT desires to retain CONSULTANT to render consulting and advisory services for CLIENT 

on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and CONSULTANT desires to be retained by CLIENT on 

such terms and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, CLIENT and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  
 
1. Retention of Consultant; Services to be Performed. CLIENT hereby retains CONSULTANT for the term of 

this Agreement to perform the following consulting services for CLIENT ("Services"): 
 
IT Services: Network, Wireless, Server and Workstation setup and maintenance  
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
In rendering Services hereunder, CONSULTANT shall be acting as an independent contractor and not as an 

employee or agent of CLIENT. As independent contractors, neither CONSULTANT nor CLIENT shall have any 

authority, express or implied, to commit or obligate the other in any manner whatsoever, except as specifically 

authorized from time to time in writing by an authorized representative of CONSULTANT or CLIENT, as the case 

may be, which authorization may be general or specific. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed or 

applied to create a partnership. CONSULTANT shall be responsible for the payment of all federal, state or local taxes 

payable with respect to all amounts paid to CONSULTANT under this Agreement.  
 
2. Compensation for Consulting Services. For Services hereunder, CLIENT shall pay to CONSULTANT a fee 

of $145 per hour. The minimum time to be billed for any one day for work performed at CONSULTANT'S location 

will be one half hour. The minimum time to be billed for any one day for work performed at CLIENT'S location will 

be one hour. Overtime, as defined by any hours worked outside 8:00 am to 5:00 pm Monday through Friday, is 

billed at time and a half. 
 
3. Expenses. CLIENT shall reimburse CONSULTANT for all reasonable travel and other out-of-pocket 

expenses incurred by CONSULTANT in rendering Services hereunder. Travel expenses shall include the cost of any 

travel by personal vehicle to a location more than 40 miles from CONSULTANT's primary work location in 

Ketchum, Idaho, the costs of any travel requiring public transportation, the costs of meals, and the costs of necessary 

lodging. The costs of time required for traveling shall be paid for all time CONSULTANT is away from 

CONSULTANT's primary work location, but excluding any time spent on personal business or at a place of 

temporary lodging. CLIENT shall pay such reimbursement within 30 (thirty) days after receipt of appropriate 

receipts or documentation of the expenses. 
 
4. Billing. CONSULTANT shall invoice CLIENT when work is completed or the 1st and 15th of the month for 

ongoing work, providing a listing of labor terms and expenses. Payment on invoices so provided shall be due 

immediately for work that is completed or Net 15 of the invoice date for ongoing work.  

252



City of Sun Valley Initials ____   Page 2 of 3 Ketchum Computers Initials ____ 

5. Confidential Information. Confidential information of any nature that either party acquires regarding any 

aspect of the other party's business shall be treated in strict confidence. Confidential Information includes any 

information disclosed by either party (the “Disclosing Party”), to the other party (the “Receiving Party”) either 

directly or indirectly, in writing, orally, electronically, or by inspection of tangible objects, which is designated as 

“Confidential,” “Proprietary” or some similar designation or should be reasonably understood to be confidential or 

proprietary in that its unauthorized disclosure would be harmful to the party that owns the information.  Information 

so obtained shall not be divulged, furnished or made accessible to third parties without the written permission of the 

other party to this Agreement. 
 
This Agreement shall impose no obligation on the Parties with respect to maintaining the confidence of 

Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party that:  (a) is or becomes generally known or available to the public 

other than as a result of a breach of this Agreement by the Recipient; (b) is known by Recipient at the time of 

disclosure and is not subject to restriction; (c) that is the same as or substantially the same as information 

independently developed by Recipient; (d) becomes available to Recipient on a non-confidential basis from a third 

party provided that such third party is not to Recipient’s knowledge bound by a confidentiality agreement or other 

legal or fiduciary obligation of secrecy to the Disclosing Party; or (e) is required by law, judicial order (subject to an 

appropriate protective order), or the rules of any nationally-recognized stock exchange on which Recipient’s stock is 

traded, to be disclosed. 
 
Both parties retain the right to do business with third parties in matters that may be competitive with the 

interests of the other party to this Agreement. However, the confidentiality constraints above shall be binding and 

have precedence over these business matters. Upon termination of this Agreement, the terms of this paragraph shall 

remain in effect. 
 
6. Ownership of Intellectual Property. CONSULTANT grants and assigns to CLIENT all rights to use any 

work product and to develop, manufacture, market or otherwise commercialize any product based on, directly 

related to or directly making use of the Services. CLIENT shall be responsible for verifying any property rights of 

other parties prior to use of any work product provided under this Agreement. CLIENT acknowledges that the use of 

any design, advice, drawing or other service provided by CONSULTANT, its employees and agents does not relieve 

CLIENT's responsibility to execute sufficient testing and judgment to ensure that any resulting product is suitable for 

usage in CLIENT's market. 
 
7. Software Licensing.  It is the sole responsibility of CLIENT to obtain legal licenses for all software. 
  
8. Term and Termination.  
(a) Unless terminated at an earlier date in accordance with Section 8(b), this Agreement shall commence as of 

the date first written above and shall continue for one year. 
(b) This Agreement shall be terminated when either party gives written notice to the other party of the intent 

to terminate this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to receive from CLIENT all fees and expenses incurred 

up to the date of termination in accordance with the billing procedures set forth in Section 4. 
 

9. Limitations on Liability. Except as a result of gross negligence or willful misconduct, neither party shall be 

liable for any indirect, incidental, punitive, special or consequential damages whatsoever, including without 

limitation, any such damages for loss for business profits, for business interruption, for personal injury, loss of 

business information, data loss, damage to reputation or for any other pecuniary or other loss whatsoever.  Except as 

expressly provided herein, there are no warranties, express or implied, by operation of law or otherwise, for any 

services furnished hereunder. 
 

CONSULTANT DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES INCLUDING THE 

WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 

PURCHASE.  
 

10. Disputes. Any action based on this Agreement, including disagreement, disputes regarding the terms and 

conditions, alleged breaches of contract, and remedies under contract, shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

253



City of Sun Valley Initials ____   Page 3 of 3 Ketchum Computers Initials ____ 

Idaho and shall be adjudicated exclusively by a court of competent jurisdiction in Blaine County, Idaho.  Prior to the 

filing of any action, the parties agree to mediate in good faith the dispute with the American Arbitration Association 

(AAA) or any other mutually acceptable mediator.  If either party employs attorneys to enforce any rights arising out 

of or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs 

and other reasonable and related expenses. 
 

11. Miscellaneous. 
 
 (a) Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to 

the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement supersedes any and all prior agreements, oral or written, between the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. 
 
(b) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is for any reason declared to be invalid or unenforceable, 

the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby. Such invalid or 

unenforceable provision shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary to render it valid and enforceable, and if 

no modification shall render it valid and enforceable, this Agreement shall be construed as if not containing such 

provision and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced accordingly. 
 
(c) Amendment, Waiver, Modification or Termination. No amendment, waiver or termination or modification 

of this Agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by both CONSULTANT and CLIENT and dated 

subsequent to the date hereof. Performance of work by CONSULTANT and/or acceptance of payment by 

CONSULTANT for work performed and/or work to be performed for CLIENT beyond the scope of this Agreement 

does not constitute acceptance by CONSULTANT of amendments or modifications to this Agreement nor shall they 

be binding.  No failure or delay by either party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder will operate as a 

waiver thereof, nor will any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the 

exercise of any other right, power, or privilege hereunder. 
 
(d) Assignment. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall not be 

assignable by either party without prior written consent of the other party. 
 
(e) Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 

hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives and, to the extent permitted by subsection (d), successors 

and assigns of the parties hereto. 
 
(f) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to 

be an original, and all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CLIENT and CONSULTANT have executed this Agreement as of the date set 

forth in the first paragraph. 
 

 
Date:  ___________________ __________________________________  

Todd Mandeville,  
Ketchum Computers, Inc. 

 

 

 
Date:  ___________________ __________________________________  

 

 
__________________________________ 
[Print name] 
City of Sun Valley 

254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



Page 1 of 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 478 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SUN VALLEY, BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO, REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 
475, WHICH AMENDED THE CITY CODE TO CLARIFY REIMBURSEMENTS AND HEALTH INSURANCE 
OPTIONS FOR THE SUN VALLEY MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 475 was passed by the Sun Valley City Council on August 12th, 2015 and 
published on September 9th, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, the subject matter of Ordinance No. 475 was compensation of City of Sun Valley Officials; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, in addition to salary compensation, Ordinance No. 475’s subject matter was reimbursement 
for insurance premiums, which is also compensation;  
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 475 was not published more than seventy-five (75) days prior to the 
November 3, 2015 general city election in conformance with Idaho Code Section 50-203; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUN VALLEY, 
IDAHO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: CITY CODE AMENDMENT - Ordinance No. 475 of the City of Sun Valley, passed by the City 
Council on August 12, 2015 and effective on September 10, 2015, is hereby repealed in its entirety. 
 
SECTION 2: SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSE - If any section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, 
item, provision, regulation, sentence, clause, or phrase is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction 
to be invalid, such actions shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole or any part thereof 
other than the part declared invalid. 
 
SECTION 3.  REPEALER CLAUSE - All City of Sun Valley Ordinances or parts thereof which are in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE DATE - This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its approval, 
passage, and publication as provided by law. 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUN VALLEY, IDAHO AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR, 

THIS _______ day of _______________, 2015. 

 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Dewayne Briscoe, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Alissa Weber, City Clerk 

299



300



301



302


	COMBINED_FInal Plats.pdf
	1-SUBFP2015-07 Agenda Report
	2-SUBFP2015-07 FOF
	DECISION
	Therefore, based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact/Conclusions of Law, the Sun Valley City Council hereby conditionally approves the final plat for the Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D based upon submitted application review...

	3-Page Reserved Certificates of Occupancy
	4-3b - CC-3 and CC-4
	5-final plat sheets
	15091sublots13-14REV
	15091-sublots13-14pg2REV

	6-DiamondBackTownhomes_PlatRev_sublot 13 14 and 17 18 Oct 13 2015
	SUBFP2015-08 (missing CofO).pdf
	1-SUBFP2015-08 Agenda Report
	2-SUBFP2015-08 FOF
	DECISION
	Therefore, based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact/Conclusions of Law, the Sun Valley City Council hereby conditionally approves the final plat for the Diamond Back Townhomes: Sublots 13&14, 17&18, and Tract D based upon submitted application review...

	3-Page Reserved Certificates of Occupancy
	4-3b - CC-3 and CC-4
	5-SUBFP-08 Drawings
	15091sublot19-REV
	15091-sublot19pg2-REV

	6-DiamondBackTownhomes_PlatRev_sublot 19 Tract E 101915


	Cell Tower Documents_Combined.pdf
	6 - Sun Valley.Elkhorn.RF Study.10.06.15.pdf
	1  General Summary
	1.1 Site Summary
	1.2 Climate Conditions at Time of On-Site Audit

	2  Site Scale Map
	3 Antenna Inventory
	4 Site Photographs
	5  Emission Measurements and Discussion
	5.1 On-Site Measurements
	5.2  Predicted Emission Levels and Discussion
	5.2.1  Predictive AT&T Mobility’s RF Contribution Only on the Site


	6  Statement of Compliance
	6.1 Statement of AT&T Mobility Compliance
	6.2 Recommendations

	7  Fall Arrest & Parapet Information
	8  Appendix A
	8.1 Technical Framework

	9  Appendix B
	9.1 Qualifications of Waterford Consultants, LLC

	10  Appendix C
	10.1 RoofMaster™

	11  Appendix D
	11.1 Statement of Limiting Conditions


	Elkhorn Council Letter red 10302015 final-signed.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page





